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PART I
SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains forward-looking statementd.stdtements other than statements of historicasfa
including statements regarding our future financ@dition, business strategy and plans and obgEstf
management for future operations, are forward-loglstatements. Terminology such as “believe,” “rhaynight,”
“objective,” “estimate,” “continue,” “anticipate,'intend,” “should,” “plan,” “expect,” “predict,” “mtential,” or the
negative of these terms or other similar expressisintended to identify forward-looking statemsewe have
based these forward-looking statements largelyuwrcorrent expectations and projections about éuawents and
financial trends that we believe may affect ouafinial condition, results of operations, businésgegy and
financial needs. These forward-looking statemergssabject to a number of risks, uncertaintiesasslimptions
described under the section titled “Risk Factorgl elsewhere in this report, such as but not lidnite

LI ” o ” o ” o ”ou ” ”ou

« our immature industry and relatively new businesslef;

 our ability to manage our growth effective

« our dependence on Internet search companies satlititernet visitors
« our ability to successfully manage any recent turiacquisitions

« our dependence on a small number of largatsliand our dependence on a small number of virfioaa
majority of our revenue

* our ability to attract and retain qualified emplegeand key personnt

« changes in government regulation affecting ourress or our clien’ businesses

« our ability to accurately forecast our operatingufes and appropriately plan our expen:

« our ability to compete in our industr

« our ability to enhance and maintain our client saddor relationships

« our ability to develop new services and enhancesnamd features to meet new demands from our cli
« our ability to raise additional capital in the freuif needed

« general economic conditions in our domestic anép@l future international markets; a

 our ability to protect our intellectual propertghis.

The events and circumstances reflected in the folking statements may not be achieved or oandr
actual results may differ materially from those t@amed in any forward-looking statements. Althowggh believe
that the expectations reflected in the forward-logkstatements are reasonable, we cannot guartniee results,
levels of activity, performance or achievementsrédwer, neither we nor any other person assumemnssplity for
the accuracy and completeness of the forward-lgp&tatements. You should not place undue reliancng
forward-looking statements.

Except as required by law, we undertake no obligeatid update publicly any forward-looking statensefior
any reason to conform these statements to actsiatser to changes in our expectations. We qualifef our
forward-looking statements by these cautionaryestants.
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ltem 1. Business
Our Company

QuinStreet is a leader in vertical marketing andlimen the Internet. We have built a strong setapfabilities
to engage Internet visitors with targeted mediatantbnnect our marketing clients with their potgintustomers
online. We focus on serving clients in large, infiation-intensive industry verticals where relevaatgeted media
and offerings help visitors make informed choides] the products that match their needs, and bime®me
qualified customer prospects for our clients. Qurent primary client verticals are the educatiod &inancial
services industries. We also have a presence indime services, business-to-business, or B2B, aalthtare
industries.

We generate revenue by delivering measurable oniard&eting results to our clients. These resubstypically
in the form of qualified leads or clicks, the outtes of customer prospects submitting requestsformation on,
or to be contacted regarding, client productsheirtclicking on or through to specific client affe These qualified
leads or clicks are generated from our marketiriyiies on our websites or on third-party websigth whom we
have relationships. Clients primarily pay us fads that they can convert into customers, typidally call center ¢
through other offline customer acquisition procssse for clicks from our websites that they canwat into
applications or customers on their websites. Weperdominantly paid on a negotiated or market-aritger lead”
or “per click” basis. Media costs to generate dietlileads or clicks are borne by us as a cost@figing our
services.

Founded in 1999, we have been a pioneer in thel@@went and application of measurable marketinthen
Internet. Clients pay us for the actual opt-in@usi by prospects or customers that result frommaarketing
activities on their behalf, versus traditional irapsion-based advertising and marketing models iobhndn
advertiser pays for more general exposure to aaridement. We have been particularly focused aeldping anc
delivering measurable marketing results in thedeangine “ecosystem”, the entry point of the Inétifor most of
the visitors we convert into qualified leads ock$ for our clients. We own or partner with verticantent websites
that attract Internet visitors from organic seagolgine rankings due to the quality and relevanahei content to
search engine users. We also acquire targetedrgigdr our websites through the purchase of payepek, or PPC
advertisements on search engines. We complemerchseragine companies by building websites with enhaind
offerings that are relevant and responsive to therchers, and by increasing the value of the $gR€:h
advertising they sell by matching visitors withefhgs and converting them into customer prosgectsur clients.

Market Opportunity

Our clients are shifting more of their marketinglpats from traditional media channels such as tinadl,
television, radio, and newspapers to the Intereetbse of increasing usage of the Internet by puéntial
customers. We believe that direct marketing isnlest applicable and relevant marketing segmens toegause it
targeted and measurable. According to the July 2088arch report, “Consumer Behavior Online: A 2Deep
Dive,” by Forrester Research, Americans spend 3Beir time with media on the Internet, but onlifieect
marketing was forecasted to represent only 16%@%tL49 billion in total annual U.S. direct markgtspending in
2009, as reported by the Direct Marketing AssoeiatiThe Internet is an effective direct marketingdimm due to
its targeting and measurability characteristicsliléct marketing budgets shift to the Internepiaportion to
Americans’ share of time spent with media on therimet — from 16% to 33% of the $149 billion inabt
spending — that could represent an increased mapgeirtunity of $25 billion. In addition, as tradital media
categories such as television and radio shift famralog to digital formats, they can become charfioglthe targete
and measurable marketing techniques and capabiltichave developed for the Internet, thus expanalim
addressable market opportunity. Further future etgpktential will also come from international metik
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Change in marketing strategy and approa

We believe that marketing approaches are changitgdgets shift from offline, analog advertisingdiago
digital advertising media such as Internet markgtirhese changing approaches are fundamentalcgnde a shift
to fundamentally new competencies, including:

From qualitative, impression-driven marketing to afytic, data-driven marketing

We believe that the growth in Internet marketingnsibling a more data-driven approach to advegidihe
measurability of online marketing allows market@rsollect a significant amount of detailed datattos
performance of their marketing campaigns, includimgeffectiveness of ad format and placement sed u
responses. This data can then be analyzed andaisagrove marketing campaign performance and cost-
effectiveness on substantially shorter cycle tithes with traditional offline media.

From account management-based client relationshtpsesults-based client relationships

We believe that marketers are becoming increasifoglysed on strategies that deliver specific, medsea
results. For example, marketers are attemptingtiebunderstand how their marketing spending preslu
measurable objectives such as meeting their tangdteting cost per new customer. As marketers atope
results-based approaches, the basis of clientaesdtips with their marketing services providershgting from
being more account management-based to being msués-oriented.

From marketing messages pushed on audiences to rating messages pulled by self-directed audiences

Traditional marketing messages such as televigioradio advertisements are broadcast to a brodidraze.
The Internet is enabling more self-directed anddtad marketing. For example, when Internet visitdick on PPC
search advertisements, they are expressing aestierand proactively engaging with informatiomaba product
or service related to that advertisement. The dgiafself-directed marketing, primarily through ioiel channels,
allows marketers to present more targeted and paligrmore relevant marketing messages to poteatistomers
who have taken the first step in the buying processch can in turn increase the effectiveness afketers’
spending.

From marketing spending focused on large media bugsnarketing spending optimized for fragmented rreed

We believe that media is becoming increasinglyrfragted and that marketing strategies are changiagdpt
to this trend. There are millions of Internet wédbs, tens of thousands of which have significamiioers of visitors.
While this fragmentation can create challengesifarketers, it also allows for improved audiencensegtation and
the delivery of highly targeted marketing messagasnew technologies and approaches are necdssaifectively
manage marketing given the increasing complexgylteng from more media fragmentation.

Increasing complexity of online marketing

Online marketing is a dynamic and increasingly claxadvertising medium. There are numerous online
channels for marketers to reach potential custonmekiding search engines, Internet portals, gatttontent
websites, affiliate networks, display and contekaganetworks, email, video advertising, and sogiatlia. We refe
to these and other marketing channels as medi&. &abese channels may involve multiple ad fornasitd
different pricing models, amplifying the complexiy online marketing. We believe that this compigxncreases
the demand for our vertical marketing and mediaises due to our capabilities and to our experienaaaging an
optimizing online marketing programs across mudtiphannels. Also marketers and agencies oftendackbility tc
aggregate offerings from multiple clients in thensaindustry vertical, an approach that allows usoteer a wide
selection of visitor segments and provide more mematches to Internet visitor needs. This apphocan allow
us to convert more Internet visitors into qualifledds or clicks from targeted media sources, givis an advantag
when buying or monetizing that media.
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Our Business Model

We deliver cost-effective marketing results to clients, predictably and scalably, most typicafiythe form of
a qualified lead or click. These leads or clicks tzen convert into a customer or sale for thentlé a rate that
results in an acceptable marketing cost to themg®éigaid by clients primarily when we deliver dfietl leads or
clicks as defined in our agreements. Because wethe&osts of media, our programs must deliveslaesto our
clients and a media yield, or our ability to geteran acceptable margin on our media costs, tlaides a sound
financial outcome for us. Our general process is:

¢ We own or access targeted me

« We run advertisements or other forms of mamnketessages and programs in that media to createrv
responses or clicks through to client offerir

« We match these responses or clicks to client affsrior brands that meet visitor interests or nesatsyerting
visitors into qualified leads or click

* We optimize client matches and media yielchsihat we achieve desired results for clients asdusd
financial outcome for us

Media cost, or the cost to attract targeted Intievigtors, is the largest cost input to producihg measurable
marketing results we deliver to clients. Balanaing clients’ cost and conversion objectives, orrtdite at which the
leads or clicks that we deliver to them conver ioistomers, with our media costs and yield objestirepresents
the primary challenge in our business model. Westimen able to effectively balance these compelémgands by
focusing on our media sources and capabilitiesyeion optimization, and our mix of offerings acligbnt
coverage. We also seek to mitigate media costskorking with third-party website publishers poatinantly on
a revenue-share basis; media purchased on a nenueshare basis has represented a small minbéotyr anedia
costs and of the Internet visitors we convert tpialified leads or clicks for clients.

Media and Internet visitor mix

We are a client-driven organization. We seek toree of the largest providers of measurable margetsults
on the Internet in the client industry verticals sezve by meeting the needs of clients for restdtgbility and
volume. Meeting those client needs requires thamamtain a diversified and flexible mix of Intetnasitor source
due to the dynamic nature of online media. Our medix changes with changes in Internet visitor esaatterns.
We adapt to those changes on an ongoing basiglsmgroactively adjust our mix of vertical mediugces to
respond to client or vertical-specific circumstamead to achieve our financial objectives. Ourrfirial objectives
are to achieve consistent, sustainable financidbpaance, but can differ by client or industry tieal, depending
on factors such as our need to invest in the dpwedmt of media sources, marketing programs, onftclie
relationships. Generally, our Internet visitor sms include:

« websites owned and operated by us, with coted offerings that are relevant to our clientsyet
customers

« visitors acquired from PPC advertisements purchasemajor search engines and sent to our web

¢ revenue sharing agreements with third-partisites with whom we have a relationship and whosgent is
relevant to our clien’ target customer:

< email lists owned by third parties and warrantedgdy their owners to comply with the C-SPAM Act;
< email lists owned by us, and generated on a-in basis from Internet visitors to our websitesy

« display ads run through online advertising netwarkdirectly with major websites or porta

Conversion optimization

Once we acquire targeted Internet visitors from afingur numerous online media sources, we seeknuest
that media into qualified leads or clicks at a thta balances client results with our media costgeld objectives.
We start by defining the segments and intereskstefnet visitors in our client verticals, and byyiding them witt
the information and product offerings on our wedssiand in our marketing programs that best megtrbeds.
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Achieving acceptable client results and media yilesh requires ongoing testing, measuring, analfestslback, an
adaptation of the key components of our Interngketing programs. These components include the atiaik or
advertising messaging, content mix, visitor nav@apath, mix and coverage of client offerings preed, and
point-of-sale conversion messaging — the conteattithpresented to an Internet visitor immediagelyr to
converting that individual into a lead or click four clients. This data complexity is managed byvitk technology
data reporting, marketing processes, and persovfebelieve that our scale and ten-year track cegive us an
advantage, as managing this complexity often insgisteep experience-based learning curve.

Offerings and client coverage

The Internet is a self-directed medium. Internsiters choose the websites they visit and theimnenl
navigation paths, and always have the option okirig away to a different website or web page. Hgwfferings
or clients that match the interests or needs ofsielisitors is key to providing results and adet@umedia yield.
Our vertical focus allows us to continuously revasel improve this matching process, to better wstded the
various segments of visitors and client offeringaikable to be matched, and to ensure that we eratg#rnet
visitors to find what they seek.

Our Competitive Advantages
Vertical focus and expertise

We focus our efforts on large, attractive clientrkes verticals, and on building our depth of meatial
coverage of clients and client offerings withinthé/NVe have been a pioneer in developing verticaketang and
media on the Internet, and in providing measureataieketing results to clients. We focus on client® are movin
their marketing spending to measurable online fesraad on information-intensive client verticalgtwlarge
underlying market opportunities and high productwstomer lifetime values. This focus allows ustibize targete
media, in-depth industry and client knowledge, enstomer segmentation and breadth of client of§ssior
coverage, to deliver results for our clients anehtgr media yield.

Measurable marketing experience and expertise

We have substantial experience at designing anlkbylag marketing programs that allow Internet \asé to
find the information or product offerings they seakd that can deliver economically attractive, sueable results
to our clients, cost-effectively for us. Such résuéquire frequent testing and balancing of numera@riables,
including Internet visitor sources, mix of contamd of client and product offerings, visitor natiga paths,
prospect qualification, and advertising creativsigie, among others. The complexity of executing¢hmarketing
campaigns is challenging. Due to our scale and/éam-track record, we have successfully executedsidinds of
Internet marketing programs, and we have gainatfgignt experience managing and optimizing thisptexity to
meet our clients’ volume, quality and cost objeesiv

Targeted media

Targeted media attracts Internet visitors who al&ively narrowly focused demographically or ieith
interests. Targeted media can deliver better mahmarketing results for our clients, at lowedmeosts for us,
due to higher rates of conversion of Internet @isitinto leads or clicks for targeted offerings amiten, due to less
competition from display advertisers. We have digant experience at creating, identifying, monietiz and
managing targeted media on the Internet. Many ®tdingeted media sources for our marketing progeams
proprietary or more defensible because of our twemership of websites in our client verticalsy aaquisition of
targeted Internet visitors directly from searchieag to our websites, and our exclusive or longitezlationships
with media properties or sources owned by othexantples of websites that we own and operate include
WorldWideLearn.com, ArmyStudyGuide.com and Scheols: in our education client vertical; CardRatings¢
MoneyRates.com, Insurance.com and Insure.com ifimamcial services client vertical; AllAboutLawiesm and
OldHouseWeb.com in our home services client vdrtlogernet.com in our business-to-business chemtical; and
ElderCarelink.com in our healthcare client vertical
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Proprietary technology

We have developed a core technology platform armhamon set of applications for managing and opiimgiz
measurable marketing programs across multiple tolierticals at scale. The primary objectives arfdat$ of our
technologies are to achieve higher media yieldyeebetter results for our clients, and more é&fitly and
effectively manage our scale and complexity. Wetiooously strive to develop technologies that allasvto better
match Internet visitors in our client verticalstie information, clients or product offerings thesek at scale. In so
doing, our technologies can allow us to simultarsgpimprove visitor satisfaction, increase our naegleld, and
achieve higher rates of conversions of leads okslfor our clients — a virtuous cycle of increasatlie for
Internet visitors and our clients and competitideantage for us. Some of the key applications mtechnology
platform are:

< an ad server for tracking the placement amtbpaance of content, creative messaging, andiaffsron our
websites and on those of publishers with whom weky

« database-driven applications for dynamicalbtching content, offers or brands to Internet gisitexpresse
needs or interest

« a platform for measuring and managing thequarnce of tens of thousands of PPC search engine
advertising campaign

« dashboards or reporting tools for displayipgmting and financial metrics for thousands ofang
marketing campaigns; an

< a compliance tool capable of cataloging altdrfng content from the thousands of websites bichvour
marketing programs appear to ensure adherenceetd blanding guidelines and to regulatory requaats.

Approximately one-third of our employees are engisefocused on building, maintaining and operating
technology platform.

Client relationships

We believe we are a reliable source of measurdfdgtere marketing results for our clients. We eadar to
work collaboratively and in a data-driven way waffents to improve our results for them. We believe high
client retention and per client growth rates are ttu

« our close, often direct, relationships with mosbof large clients
* our ability to deliver measurable and attractivieime on investment, or ROI, on clie’ marketing spending

« our ownership of, or exclusive access to lang®unts of, targeted media inventory and assatlaternet
visitors in the client verticals on which we focasid,

« our ability to consistently and reliably deliverde quantities of qualified leads or clicl

We believe that our high client retention ratesnbimed with our depth and breadth of online mediaur
primary client verticals, indicate that we are bragtg an important marketing channel partner fordiants to
reach their prospective customers.

Client-driven online marketing approach

We focus on providing measurable Internet markedind media services to our clients in a way thatgmts
and enhances their brands and their relationshighsprospective customers. The Internet marketimgmams we
execute are designed to adhere to strict cliemtding and regulatory guidelines, and are desigoaddatch our
clients’ brands and offers with expressed custdnterest. We have contractual arrangements witd-gharty
website publishers to ensure that they follow dients’ brand guidelines, and we utilize our prejpairy
technologies and trained personnel to help ensampkance. In addition, we believe that providiegevant, helpfL
content and client offers that match an Internsitei’s self-selected interest in a product or grvsuch as
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requesting information about an education prografinancial product, makes that visitor more likébyconvert
into a customer for our clients.

We do not engage in online marketing practices sscbpyware or deceptive promotions that do notigeo
value to Internet visitors and that can undermimeatients’ brands. A small minority of our Intetnasitors reach
our websites or client offerings through advertisets in emails. We employ practices to ensurevileatomply
with the CAN-SPAM Act governing unsolicited commiatemail.

Acquisition strategy and success

We have successfully acquired vertical marketing) media companies on the Internet, including vattic
website businesses, marketing services compamddeahnologies. We believe we can integrate anérge¢e valus
from acquisitions due to our scale, breadth of bdias, and common technology platform.

¢ Our ability to monetize Internet media, coupleith client demand for our services, providesvith a
particular advantage in acquiring targeted onlireglia properties in the client verticals on whichfaeus.

« Our capabilities in online media can allowtogenerate a greater volume of leads or clickd,tharefore
create more value, than other owners of marketingices companies that have aggregated client sidge
relationships

« We can often apply technologies across our busiv@ssne to create more value than previous ownktise
technology

Scale

We are one of the largest Internet vertical marigetind media companies in the world. Our scalevalles to
better meet the needs of large clients for relighivolume and quality of service. It allows usitwest more in
technologies that improve media yield, client resahd our operating efficiency. We are also ablietest more in
other forms of research and development, includitgrmining and developing new types of verticatlimenew
approaches to engaging website visitors, and ngmeets of Internet visitors and client budgetspéiivhich can
lead to advantages in media costs, effectivenedslivering client results, and then to more groasial greater
scale.

Our Strategy

Our goal is to be one of the largest and most @sfaemarketing and media companies on the Inteamet
eventually in other digitized media forms. We bedig¢hat we are in the early stages of a very largklong-term
business opportunity. Our strategy for pursuing tpportunity includes the following key components

» Focus on generating sustainable revenues by pnogidieasurable value to our clien

 Build QuinStreet and our industry sustainably bhdéng ethically in all we do and by providing gty
content and website experiences to Internet visi

< Remain vertically focused, choosing to grow throdgpth, expertise and coverage in our current ¢l
verticals; enter new client verticals selectivelyeptime, organically and through acquisitiol

« Build a world class organization, wibest-in-class capabilities for delivering measurmbiarketing results
to clients and high yields or returns on media sc

» Develop and evolve the best technologies and ptatfor managing vertical marketing and media on
Internet; focus on technologies that enhance mgidia, improve client results and achieve scaleiefficies

« Build, buy and partner with vertical content websithat provide the most relevant and highest gusisitor
experiences in the client and media verticals wees:

« Be a clien-driven organization; develop a broad set of mesharces and capabilities to reliably meet client
needs
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Our Culture

Our values are the foundation of our successfuhless culture. They represent the standards we gty
achieve and the organization we continuously sedletome. These have been our guiding principres siur
founding in 1999. Our values are:

1. Performance. We understand our business objectives and apfiatever it takes” approach to
meeting them. We are driven to achieve. We are dtteuirto our own personal and professional devekamm
and to that of our colleagues.

2. High Standards. We hold each other and ourselves to the highastards of performance,
professionalism and personal behavior. We act thighhighest of ethical standards. We tolerate angivfe
mistakes, but not patterns.

3. Teamwork. We deal with one another openly, honestly andtmerarchically in an atmosphere of
mutual trust and respect and in pursuit of comnimtch goals. We have an obligation to dissennieféort to
reach the best answers. We smooth the way fortaffecynamic team discussions by demonstrating aad
concern for each individual in all of our interacts. We support decisions, once made.

4. Customer Empathy.We strive every day to better understand ancipatie the needs of our custom
including our website visitors, clients and pubdish We leverage our unique insights into highstamer
loyalty and competitive advantage.

5. Prioritization. We always work on what is most important to acimnig Company objectives first. If v
do not know, we ask or discuss competing demands.

6. Urgency. We know our goals and measure our progress totliard daily.

7. Progress. We are pioneers. We make decisions based ondadtanalysis, as well as intuition, but we
expect to make mistakes in the pursuit of rapidyprss. We learn from mistakes on short cycle tiamekiterat
our way to success.

8. Innovation and Flexibility. We prize creativity. We embrace new ideas andagghes as opportuniti
to improve our performance or work environment. Mg st pride of authorship; it limits progress. WAtively
benchmark and work to understand and employ bastipes.

9. Recognition. We are a meritocracy. Advancement and recognérerearned through contribution and
performance. We celebrate each other’s victorielsedforts.

10. Fun. We believe that work, done well, can and shoeldum. We strive to create an upbeat,
supportive environment and try not to take oursete® seriously. We do not tolerate negativismsjpaism or
nay saying...we don’t have time.

Clients

In fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008, our top 28ntdi accounted for 65%, 68% and 70% of net revenue,
respectively. One of our largest clients, DeVry.Jmccounted for 19% and 23% of net revenue irafigears 2009
and 2008, respectively. In fiscal year 2010, nertlicomprised more than 10% of annual revenueeSinc service
was first offered in 2001, we have developed addi@nt base with many multi-year relationshipse ¥hter into
Internet marketing contracts with our clients, mafstvhich are cancelable with little or no priortice. In addition,
these contracts do not contain penalty provisiongdncellation before the end of the contract term

Sales and Marketing

We have an internal sales team that consists ofogmgs focused on signing new clients and accoamagers
who maintain and seek to increase our businessexitting clients. Our sales people and accouniagears are
each focused on a particular client vertical so tihey develop an expertise in the marketing neédsir clients in
that particular vertical.

Our marketing programs include attendance at tshde's and conferences and limited advertising.
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Technology and Infrastructure

We have developed a suite of technologies to mariageove and measure the results of the marketing
programs we offer our clients. We use a combinadfoproprietary and third-party software as welhasdware
from established technology vendors. We use speethboftware for client management, building arahaging
websites, acquiring and managing media, managinghad-party publishers, and the matching of Intdrvisitors
to our marketing clients. We have invested sigaifity in these technologies and plan to continugotso to meet
the demands of our clients and Internet visitarsntrease the scalability of our operations, amthece
management information systems and analytics iroparations. Our development teams work closeli witr
marketing and operating teams to develop applicatand systems that can be used across our budiméssal
years 2010, 2009 and 2008, we spent $19.7 mil#iad,9 million and $14.1 million, respectively, oroduct
development.

Our primary data center is at a third-party co-tagacenter in San Francisco, California. All oétéritical
components of the system are redundant and weahbaekup data center in Las Vegas, Nevada. We have
implemented these backup systems and redundanamisitmize the risk associated with earthquakes, fiower
loss, telecommunications failure, and other evbat®nd our control.

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of trade secret, trademazoRyright and patent laws in the United States @ther
jurisdictions together with confidentiality agreemt®and technical measures to protect the confalénptof our
proprietary rights. We currently have two paterlmations pending in the United States and noedguatents. We
rely much more heavily on trade secret protecti@mtpatent protection. To protect our trade secnetcontrol
access to our proprietary systems and technolodeater into confidentiality and invention assigminggreements
with our employees and consultants and confidetytiagreements with other third parties. QuinStiset registere
trademark in the United States and other jurisoiiti We also have registered and unregisterednrads for the
names of many of our websites and we own the donegistrations for our many website domains.

We cannot guarantee that our intellectual propegtyts will provide competitive advantages to uss ability
to assert our intellectual property rights agapatential competitors or to settle current or fatdisputes will not b
limited by our agreements with third parties; auellectual property rights will be enforced inigdictions where
competition may be intense or where legal proteatiay be weak; any of the trade secrets, trademeokgrights,
patents or other intellectual property rights tlvatpresently employ in our business will not lapsée invalidated,
circumvented, challenged, or abandoned; competitdrsiot design around our protected systems anotriology;
or that we will not lose the ability to assert atellectual property rights against others.

Our Competitors

Our primary competition falls into two categoriaslvertising and direct marketing services ageramesonline
marketing and media companies. We compete for basion the basis of a number of factors includétgrn on
marketing expenditures, price, access to targetsianability to deliver large volumes or precigees of customer
prospects, and reliability.

Advertising and direct marketing services agencies

Online and offline advertising and direct marketgggvices agencies control the majority of thedastipnt
marketing spending for which we primarily compe&e, while they are sometimes our competitors, dgerare
also often our clients. We compete with agenciegttiact marketing budget or spending from offlioams to the
Internet or, once designated to be spent onlineetspent with us versus the agency or by the ggeitls others.
When spending online, agencies spend with QuinSare with portals, other websites and ad networks.
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Online marketing and media companie

We compete with other Internet marketing and medrapanies, in many forms, for online marketing katdg
Most of these competitors compete with us in onica. Examples include BankRate in the finansivices
client vertical and Monster Worldwide in the edugatclient vertical. Some of our competition algores from
agencies or clients spending directly with largebsites or portals, including Google, Yahoo!, M&Nd AOL.

Government Regulation

Advertising and promotional information presentedisitors on our websites and our other markegiciiyities
are subject to federal and state consumer protelztios that regulate unfair and deceptive practi€asre are a
variety of state and federal restrictions on thekaeiing activities conducted by telephone, the raalhy email, or
over the internet, including the Telemarketing S&elle, state telemarketing laws, federal and giaacy laws,
the CAN-SPAM Act, and the Federal Trade Commisgiohand its accompanying regulations and guidelifres
addition, some of our clients operate in regulateldistries, particularly in our financial serviceslucation and
medical verticals. For example, the U.S. Real EsEattlement Procedures Act, or RESPA, regulatepdlyments
that may be made to mortgage brokers. While wead@ngage in the activities of a traditional moggdroker, we
are licensed as a mortgage broker in 25 statesufoonline marketing activities. In our educatidiert vertical, our
clients are subject to the U.S. Higher Educatioty hich, among other things, prohibits incentieenpensation in
recruiting students. On June 18, 2010, the U.Sabeyent of Education issued a Notice of ProposddRaking in
which it has proposed repealing all existing safbhbrs regarding incentive compensation in reergijtincluding
the Internet safe harbor. The proposed regulastate that payment for contact information or comsu“clicks” do
not constitute incentive compensation for purpaddbe Higher Education Act provided that therads
commission, bonus or other incentive payment bdgedtly or indirectly upon success in securingoiments.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, results of the rusdsing could impact how we are paid for leads bgras in oul
education client vertical and could also impact @ducation clients and their marketing practicesaddition, other
provisions of the proposed regulations, such aptbposal on “gainful employment” that would restfrederal
financial aid to students in programs where certigibt-to-income ratios and loan default rates atesatisfied,
could limit our clientsbusinesses and, therefore, ours. In our mediatcliertical, our medical device and supg
clients are subject to state and federal kictiback statutes that prohibit payment for refistrévhile we believe ot
matching of prospective customers with our cliertd the manner in which we are paid for these isiesvcomplies
with these and other applicable regulations, thekes and regulations in many cases were not dpedlwith online
marketing in mind and their applicability is nowvalys clear. The rules and regulations are compiexnaay be
subject to different interpretations by courts tirem governmental authorities. We might uninterdibnviolate sucl
laws, such laws may be modified and new laws magraeted in the future. Any such developments (or
developments stemming from enactment or modificatibother laws) or the failure to anticipate aetaly the
application or interpretation of these laws coulelate liability to us, result in adverse publicityd negatively affect
our businesses.

Employees

As of June 30, 2010, we had 637 employees, whidded 184 employees in product development and
engineering, 69 in sales and marketing, 58 in gdreard administration and 326 in operations. Ndnauo
employees is represented by a labor union.

Available Information

We file reports with the Securities and Exchangen@dssion (“SEC"), including annual reports on
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, curmemorts on Form 8-K and any other filings requibgadhe SEC.
We make available free of charge on our websitéhganvestor relations page www.quinstreet.comawsurual
report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 1,z@rent reports on Form 8-K, and all amendmenthdse
reports as soon as reasonably practicable aftbrreaterial is electronically filed with or furnisthéo the SEC. We
also webcast our earnings calls and certain evemt®iay participate in or host with members of theestment
community on our investor relations page. The aundé our website is not intended to be incorpatdtg reference
into this report or in any other report or documestfile and any reference to this website is ideghto be inactive
textual references only.
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The public may read and copy any materials we/fite the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at
100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. The puhbgy obtain information on the operation of the Rubl
Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0B88 SEC maintains an Internet site
(http://www.sec.govjhat contains reports, proxy and information staets, and other information regarding iss
that file electronically with the SEC.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The name of and certain information regarding edabur current executive officers as of June 3d,@8re set

forth below.

Name Age Position

Douglas Valent 50 Chief Executive Officer and Chairmi
Bronwyn Syiek 46 President and Chief Operating Offic
Kenneth Haht 43 Chief Financial Office

Tom Cheli 39 Executive Vice Presidel

Scott Mackley 37 Executive Vice Presidel

Nina Bhanay 37 Chief Technology Office

Daniel Caul 44 General Counst

Timothy Steven: 43 Senior Vice Presidel

Douglas Valenthas served as our Chief Executive Officer and mermabeur board of directors since July 1!
and as our Chairman and Chief Executive Officecesilarch 2004. Prior to QuinStreet, Mr. Valentiveet as a
partner at Rosewood Capital, a venture capital, ffanfive years; at McKinsey & Company as a stggteonsultant
and engagement manager for three years; at P@&eamble in various management roles for threesjeand for
the U.S. Navy as a nuclear submarine officer fag fiears. He holds a Bachelors degree in Indu&rigineering
from the Georgia Institute of Technology, wheregheduated with highest honors and was named theg@ebech
Outstanding Senior in 1982, and an M.B.A. from $tanford Graduate School of Business, where heawdsjay
Miller Scholar.

Bronwyn Syiekas served as our President and Chief OperatirigegDfince February 2007, as our Chief
Operating Officer from April 2004 to February 20@8, Senior Vice President from September 2000 til 2p04,
as Vice President from her start date in March 2008eptember 2000 and as a consultant to us fubn1999 to
March 2000. Prior to joining us, Ms. Syiek servediarector of Business Development and memberef th
Executive Committee at De La Rue Plc, a banknatgipg and security product company, for three ge&he
previously served as a strategy consultant andgemgant manager at McKinsey & Company for four yeaud helc
various investment management and banking positigtisLIoyds Bank and Charterhouse Bank. She hafdM.A.
in Natural Sciences from Cambridge University ia thnited Kingdom.

Kenneth Hahras served as our Chief Financial Officer sincet&aper 2006. Prior to joining us, Mr. Hahn
served as Chief Financial Officer of Borland Softev€orporation, a public software company, from
September 2002 to July 2006. Previously, Mr. Hadmed in various roles, including Chief Financidfi€er, of
Extensity, Inc., a public software company, foefigears; as a strategy consultant at the Bostosultorg Group
for three years; and as an audit manager at PreteMbuse, a public accounting firm, for five ye&is holds a
B.A. in Business from California State Universityllerton, summa cum laude, and an M.B.A. from ttenfrd
Graduate School of Business, where he was an Mijligr Scholar. Mr. Hahn is also a Certified Pubficcountant
(inactive), licensed in the state of California.

Tom Chelihas served as our Executive Vice President sinbeuBey 2007, as Senior Vice President from
December 2004 to February 2007, as Vice Presidebdles from January 2001 to December 2004 andrastbr
of Sales from February 2000 to January 2001. Reigeining us, Mr. Cheli served as Director of bhsiSales and
Sales Operations at Collagen Aesthetics Corporatinraesthetic biomedical device company, and gfoRal Sale
Manager at Akorn Ophthalmics, Inc., a specialtyrpteceutical company. He holds a B.A. in Sports Mie@i from
the University of the Pacific.
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Scott Mackleyas served as our Executive Vice President sinbauBgey 2007, as Senior Vice President from
December 2004 to February 2007, as Vice Presidemt June 2003 to December 2004, as Senior Diréctor
February 2002 to June 2003, as Director from O¢t@PB80 to February 2002 and as Senior Manager, diktw
Management from May 2000 to October 2000. Prigoiteing us, Mr. Mackley served at Salomon Brothemsl
Salomon Smith Barney, in various roles in their Bg@irading unit and Investment Banking and Eq@igpital
Markets divisions over four years. He holds a BrAEconomics from Washington and Lee University.

Nina Bhanaghas served as our Chief Technology Officer sindg 2009, as our Senior Vice President of
Engineering from November 2006 to July 2009, as\Recesident of Product Development from Januaryt 200
November 2006, as Senior Director from January 20Q&nuary 2004 and as Director of Product Manage
from October 2001 to January 2003. Prior to joinisgMs. Bhanap served as Head of Fixed IncomesSale
Technology for Europe at Morgan Stanley for fivasgeand as a senior associate at Booz Allen Hamfittoone
year. She holds a B.S. in Computer Science withdrofrom Imperial College, University of London,caan
M.B.A. from the London Business School.

Daniel Caulhas served as our General Counsel since Janua8y Pfi0r to joining us, Mr. Caul served as
General Counsel for the Search and Media divisidA@/InterActiveCorp, an Internet search and adigérg
company, from September 2006 to January 2008, aadtp the acquisition by IAC/InterActiveCorp, hes
Assistant General Counsel of Ask Jeeves, Inc. frefiruary 2003 to September 2006. Previously, Mul @as an
attorney with Howard, Rice, Nemerovsky, CanadykRald Rabkin, a corporate law firm, for four yearsl served
as a U.S. District Court clerk. He holds a B.APiolitical Science from Vanderbilt University, sumeam laude,
and a J.D. from the Harvard Law School, magna audé. Mr. Caul was also a Fulbright Scholar.

Timothy Stevensas served as our Senior Vice President since ©cfi08. Prior to joining us, Mr. Stevens
served as President and CEO of Doppelganger,dn@nline social entertainment studio, from Jan2aQ§7 to
October 2008. Prior to Doppelganger, Mr. Stevemngeskas General Counsel for Borland Software Ceatpanm, a
software company, from October 2003 to June 2088:i&usly, he served in various executive managémudes,
including most recently as Senior Vice Presidertofporate Development, at Inktomi Corporation|reernet
infrastructure company, during his six year ten@meviously, Mr. Stevens was an attorney with Wil§onsini
Goodrich & Rosati, a corporate law firm, for sixays. He holds a B.S. in both Finance and Manageframtthe
University of Oregon, summa cum laude, and a Y@nfthe University of California at Davis, Ordertbe Coif.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Investing in our common stock involves a high degrferisk. You should carefully consider the ridkscribed
below and the other information in this report oarf 10-K. If any of such risks actually occur, dwsiness,
operating results or financial condition could beéversely affected. In those cases, the tradingepsfoour common
stock could decline and you may lose all or payair investment.

Risks Related to Our Business and Industry

We operate in an immature industry and have a rélaty new business model, which makes it diffictdt
evaluate our business and prospects.

We derive nearly all of our revenue from the sdlerdine marketing and media services, which isnamature
industry that has undergone rapid and dramaticgdem its short history. The industry in which egerate is
characterized by rapidly-changing Internet media)\éng industry standards, and changing user dirdtc
demands. Our business model is also evolving aditisict from many other companies in our indusényd it may
not be successful. As a result of these factoesfuture revenue and income potential of our bissing uncertain.
Although we have experienced significant revenuewjn in recent periods, we may not be able to sustarent
revenue levels or growth rates. Any evaluationwflousiness and our prospects must be considetgphtrof these
factors and the risks and uncertainties often emewsad by companies in an immature industry witkeawslving
business model such as ours. Some of these riskgranertainties relate to our ability to:

« maintain and expand client relationshi

« sustain and increase the number of visitors ton@bsites
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« sustain and grow relationships with tl-party website publishers and other sources of vigtoxs;

¢ manage our expanding operations and implemwgthimprove our operational, financial and manageme
controls;

* raise capital at attractive costs, or at

« acquire and integrate websites and other businge

 successfully expand our footprint in our existitigrtt verticals and enter new client vertic:

« respond effectively to competition and potentiajaeve effects of competition on profit margi

« attract and retain qualified management, emplogeesndependent service provide

« successfully introduce new processes and techresl@gid upgrade our existing technologies and &,
« protect our proprietary technology and intellectuaperty rights; an

* respond to government regulations relatinth&lnternet, marketing in our client verticalsygmnal data
protection, email, software technologies and o#fsgrects of our busines

If we are unable to address these risks, our bssjmesults of operations and prospects couldrsuffe

We depend upon Internet search companies to atti@asignificant portion of the visitors to our wehss, and
any change in the search companies’ search algomith or perception of us or our industry could resitt our
websites being listed less prominently in eitheicpar algorithmic search result listings, in whichase the
number of visitors to our websites and our reverzauld decline.

We depend in significant part on various Interreatrsh companies, such as Google, Microsoft and dahod
other search websites to direct a significant nurobeisitors to our websites to provide our onlmarketing
services to our clients. Search websites typiqaibvide two types of search results, algorithmid paid listings.
Algorithmic, or organic, listings are determinediatisplayed solely by a set of formulas designeddarch
companies. Paid listings can be purchased andatteedisplayed if particular words are included usar’s Internet
search. Placement in paid listings is generallydedérmined solely on the bid price, but also takesaccount the
search engines’ assessment of the quality of weelesittured in the paid listing and other factorg My on both
algorithmic and paid search results, as well agdiding on other websites, to direct a substastiale of the
visitors to our websites.

Our ability to maintain the number of visitors toravebsites from search websites and other welisitast
entirely within our control. For example, Interseiarch websites frequently revise their algoritimren attempt to
optimize their search result listings or to maintiieir internal standards and strategies. Chainge algorithms
could cause our websites to receive less favogdhtEments, which could reduce the number of ugkesvisit our
websites. Changes to search engine user interfaels,as Google Instant, may also adversely inthaatumber of
users we attract to our websites. Throughout tlaesyae have experienced fluctuations in the seaslit rankings
for a number of our websites. We may make decidioatsare suboptimal regarding the purchase of lgidgs or
our proprietary bid management technologies mayadomefects or otherwise fail to achieve theieimted results,
either of which could also reduce the number dteis to our websites or cause us to incur addiicosts. We me
also make decisions that are suboptimal regardieglacement of advertisements on other websitggacing,
which could increase our costs to attract suchiorsior cause us to incur unnecessary costs. Quoaghes may be
deemed similar to those of our competitors andrsthreour industry that Internet search websiteg owmsider to
be unsuitable or unattractive. Internet search itehsould deem our content to be unsuitable avbestandards or
less attractive or worthy than those of other anpeting websites. In either such case, our websitgsreceive les
favorable placement. Any reduction in the numberisitors to our websites would negatively affeat ability to
earn revenue. If visits to our websites decreasemay need to resort to more costly sources tacegbst visitors,
and such increased expense could adversely affettusiness and profitability.
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A substantial portion of our revenue is generatedrn a limited number of clients and, if we lose aajuor client,
our revenue will decrease and our business and pexss would be adversely impacted.

A substantial portion of our revenue is generatethfa limited number of clients. Our top three mige
accounted for 23% and 32% of our net revenue ®ffiftal years 2010 and 2009, respectively. Oentsi can
generally terminate their contracts with us at timg, with limited prior notice or penalty. DeVrgd., one of our
large clients, retained an advertising agency addaed its purchases of leads from us beginninghitrer 2009.
DeVry and other clients may reduce their level edibhess with us, leading to lower revenue. We exibedt a
limited number of clients will continue to accodat a significant percentage of our revenue, arddls of, or
material reduction in, their marketing spendingwis could decrease our revenue and harm our lagsine

There is significant activity and uncertainty in thregulatory and legislative environment for therfprofit
education sector. These regulatory or legislativeaoges could negatively affect our clients’ busiises,
marketing practices and budgets and could impacit@ed, pricing or form of our services, any or alf which
could have a material adverse impact on our finaacresults.

We generate nearly half of our revenue from ourcatian client vertical and nearly all of that reueris
generated from for-profit educational institutioibere is intense governmental interest in andtisgrof the for-
profit education industry and a high degree of foon marketing practices in the industry. The Depant of
Education has promulgated proposed regulationscthdt adversely impact us and our education diefite
intense focus on the for-profit education industoyld result in further regulatory or legislativetian. We cannot
predict whether this will happen or what the impamtld be on our financial results.

Over the past year, the Department of Educatiorbbas working on revised regulations under theedhit
States Higher Education Act. The Higher Educatiah Administered by the U.S. Department of Educatio
provides that to be eligible to participate in Fedistudent financial aid programs, an educatiamltution must
enter into a program participation agreement with$ecretary of the Department of Education. Theeagent
includes a number of conditions with which an itagtbn must comply to be granted initial and countiny eligibility
to participate. Among those conditions is a prdiohion institutions providing to any individual entity engaged
in recruiting or admission activities any commissibonus, or other incentive payment based dir@etipdirectly
on success in securing enrollments. The currentdaggns promulgated under the Higher Educationgpecify a
number of types of compensation, or “safe harbdhgt do not constitute incentive compensationiatetion of this
agreement. One of these safe harbors permits titufim to award incentive compensation for Inttrbased
recruitment and admission activities that provitfeimation about the institution to prospectivedstuts, refer
prospective students to the institution, or pepnitspective students to apply for admission onliirem November
2009 until January 2010, the U.S. Department ofdatlan engaged in a negotiated rulemaking pro&=sause the
negotiated rulemaking did not reach consensus @poged regulations, the Department of Educatiaretss
proposed regulations on June 18, 2010 on incentivgpensation and other matters. The Departmenidjsogsed
regulations would repeal all safe harbors regardingntive compensation, including the Interneedsrbor. The
statutory deadline for publication of final regudais is November 1, 2010. The elimination of thie arbors could
create uncertainty for us and our education cliantsimpact the way in which we are paid by owrtk and,
accordingly, could reduce the amount of revenugererate from the education client vertical.

In addition, other provisions of the proposed ratiahs, such as the proposal on “gainful employhiatt
would restrict or eliminate Federal financial asdstudents in programs where certain debt-to-incaties and loan
default rates are not satisfied, could affect dupe our clients’ businesses and, as a resulttaifenaterially
reduce the amount of revenue we generate from ttl@ses.

Moreover, some of our education clients have hadnaay in the future have issues regarding theidecéc
accreditation, which could adversely affect théitigy to offer certain degree programs. If anyooir significant
education clients lose their accreditation, they megluce or eliminate their marketing spending,ctdould
adversely affect our financial results.
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Any of the aforementioned regulatory or legislatiigks could cause some or all of our educatioentsi to
significantly shrink or even to cease doing bussnesich could have a material adverse effect arfinancial
results.

We are dependent on two market verticals for a néyoof our revenue. Negative changes in the ecoriom
condition or regulatory environment in one or bothf these verticals could cause our revenue to dezland
our business and growth could suffer.

To date, we have generated a majority of our reedéram clients in our education and financial seesiclient
verticals. We expect that a majority of our reveimuiscal year 2011 will be generated from clieimt®ur educatiol
and financial services client verticals. Changethémarket conditions or the regulatory environtmerthese two
highly-regulated client verticals may negativelyp@at our clients’ businesses, marketing practioesbaidgets and,
therefore, adversely affect our financial results.

Our future growth depends in part on our ability tdentify and complete acquisitions.

Our growth over the past several years is in sicgnit part due to the large number of acquisitiwashave
completed. We have completed a large number ofisitiqas of third-party website publishing businessnd other
businesses that are complementary to our own. Yadrto pursue acquisitions of complementary bssieg and
technologies to expand our capabilities, clienetasd media. We have evaluated, and expect toncento
evaluate, a wide array of potential strategic tagtions. However, we may not be successful in ifiéng suitable
acquisition candidates or be able to complete adipns of such candidates. In addition, we mayh®able to
obtain financing on favorable terms, or at allfund acquisitions that we may wish to pursue.

Any acquisitions that we complete will involve amber of risks. If we are unable to address and riesathese
risks successfully, such acquisitions could harmrdausiness, results of operations and financial atition.

The anticipated benefit of any acquisitions thatoemplete may not materialize. In addition, thecess of
integrating acquired businesses or technologiesareate unforeseen operating difficulties and egfiares. Some
of the areas where we may face acquisition-relasid include:

« diversion of management time and potential busidessiptions

« difficulties integrating and supporting acquire@gucts or technologie

« expenses, distractions and potential claims reguftom acquisitions, whether or not they are cataa;
« retaining and integrating employees from any bissiae we may acquir

« issuance of dilutive equity securities, incurrentdebt or reduction in cash balanc

« integrating various accounting, managemefisimation, human resource and other systems toiperm
effective managemer

« incurring possible impairment charges, contingettilities, amortization expense or w-offs of goodwiill;
« unexpected capital expenditure requireme

« insufficient revenue to offset increased expensss@ated with acquisition

« underperformance problems associated with acouisitianc

« becoming involved in acquisiti-related litigation

Foreign acquisitions would involve risks in additito those mentioned above, including those related
integration of operations across different cultuaed languages, currency risks and the particalananmic,
political, administrative and management, and ra&guy risks associated with specific countries. M&y not be
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able to address these risks successfully, or avahlout incurring significant costs, delay or etloperating
problems. Our inability to resolve such risks colasédm our business and results of operations.

If we are unable to retain the members of our maregent team or attract and retain qualified manageme
team members in the future, our business and growtiuld suffer.

Our success and future growth depend, to a sigmifidegree, on the continued contributions of teenlvers of
our management team. Each member of our managdéeaentis an at-will employee and may voluntarilyrarate
his or her employment with us at any time with mial notice. We also may need to hire additional agament
team members to adequately manage our growing dsssiiVe may not be able to retain or identify airdet
additional qualified management team members. Catiguefor experienced management-level persormebir
industry is intense. Qualified individuals are iglhdemand, particularly in the Internet marketingustry, and we
may incur significant costs to attract and rethient. Members of our management team have also leeaymwill
soon become, substantially vested in their sto¢longrants. Management team members may be nialy tio
leave as a result of the recent establishmentpobéic market for our common stock. If we lose siegvices of any
member of our management team or if we are unaldt¢itact and retain additional qualified seniomagers, our
business and growth could suffer.

We need to hire and retain additional qualified mamnel to grow and manage our business. If we arable to
attract and retain qualified personnel, our businegand growth could be seriously harmed.

Our performance depends on the talents and effbdar employees. Our future success will dependum
ability to attract, retain and motivate highly $kil personnel in all areas of our organization amgarticular, in our
engineering/technology, sales and marketing, médince and legal/regulatory teams. We plan tdinae to grow
our business and will need to hire additional pensbto support this growth. We have found it difft from time tc
time to locate and hire suitable personnel. If wgegience similar difficulties in the future, ourogvth may be
hindered. Qualified individuals are in high demapaiiticularly in the Internet marketing industrmdave may incur
significant costs to attract and retain them. Mahgur employees have also become, or will soomine;
substantially vested in their stock option graBisiployees may be more likely to leave us as atrestihe recent
establishment of a public market for our commorwlstdf we are unable to attract and retain the gramsl we need
to succeed, our business and growth could be harmed

We depend on third-party website publishers forignéficant portion of our visitors, and any declina the
supply of media available through these websitesnmrease in the price of this media could causer eavenue
to decline or our cost to reach visitors to increas

A significant portion of our revenue is attributalwd visitors originating from advertising placertethat we
purchase on third-party websites. In many instaneebsite publishers can change the advertisingnitory they
make available to us at any time and, thereforpachour revenue. In addition, website publisheay place
significant restrictions on our offerings. Thesstrietions may prohibit advertisements from spedifients or
specific industries, or restrict the use of certaiative content or formats. If a website publisthecides not to mal
advertising inventory available to us, or decidedémand a higher revenue share or places sigmifieatrictions o
the use of such inventory, we may not be ablento &idvertising inventory from other websites ttais$y our
requirements in a timely and cost-effective mantreaddition, the number of competing online mairigservice
providers and advertisers that acquire inventargnfivebsites continues to increase. Consolidatidntefnet
advertising networks and website publishers coushtually lead to a concentration of desirable imaey on a
small number of websites or networks, which coirtlthe supply of inventory available to us orriease the price
of inventory to us. We cannot assure you that wehagiable to acquire advertising inventory thaetseour clients’
performance, price and quality requirements. If ahthese things occur, our revenue could declinguo operating
costs may increase.
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If we do not effectively manage our growth, our apéing performance will suffer and we may lose atis.

We have experienced rapid growth in our operatasoperating locations, and we expect to expegienc
continued growth in our business, both through &itipns and internal growth. This growth has pthcand will
continue to place, significant demands on our mamamt and our operational and financial infrastmectin
particular, continued rapid growth and acquisitiomesy make it more difficult for us to accompliste ttollowing:

* successfully scale our technology to accommodédegar business and integrate acquisitic

e maintain our standing with key vendors, inaghgdinternet search companies and third-party websi
publishers

* maintain our client service standards; i

« develop and improve our operational, finanaia management controls and maintain adequatetirepo
systems and procedurt

In addition, our personnel, systems, procedurescanttols may be inadequate to support our futpegations.
The improvements required to manage our growthreglire us to make significant expenditures, egpé&main anc
manage our employee base and allocate valuablegmangat resources. If we fail to effectively managegrowth,
our operating performance will suffer and we maselalients, key vendors and key personnel.

We have incurred a significant amount of debt, whieay limit our ability to fund general corporate
requirements and obtain additional financing, limaur flexibility in responding to business opportities and
competitive developments and increase our vulneligbto adverse economic and industry conditions.

As of June 30, 2010, we had an outstanding termgth a principal balance of $34.2 million andeaalving
credit line pursuant to which we can borrow upricadditional $140.0 million. As of such date, wel ldrawn
$41.8 million from our revolving credit line. As dfine 30, 2010, we also had outstanding notedl&arssarising
from numerous acquisitions in the total principalocaunt of $19.5 million. As a result of our debt:

* we may not have sufficient liquidity to resgloio business opportunities, competitive developgsiand
adverse economic conditior

< we may not have sufficient liquidity to fund all thfese costs if our revenue declines or costs asereanc
< we may not have sufficient funds to repay the ppalcbalance of our debt when di

Our debt obligations may also impair our abilityotstain additional financing, if needed. Our indshtess is
secured by substantially all of our assets, leaumgith limited collateral for additional finanginMoreover, the
terms of our indebtedness restrict our abilityaicet certain actions, including the incurrence afigahal
indebtedness, mergers and acquisitions, investnaaadtssset sales. In addition, even if we aretahlaise needed
equity financing, we are required to use a portibthe net proceeds of certain types of equityrfaiags to repay
the outstanding balance of our term loan. A faikarpay interest or indebtedness when due couldtriesa variety
of adverse consequences, including the accelerationr indebtedness. In such a situation, it i&kety that we
would be able to fulfill our obligations under atnedit facility or repay the accelerated indebtesdnar otherwise
cover our costs.

The severe economic downturn in the United Statesgs additional risks to our business, financialrabtion
and results of operations.

The United States has experienced, and is contirtoiexperience, a severe economic downturn. Tdwitcr
crisis, deterioration of global economies, potdntisolvency of one or more countries globally, highemployment
and reduced equity valuations all create risks¢batd harm our business. If macroeconomic conuitiworsen, we
are not able to predict the impact such worsenorglitions will have on the online marketing indystr general,
and our results of operations specifically. Clientparticular client verticals such as financi@hsces, particularly
mortgage, credit cards and deposits, small- andumedized business customers and home services
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are facing very difficult conditions and their matikug spend has been negatively affected. Thesditemrs could
also damage our business opportunities in existiagkets, and reduce our revenue and profitabilitile the effec
of these and related conditions poses widesprekadross our business, we believe that it maycpdatly affect
our efforts in the mortgage, credit cards and digpasmall- and medium-sized business and homeécssrelient
verticals, due to reduced availability of credit fmuseholds and business and reduced househplusdisie incom:
Economic conditions may not improve or may worsen.

Poor perception of our business or industry as auét of the actions of third parties could harm oueputation
and adversely affect our business, financial condit and results of operations.

Our business is dependent on attracting a largéeuof visitors to our websites and providing leadd clicks
to our clients, which depends in part on our refportawithin the industry and with our clients. Theare companies
within our industry that regularly engage in adtes that our clients’ customers may view as unldwf
inappropriate. These activities, such as spywaneoeptive promotions, by third parties may be $sedients as
characteristic of participants in our industry atidrefore, may have an adverse effect on the aépuatof all
participants in our industry, including us. Any dage to our reputation, including from publicity findegal
proceedings against us or companies that work mvaghi industry, governmental proceedings, consuafass actio
litigation, or the disclosure of information sedyibbreaches or private information misuse, couldeasely affect ou
business, financial condition and results of openat

Our operating results have fluctuated in the pasidamay do so in the future, which makes our resuifs
operations difficult to predict and could cause ooperating results to fall short of analysts’ andvestors’
expectations.

While we have experienced continued revenue grooethprior quarterly and annual operating resudteeh
fluctuated due to changes in our business, oursindand the general economic climate. Similarly, faiture
operating results may vary significantly from qeaito quarter due to a variety of factors, manwbich are beyon
our control. Our fluctuating results could cause performance to be below the expectations of séesianalysts
and investors, causing the price of our commonkstodall. Because our business is changing and/ag our
historical operating results may not be usefulda in predicting our future operating results. Baegthat may
increase the volatility of our operating resultslirde the following:

» changes in demand and pricing for our servi

« changes in our pricing policies, the pricing pagf our competitors, or the pricing of Interngtertising o
media;

« the addition of new clients or the loss of existatignts;

< changes in our clients’ advertising agenciethe marketing strategies our clients or theireatising
agencies employ

« changes in the regulatory environment for us oratients;

» changes in the economic prospects of our tslienthe economy generally, which could alter entior
prospective clients’ spending priorities, or couldrease the time or costs required to completssaith
clients;

« changes in the availability of Internet advertisorghe cost to reach Internet visitc
« changes in the placement of our websites on sesugimes
« the introduction of new product or service offesryy our competitors; ar

* costs related to acquisitions of businesses ontdogies.
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Our quarterly revenue and operating results may d¢luate significantly from quarter to quarter due ®easona
fluctuations in advertising spending.

The timing of our revenue, particularly from oumedtion and business-to-business client vertitakffected
by seasonal factors. For example, in our educatient vertical, the first quarter of each fiscaly typically
demonstrates seasonal strength and our secontdisader typically demonstrates seasonal weakmessir
second fiscal quarter, our education clients oftadee fewer leads due to holiday staffing and loaseilability of
lead supply caused by higher media pricing for séomas of media during the holiday period, causing revenue
to be sequentially lower. Our fluctuating resultsild cause our performance to be below the expentaof
securities analysts and investors, causing the pfiour common stock to fall. To the extent ode maf growth
slows, we expect that the seasonality in our bgsimeay become more apparent and may in the futwsecur
operating results to fluctuate to a greater extent.

We may need additional capital in the future to nt@air financial obligations and to pursue our buséss
objectives. Additional capital may not be availaldemay not be available on favorable terms and duursiness
and financial condition could therefore be advergadffected.

While we anticipate that our existing cash and @aphivalents, together with availability under euisting
credit facility, cash balances and cash from ojmraf will be sufficient to fund our operations ftrleast the next
12 months, we may need to raise additional cafuthind operations in the future or to finance asigons. If we
seek to raise additional capital in order to mesious objectives, including developing future tealogies and
services, increasing working capital, acquiringibesses and responding to competitive pressurpiatmay not
be available on favorable terms or may not be akglat all. In addition, pursuant to the termswf credit facility,
we are required to use a portion of the net prageédertain equity financings to repay the outdiag balance of
our term loan. Lack of sufficient capital resourcesild significantly limit our ability to take admtage of business
and strategic opportunities. Any additional capitased through the sale of equity or debt se@sritiith an equity
component would dilute our stock ownership. If atitg additional funds are not available, we mayebeired to
delay, reduce the scope of, or eliminate mategatispof our business strategy, including potetiflitional
acquisitions or development of new technologies.

If we fail to compete effectively against other am marketing and media companies and other comizet, we
could lose clients and our revenue may decline.

The market for online marketing is intensely coritpat. We expect this competition to continue torgase in
the future. We perceive only limited barriers targrio the online marketing industry. We competéhtior clients
and for limited high quality advertising inventole compete for clients on the basis of a numbéaaibrs,
including return on marketing expenditures, prangd client service.

We compete with Internet and traditional media canigs for a share of clients’ overall marketing dpeid,
including:

 online marketing or media services providershsas Monster Worldwide in the education clientieal and
BankRate in the financial services client vertit

« offline and online advertising agencit

« major Internet portals and search engine comegavith advertising networks such as Google, 64hdSN,
and AOL;

« other online marketing service providers, utithg online affiliate advertising networks andustry-specific
portals or lead generation compan

» website publishers with their own sales forces sedittheir online marketing services directly tewots;
* in-house marketing groups at current or potentiahtdi

« offline direct marketing agencies; a

« television, radio and print companit
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Competition for web traffic among websites and skeangines, as well as competition with traditiomaidia
companies, could result in significant price pressdeclining margins, reductions in revenue aisd af market
share. In addition, as we continue to expand tbpesof our services, we may compete with a greatetber of
websites, clients and traditional media companiéesss an increasing range of different servicesuding in
vertical markets where competitors may have adgastén expertise, brand recognition and other ateage
Internet companies with brand recognition, suclasgle, Yahoo!, MSN, and AOL, have significant nuarof
direct sales personnel and substantial proprietdwertising inventory and web traffic that provasignificant
competitive advantage and have significant impagpricing for Internet advertising and web traffihese
companies may also develop more vertically targpteducts that match consumers with products andces,
such as Google’s mortgage rate and credit card adegn products, and thus compete with us morettijrerhe
trend toward consolidation in the Internet advertjisarena may also affect pricing and availabitifyadvertising
inventory and web traffic. Many of our current gratential competitors also enjoy other competitideantages
over us, such as longer operating histories, gréassmd recognition, larger client bases, greateess to advertisir
inventory on high-traffic websites, and signifidgrgreater financial, technical and marketing reses. As a result,
we may not be able to compete successfully. Ifailed deliver results that are superior to thdssd bther online
marketing service providers achieve, we could W&mts and our revenue may decline.

If the market for online marketing services fail® tcontinue to develop, our future growth may be iied and
our revenue may decrease.

The online marketing services market is relativedyv and rapidly evolving, and it uses different mgaments
than traditional media to gauge its effectiven&smne of our current or potential clients haveditit no experience
using the Internet for advertising and marketingppses and have allocated only limited portionthefr advertisin
and marketing budgets to the Internet. The adoptfdnternet advertising, particularly by thoseites that have
historically relied upon traditional media for adtiging, requires the acceptance of a new way otiooting
business, exchanging information and evaluating agwvertising and marketing technologies and sesvice
particular, we are dependent on our clients’ adoptif new metrics to measure the success of omer&eting
campaigns. We may also experience resistance fiamfitional advertising agencies who may be advisimg
clients. We cannot assure you that the marketribn® marketing services will continue to growthe market for
online marketing services fails to continue to deper develops more slowly than we anticipate, ahility to grow
our business may be limited and our revenue masedse.

Third-party website publishers can engage in unaatized or unlawful acts that could subject us tasificant
liability or cause us to lose clients.

We generate a significant portion of our web vistiiom media advertising that we purchase fromdtparty
website publishers. Some of these publishers ahmared to display our clients’ brands, subjectéatractual
restrictions. In the past, some of our third-pavgbsite publishers have engaged in activitiesd¢lghin of our
clients have viewed as harmful to their brandshsasdisplaying outdated descriptions of a clieotfsrings or
outdated logos. Any activity by publishers thaents view as potentially damaging to their brarais fltarm our
relationship with the client and cause the clierterminate its relationship with us, resultingifoss of revenue. In
addition, the law is unsettled on the extent dility that an advertiser in our position has foe tactivities of third-
party website publishers. We could be subject ilgditigation and, if we are unsuccessful in defing ourselves,
damages for the unauthorized or unlawful acts iofitharty website publishers.

Because many of our client contracts can be canedlby the client with little prior notice or pengltthe
cancellation of one or more contracts could resuitan immediate decline in our revenue.

We derive our revenue from contracts with our Imé¢marketing clients, most of which are cancelabth
little or no prior notice. In addition, these catts do not contain penalty provisions for cantielfebefore the end
of the contract term. The non-renewal, renegotmtiancellation, or deferral of large contractsa srumber of
contracts that in the aggregate account for afignit amount of our revenue, is difficult to afp&te and could
result in an immediate decline in our revenue.
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Unauthorized access to or accidental disclosurecohsumer personal-identifiable information that we collec
may cause us to incur significant expenses and magatively affect our credibility and business.

There is growing concern over the security of peasinformation transmitted over the Internet, agnsr
identity theft and user privacy. Despite our impégrtation of security measures, our computer systeaysbe
susceptible to electronic or physical computer kiiea, viruses and other disruptions and securiéabhes. Any
perceived or actual unauthorized disclosure ofqeaky-identifiable information regarding website visitovghethe
through breach of our network by an unauthorizatypamployee theft, misuse or error or otherwgs®jld harm
our reputation, impair our ability to attract wetbsiisitors and attract and retain our clientssudsject us to claims
litigation arising from damages suffered by constanend thereby harm our business and operatingisemn
addition, we could incur significant costs in cogipy with the multitude of state, federal and fgrelaws regardin
the unauthorized disclosure of personal information

If we do not adequately protect our intellectualqerty rights, our competitive position and busisesay
suffer.

Our ability to compete effectively depends upon puaprietary systems and technology. We rely odera
secret, trademark and copyright law, confidentiaigreements, technical measures and patentstecpour
proprietary rights. We currently have two patenlmations pending in the United States and noeduatents.
Effective trade secret, copyright, trademark anemtgprotection may not be available in all cowegnvhere we
currently operate or in which we may operate inftliare. Some of our systems and technologies @reavered by
any copyright, patent or patent application. Wenodmguarantee that: (i) our intellectual properghts will provide
competitive advantages to us; (ii) our ability &sart our intellectual property rights against ptisé competitors or
to settle current or future disputes will not bmited by our agreements with third parties; (iiiy éntellectual
property rights will be enforced in jurisdictiondiere competition may be intense or where legakptmn may be
weak; (iv) any of the patents, trademarks, copysgtiade secrets or other intellectual propediits that we
presently employ in our business will not lapséeiinvalidated, circumvented, challenged, or abaadp
(v) competitors will not design around our protelcsgstems and technology; or (vi) that we will luste the ability
to assert our intellectual property rights agaoikers.

We are a party to a number of third-party intelletfproperty license agreements and in the futues; need to
obtain additional licenses or renew existing li@agreements. We are unable to predict with ceytaihether thes
license agreements can be obtained or renewedmmetcially reasonable terms, or at all.

We have from time to time become aware of thirdieamwho we believe may have infringed on our iettlal
property rights. The use of our intellectual prapeights by others could reduce any competitiveaatiage we hav
developed and cause us to lose clients, third-peetysite publishers or otherwise harm our busiréskcing
unauthorized use of our proprietary rights caniffecdlt and costly. In addition, litigation, whilé may be
necessary to enforce or protect our intellectuaperty rights or to defend litigation brought agsins, could result
in substantial costs and diversion of resourcesnaamuagement attention and could adversely affecbosiness,
even if we are successful on the merits.

Confidentiality agreements with employees, consottaand others may not adequately prevent disclesof
trade secrets and other proprietary information.

We have devoted substantial resources to the dawelot of our proprietary systems and technologwrtier
to protect our proprietary systems and technolagyenter into confidentiality agreements with oopdoyees,
consultants, independent contractors and othesadyiThese agreements may not effectively pravwesuithorized
disclosure of confidential information or unautlzexd parties from copying aspects of our servicasbtaining and
using information that we regard as proprietaryrédwer, these agreements may not provide an adergraedy in
the event of such unauthorized disclosures of denfial information and we cannot assure you thatights unde
such agreements will be enforceable. In addititimers may independently discover trade secretpeoptietary
information, and in such cases we could not asssrtrade secret rights against such parties. Yast time-
consuming litigation could be necessary to enfame determine the scope of our
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proprietary rights, and failure to obtain or maintkade secret protection could reduce any cortipethdvantage
we have and cause us to lose clients, publishavtherwise harm our business.

Third parties may sue us for intellectual properityfringement which, if successful, could require us pay
significant damages or curtail our offerings.

We cannot be certain that our internally-developedcquired systems and technologies do not andhatil
infringe the intellectual property rights of othels addition, we license content, software andpthtellectual
property rights from third parties and may be satje claims of infringement if such parties do possess the
necessary intellectual property rights to the potslthey license to us. We have in the past andimgne future be
subject to legal proceedings and claims that we ligivinged the patent or other intellectual prapeights of a
third-party. These claims sometimes involve pabkedtling companies or other adverse patent ownecshalie no
relevant product revenue and against whom our aatenps, if any, may therefore provide little ordeterrence. In
addition, third parties have asserted and mayarfuture assert intellectual property infringemelatms against our
clients, which we have agreed in certain circunstario indemnify and defend against such claimy.iAtellectual
property related infringement claims, whether armeritorious, could result in costly litigationdiwould divert
management resources and attention. Moreover, dlaibe found liable for infringement, we may bguieed to
enter into licensing agreements, if available oreptable terms or at all, pay substantial damagdsnit or curtail
our systems and technologies. Moreover, we may tesztlesign some of our systems and technologiasgdid
future infringement liability. Any of the foregoingpuld prevent us from competing effectively anckr@ase our
costs.

Additionally, the laws relating to use of tradensgda the Internet are currently unsettled, paidulas they
apply to search engine functionality. For examptaer Internet marketing and search companies bage sued in
the past for trademark infringement and other ietélial property-related claims for the displayadf or search
results in response to user queries that inclutietnarked terms. The outcomes of these lawsuits difered fron
jurisdiction to jurisdiction. For this reason, $téonceivable that certain of our activities coetgose us to tradem:
infringement, unfair competition, misappropriationother intellectual property related claims whattuld be costl
to defend and result in substantial damages onetbe limit or curtail our activities, and advengelffect our
business or prospects.

Our proprietary technologies may include designmerformance defects and may not achieve their irded
results, either of which could impair our future reenue growth.

Our proprietary technologies are relatively newd #rey may contain design or performance defeetiséate nc
yet apparent. The use of our proprietary techne®giay not achieve the intended results as eftdgtas othe
technologies that exist now or may be introducedinycompetitors, in which case our business cbaltdarmed.

If we fail to keep pace with rapidly-changing techlogies and industry standards, we could lose clgear
advertising inventory and our results of operationgy suffer.

The business lines in which we currently competechiaracterized by rapidly-changing Internet medid
marketing standards, changing technologies, fretuen product and service introductions, and chajngser and
client demands. The introduction of new technolsgird services embodying new technologies andntieegence
of new industry standards and practices could nreadeexisting technologies and services obsolete a
unmarketable or require unanticipated investmentedhnology. Our future success will depend irt parour
ability to adapt to these rapidbhanging Internet media formats and other technedoyVe will need to enhance «
existing technologies and services and develogrgratiuce new technologies and services to addrasslients’
changing demands. If we fail to adapt successfollsuch developments or timely introduce new tetdgies and
services, we could lose clients, our expenses daatéase and we could lose advertising inventory.
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Changes in government regulation and industry stamds applicable to the Internet and our businessufb
decrease demand for our technologies and serviges@ease our costs.

Laws and regulations that apply to Internet commations, commerce and advertising are becoming more
prevalent. These regulations could increase thes edsonducting business on the Internet and cdef@iease
demand for our technologies and services.

In the United States, federal and state laws haee enacted regarding copyrights, sending of uritadi
commercial email, user privacy, search enginesyiet tracking technologies, direct marketing, da&teurity,
children’s privacy, pricing, sweepstakes, promotions, iattllal property ownership and infringement, traetrets
export of encryption technology, taxation and atakele content and quality of goods. Other laws r@gailations
may be adopted in the future. Laws and regulatimesiding those related to privacy and use of peab
information, are changing rapidly outside the UdhiBtates as well which may make compliance witth $aws and
regulations difficult and which may negatively affeur ability to expand internationally. This Islgition could:

(i) hinder growth in the use of the Internet geflgrdii) decrease the acceptance of the Intersed a
communications, commercial and advertising medifiiihyeduce our revenue; (iv) increase our opeigexpense:
or (v) expose us to significant liabilities.

The laws governing the Internet remain largely tifesty even in areas where there has been sonstdige
action. While we actively monitor this changingaégnd regulatory landscape to stay abreast ofgdsaim the laws
and regulations applicable to our business, waareertain how our business might be affectechleyapplication
of existing laws governing issues such as propestyership, copyrights, encryption and other intdlial property
issues, libel, obscenity and export or import niatte the Internet advertising industry. The vaajarity of such
laws were adopted prior to the advent of the IrgerAs a result, they do not contemplate or additessinique
issues of the Internet and related technologiean@és in laws intended to address such issues caadte
uncertainty in the Internet market. It may takergaa determine how existing laws apply to therimé¢ and Interne
marketing. Such uncertainty makes it difficult tegict costs and could reduce demand for our sesvic increase
the cost of doing business as a result of litigatosts or increased service delivery costs.

In particular, a number of U.S. federal laws impawat business. The Digital Millennium Copyright Aot
DMCA, is intended, in part, to limit the liabilityf eligible online service providers for listing lamking to third-
party websites that include materials that infriegeyrights or other rights. Portions of the Cominations
Decency Act, or CDA, are intended to provide statuprotections to online service providers whdribsite third-
party content. We rely on the protections provibgdoth the DMCA and CDA in conducting our busindss
addition, the United States Higher Education Acivites that to be eligible to participate in Fetlstadent
financial aid programs, an educational institutionst enter into a program participation agreemettt thie
Secretary of the Department of Education. The ages includes a number of conditions with whichirsstitution
must comply to be granted initial and continuinigiellity to participate. Among those conditionsagrohibition or
institutions providing to any individual or entigngaged in recruiting or admission activities aosnmission,
bonus, or other incentive payment based directipdirectly on success in securing enroliments. fegulations
promulgated under the Higher Education Act spegiflumber of types of compensation, or “safe harbtrat do
not constitute incentive compensation in violatidrthis agreement. One of these safe harbors peanitnstitution
to award incentive compensation for Internet-baseduitment and admission activities that provigleimation
about the institution to prospective students,rrpfespective students to the institution, or pépnospective
students to apply for admission online. From Noven#D09 until January 2010, the U.S. Departmeifidofcation
engaged in a negotiated rulemaking process. Bethaseegotiated rulemaking did not reach conseosyzopose
regulations, the Department of Education issueg@sed regulations on June 18, 2010 on incentivepeosation
and other matters. The Department’s proposed régnsawould repeal all safe harbors regarding itigen
compensation, including the Internet safe harbbeyTwould also restrict Title IV funding for progma not meeting
prescribed income-to-debt ratios (i.e., prograntdesing to “gainful employment” as defined untiex proposed
regulation). These provisions, if adopted and dsread, could negatively affect our business wilhi@tion clients
The statutory deadline for publication of final véations is November 1, 2010. Any changes in thass or judicia
interpretations narrowing their protections wilbgect us to greater risk of liability and may inase our costs of
compliance with these regulations or limit our &pito operate certain lines of business.
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The financial services, education and medical itriessare highly regulated and our marketing atitigion
behalf of our clients in those industries are aéspilated. As described above, and for examplepriigosed
regulations from the Department of Education oririive compensation, “gainful employment” and otimatters
could limit our clients’ businesses and limit tlewenue we receive from our education clients. Aadtitional
example, our mortgage websites and marketing ssswie offer are subject to various federal, statklacal laws,
including state mortgage broker licensing lawsgfatland state laws prohibiting unfair acts anaticas, and
federal and state advertising laws. Any failureamply with these laws and regulations could suhjedo
revocation of required licenses, civil, criminalaaministrative liability, damage to our reputatmmchanges to or
limitations on the conduct of our business. Anyhaf foregoing could cause our business, operadindginancial
condition to suffer.

Increased taxation of companies engaged in Intermeimmerce may adversely affect the commercial useun
marketing services and our financial results.

The tax treatment of Internet commerce remainsttiadeand we cannot predict the effect of curatempts
to impose sales, income or other taxes on comnuenegucted over the Internet. Tax authorities afriternational,
federal, state and local levels are currently ngirig the taxation of Internet commerce, particylas many
governmental agencies seek to address fiscal amheaid budgetary shortfalls by introducing new $eowe
expanding the applicability of existing tax lawseWave experienced certain states taking expapssitons with
regard to their taxation of our services. The initas of new laws requiring the collection of satasother
transactional taxes on the sale of our servicetheédnternet could create increased administrétivelens or costs,
discourage clients from purchasing services frondasrease our ability to compete or otherwise tambially harm
our business and results of operations.

Limitations on our ability to collect and use datierived from user activities could significantlyrdinish the
value of our services and cause us to lose clieartd revenue.

When a user visits our websites, we use technapgieluding “cookies”, to collect information suak the
user’s Internet Protocol, or IP, address, offeridglvered by us that have been previously viewethk user and
responses by the user to those offerings. In doddetermine the effectiveness of a marketing cagmpand to
determine how to modify the campaign, we need t@s€ and analyze this information. The use of @ohkas been
the subject of regulatory scrutiny and litigatiordausers are able to block or delete cookies fiwar browser.
Periodically, certain of our clients and publishsegk to prohibit or limit our collection or usetbfs data.
Interruptions, failures or defects in our dataedtiion systems, as well as privacy concerns regguttie collection
of user data, could also limit our ability to armdydata from our clients’ marketing campaigns. Tisis is
heightened when we deliver marketing servicesiemtd in the financial and medical services clignticals. If our
access to data is limited in the future, we mayeble to provide effective technologies and sewssio clients and
we may lose clients and revenue.

As a creator and a distributor of Internet contentje face potential liability and expenses for legddims based
on the nature and content of the materials that weeate or distribute. If we are required to pay dages or
expenses in connection with these legal claims, operating results and business may be harmed.

We create original content for our websites andketamg messages and distribute third-party cordentur
websites and in our marketing messages. As a craatbdistributor of original content and third4ygprovided
content, we face potential liability based on aetgrof theories, including defamation, negligendeceptive
advertising, copyright or trademark infringemenbther legal theories based on the nature, creatialistribution
of this information. It is also possible that ouglgite visitors could make claims against us fesds incurred in
reliance upon information provided on our websitesaddition, as the number of users of forums sowal media
features on our websites increases, we could besexjto liability in connection with material padt® our
websites by users and other third parties. Thesms| whether brought in the United States or abroauld divert
management time and attention away from our busiaed result in significant costs to investigatd defend,
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regardless of the merit of these claims. In addjtibwe become subject to these types of claintsaae not
successful in our defense, we may be forced tesphgtantial damages.

Wireless devices and mobile phones are increasirmging used to access the Internet, and our online
marketing services may not be as effective whereased through these devices, which could cause heariour
business.

The number of people who access the Internet tlirdegices other than personal computers has iredeas
substantially in the last few years. Our online keting services were designed for persons accetisinigternet on
a desktop or laptop computer. The smaller scrdewgr resolution graphics and less convenient tygiapabilities
of these devices may make it more difficult foritziss to respond to our offerings. In addition, tuest of mobile
advertising is relatively high and may not be cefé¢ctive for our services. If our services conéra be less
effective or economically attractive for clienteking to engage in marketing through these deaoésthis segmel
of web traffic grows at the expense of traditiooamputer Internet access, we will experience difficattracting
website visitors and attracting and retaining ¢beand our operating results and business willdvenbd.

We may not succeed in expanding our businessesidetthe United States, which may limit our futureayvth.

One potential area of growth for us is in the ingtional markets. However, we have limited expeein
marketing, selling and supporting our servicesidatsf the United States and we may not be suagessf
introducing or marketing our services abroad. Tlaeeerisks inherent in conducting business in irgtonal
markets, such as:

« the adaptation of technologies and services tadorelient’ preferences and custon
« application of foreign laws and regulations toias|luding marketing and privacy regulatio
» changes in foreign political and economic condic

« tariffs and other trade barriers, fluctuatiamgurrency exchange rates and potentially adviabse
consequence:

« language barriers or cultural differenc

« reduced or limited protection for intellectual pesfy rights in foreign jurisdictions
- difficulties and costs in staffing, managing or mexing foreign operations; a

« education of potential clients who may not be famniith online marketing

If we are unable to successfully expand and markeservices abroad, our business and future grovethbe
harmed and we may incur costs that may not leé&ulttoe revenue.

We rely on Internet bandwidth and data center prders and other third parties for key aspects of fh®cess o
providing services to our clients, and any failuoe interruption in the services and products proed by these
third parties could harm our business.

We rely on third-party vendors, including data egrand Internet bandwidth providers. Any disrupiiothe
network access or co-location services providethbge third-party providers or any failure of théged-party
providers to handle current or higher volumes &f esuld significantly harm our business. Any finahor other
difficulties our providers face may have negatiffe@s on our business, the nature and extent afhwiie cannot
predict. We exercise little control over thesedhparty vendors, which increases our vulnerabittproblems with
the services they provide. We license technologlyraetated databases from third parties to faddigatalysis and
storage of data and delivery of offerings. We hexgerienced interruptions and delays in serviceaadability for
data centers, bandwidth and other technologidsdrpast. Any errors, failures, interruptions oragslexperienced in
connection with these third-party technologies s@lices could adversely affect our business antti@xpose us
to liabilities to third parties.
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Our systems also heavily depend on the availalofigiectricity, which also comes from third-papsoviders.
If we or thirdparty data centers which we utilize were to experea major power outage, we would have to rel
back-up generators. These back-up generators maypeaate properly through a major power outagethen fuel
supply could also be inadequate during a major p@utage or disruptive event. Furthermore, we docoarently
have backup generators at our Foster City, Caldidneadquarters. Information systems such as oaysh@
disrupted by even brief power outages, or by thetflations in power resulting from switches to &noeh
back-upgenerators. This could give rise to obligationseadain of our clients which could have an adveféect on
our results for the period of time in which anyrdjstion of utility services to us occurs.

Interruption or failure of our information technolay and communications systems could impair our &kgito
effectively deliver our services, which could causeto lose clients and harm our operating results.

Our delivery of marketing and media services depanmdthe continuing operation of our technology
infrastructure and systems. Any damage to or faibfrour systems could result in interruptionsum ability to
deliver offerings quickly and accurately and/orgess visitors’ responses emanating from our vaneels
presences. Interruptions in our service could redur revenue and profits, and our reputation cbaldamaged if
people believe our systems are unreliable. Ouesystand operations are vulnerable to damage orupten from
earthquakes, terrorist attacks, floods, fires, pdegs, break-ins, hardware or software failurelgdommunications
failures, computer viruses or other attempts torhanr systems, and similar events.

We lease or maintain server space in various loestiincluding in San Francisco, California. Outifenia
facilities are located in areas with a high riskradjor earthquakes. Our facilities are also sulifebreak-ins,
sabotage and intentional acts of vandalism, ambtential disruptions if the operators of thesalitses have
financial difficulties. Some of our systems are fudly redundant, and our disaster recovery plagriannot accoul
for all eventualities. The occurrence of a natdishster, a decision to close a facility we aragisvithout adequate
notice for financial reasons or other unanticipgieablems at our facilities could result in lengthterruptions in
our service.

Any unscheduled interruption in our service wowddult in an immediate loss of revenue. If we exqrere
frequent or persistent system failures, the aitrawess of our technologies and services to cliantswebsite
publishers could be permanently harmed. The steplsave taken to increase the reliability and redany of our
systems are expensive, reduce our operating mangthmay not be successful in reducing the frequenduratior
of unscheduled interruptions.

Any constraints on the capacity of our technologyfriastructure could delay the effectiveness of auyperations
or result in system failures, which would result the loss of clients and harm our business and riéswf
operations.

Our future success depends in part on the effigierformance of our software and technology infredtire.
As the numbers of websites and Internet usersasereour technology infrastructure may not be tblaeet the
increased demand. A sudden and unexpected indretisvolume of user responses could strain tpaaty of ou
technology infrastructure. Any capacity constraimesexperience could lead to slower response tonsgstem
failures and adversely affect the availability afbgites and the level of user responses receiv@dhwould result
in the loss of clients or revenue or harm to owitess and results of operations.

We could lose clients if we fail to detect clickrtlugh or other fraud on advertisements in a mannat is
acceptable to our clients.

We are exposed to the risk of fraudulent clickaaiions on our websites or our third-party publisheebsites
We may in the future have to refund revenue thatbents have paid to us and that was later aiteith to, or
suspected to be caused by, fraud. Click-througlidfiaccurs when an individual clicks on an ad digpthon a
website or an automated system is used to creaktecticks with the intent of generating the revesbare payment
to the publisher rather than to view the underlydngtent. Action fraud occurs when on-line forms eompleted
with false or fictitious information in an efforb increase the compensable actions in respect ichvehweb
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publisher is to be compensated. From time to tirméhawve experienced fraudulent clicks or actionsveedo not
charge our clients for such fraudulent clicks dicaxs when they are detected. It is conceivabletthia activity
could negatively affect our profitability, and thige of fraudulent act could hurt our reputatifriraudulent clicks
or actions are not detected, the affected clierstg experience a reduced return on their investinemtir marketing
programs, which could lead the clients to becomssalisfied with our campaigns, and in turn, lealb$s of clients
and the related revenue. Additionally, we have ftone to time had to terminate relationships wittbwpublishers
who we believed to have engaged in fraud and wehmag to do so in the future. Termination of sugationships
entails a loss of revenue associated with theihegie actions or clicks generated by such web phbiks.

We incur significant costs as a result of operatiag a public company, which may adversely affect ou
operating results and financial condition.

As a public company, we incur significant accougtilegal and other expenses that we did not insar privatt
company. We incur costs associated with our putdimpany reporting requirements. We also incur casteciated
with corporate governance requirements, includeguirements under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2003adbanes-
Oxley Act, as well as rules implemented by the $iB8@ NASDAQ. We expect these rules and regulations t
continue to increase our legal and financial coamgle costs and to make some activities more timsegning and
costly. Our management and other personnel wikineeontinue to devote a substantial amount o tionthese
compliance initiatives. Furthermore, these laws @galilations could make it more difficult or momesty for us to
obtain certain types of insurance, including dise@nd officer liability insurance, and we may beckd to accept
reduced policy limits and coverage or incur sulisa#ip higher costs to obtain the same or similewarage. The
impact of these requirements could also make ienddficult for us to attract and retain qualifipdrsons to serve
on our board of directors, our board committeeasoexecutive officers. These additional costs niwgisely affect
our operating results and financial condition.

In addition, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires, amathgr things, that we maintain effective intercaitrol
over financial reporting and disclosure controld @anocedures. In particular, for the fiscal yeadiag June 30,
2011, we must perform system and process evaluatidriesting of our internal control over finaneigborting to
allow management and our independent registerelicpadzounting firm to report on the effectivenessur
internal control over financial reporting, as reqdiby Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, atiSe 404. Our
compliance with Section 404 will require that weun substantial expense and expend significant geanant time
on compliance-related issues.

If we fail to maintain proper and effective interdaontrols, our ability to produce accurate finanai statement:
on a timely basis could be impaired, which wouldvadsely affect our ability to operate our business.

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finahcia
reporting to provide reasonable assurance regatbacgliability of our financial reporting and tpeeparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamare with U.S. generally accepted accounting jpies. We may
in the future discover areas of our internal firiahand accounting controls and procedures thad imaprovement.
Our internal control over financial reporting wilbt prevent or detect all error and all fraud. Atrol system, no
matter how well designed and operated, can prasidie reasonable, not absolute, assurance thabtiteot
system’s objectives will be met. Because of theieht limitations in all control systems, no evéiloa of controls
can provide absolute assurance that misstatemeattoderror or fraud will not occur or that all ¢t issues and
instances of fraud will be detected. If we are U@ab maintain proper and effective internal colstrave may not be
able to produce accurate financial statementstanely basis, which could adversely affect our iptio operate
our business and could result in regulatory action.
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Risks Related to the Ownership of Our Common Stoc

Our stock price may be volatile, and you may notdi#e to resell shares of our common stock at ooab the
price you paid.

Prior to our initial public offering there was naldic market for shares of our common stock, andcive
public market for our shares may not be sustaihbd.trading price of our common stock has beenlpigblatile
since our initial public offering and may contintieebe subject to wide fluctuations in responseaious factors,
some of which are beyond our control. These fadtmiside those discussed in this “Risk Factorstiseoof this
report on Form 10-K and others such as:

» changes in earnings estimates or recommendatiossdwyities analyst
» changes in governmental regulatio

e announcements by us or our competitors of sewices, significant contracts, commercial refataps,
acquisitions or capital commitmen

« changes in the search engine rankings of our aitesr ability to access PPC advertisi
« developments with respect to intellectual propedtts;

* our ability to develop and market new and enhameeducts on a timely basi

* our commencement of, or involvement in, litigati

* negative publicity about us, our industry, our igeor our client industries; ant

« a slowdown in our industry or the general econa

In recent years, the stock market in general, hadrtarket for technology and Internet-based conagaini
particular, has experienced extreme price and velfiactuations that have often been unrelated sprdportionate
to the operating performance of those companiezsaddmarket and industry factors may seriously atfex market
price of our common stock, regardless of our aatparating performance. In addition, in the pastpfving period:
of volatility in the overall market and the marlogice of a particular company’s securities, se@sgitlass action
litigation has often been instituted against thesmpanies. Such litigation, if instituted against could result in
substantial costs and a diversion of our managematténtion and resources.

If securities or industry analysts do not publiskesearch or reports about our business, or if thegue an
adverse or misleading opinion regarding our stodyr stock price and trading volume could decline.

The trading market for our common stock is influethdy the research and reports that industry aries
analysts publish about us or our business. If drtlgeanalysts who cover us issue an adverse apieigarding our
stock, our stock price would likely decline. If oaemore of these analysts ceases coverage oboupany or fail t
publish reports on us regularly, we could losebiiy in the financial markets, which in turn cautause our stock
price or trading volume to decline.

Our directors, executive officers and principal skholders and their respective affiliates have stabdial
control over us and could delay or prevent a charigeorporate control.

As of June 30, 2010, our directors, executive efficand holders of more than 5% of our common stock
together with their affiliates, beneficially owned,the aggregate the majority of our outstandiognmon stock. As
a result, these stockholders, acting together, balistantial control over the outcome of mattetsrstied to our
stockholders for approval, including the electiémlioectors and any merger, consolidation or sékdlamr
substantially all of our assets. In addition, theteekholders, acting together, have significafitence over the
management and affairs of our company. Accordindiy, concentration of ownership may have the ¢fbéc

« delaying, deferring or preventing a change in coafgcontrol

* impeding a merger, consolidation, takeover or othusiness combination involving us;
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« discouraging a potential acquirer from making al&groffer or otherwise attempting to obtain conabls.

Future sales of shares by existing stockholders kcbcause our stock price to decline.

If our existing stockholders sell, or indicate ateint to sell, substantial amounts of our commonksin the
public market the trading price of our common stookild decline significantly. We had 45,069,695rekaf
common stock outstanding as of June 30, 2010. buAwL2010, 35,069,695 shares became eligible ferisdhe
public market due to the expiration of contractoakup agreements entered into in connection withimitial
public offering. In addition, (i) the 11,796,062asbs subject to outstanding options under our géuientive plans
as of June 30, 2010 and (ii) the shares reservddtiare issuance under our equity incentive plaitishecome
eligible for sale in the public market in the fuidusubject to certain legal and contractual lirotza. If these
additional shares are sold, or if it is perceiveat they will be sold, in the public market, thécprof our common
stock could decline substantially.

We have broad discretion to determine how to use filnds raised in our initial public offering and @&y use
them in ways that may not enhance our operatinguks or the price of our common stock.

Our management has broad discretion over the ugmoéeds from our initial public offering, and weuld
spend the proceeds from the initial public offeringvays our stockholders may not agree with ot tlwanot yield a
favorable return. We have been using and interobmdinue to use the net proceeds from our initiddlis offering
for working capital, capital expenditures and otheneral corporate purposes. We may also use anishge to use
a portion of the net proceeds to make repaymentsiodebt or acquire other businesses, produdescbnologies.
we do not invest or apply the proceeds of ourahftiublic offering in ways that improve our opengtiresults, we
may fail to achieve expected financial results,alihiould cause our stock price to decline.

Provisions in our charter documents under Delawdesv and in contractual obligations, could discourag
takeover that stockholders may consider favorabitelanay lead to entrenchment of management.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorpamadind bylaws contain provisions that could haeeetfiect
of delaying or preventing changes in control ormges in our management without the consent of oardof
directors. These provisions include:

 aclassified board of directors with three+ystaggered terms, which may delay the abilityto€lsholders to
change the membership of a majority of our boardimactors;

« no cumulative voting in the election of dimct, which limits the ability of minority stockhadds to elect
director candidate:

 the exclusive right of our board of directtwselect a director to fill a vacancy created by &xpansion of the
board of directors or the resignation, death oraeahof a director, which prevents stockholdersrfrioeing
able to fill vacancies on our board of directc

« the ability of our board of directors to detémne to issue shares of preferred stock and tameate the price
and other terms of those shares, including preée®and voting rights, without stockholder approwdlich
could be used to significantly dilute the ownerstii hostile acquire

« a prohibition on stockholder action by writtesnsent, which forces stockholder action to benakt an
annual or special meeting of our stockhold

« the requirement that a special meeting ofldtolders may be called only by the chairman ofttbard of
directors, the chief executive officer or the boafdlirectors, which may delay the ability of otwckholders
to force consideration of a proposal or to takéoa¢tincluding the removal of directors; a

< advance notice procedures that stockholders musplgowith in order to nominate candidates to ouaroioot
directors or to propose matters to be acted uparstickholders’ meeting, which may discourageeteida
potential acquiror from conducting a solicitatioipooxies to elect the acquiror’s own slate of diogs or
otherwise attempting to obtain control of

We are subject to certain anti-takeover provisiander Delaware law. Under Delaware law, a corponatnay
not, in general, engage in a business combinatitmasmy holder of 15% or more of its capital stagkess the
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holder has held the stock for three years or, anotingr things, the board of directors has apprdakiedransaction.
For a description of our capital stock, see “Deggn of Capital Stock.”

We do not currently intend to pay dividends on aaommon stock and, consequently, your ability to amre a
return on your investment will depend on appreciatiin the price of our common stock.

We do not intend to declare and pay dividends arcapital stock for the foreseeable future. We euitly
intend to invest our future earnings, if any, tadwur growth. Additionally, the terms of our criefdicility restrict
our ability to pay dividends. Therefore, you ar¢ lileely to receive any dividends on your commouocgtfor the
foreseeable future.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen

None.

Item 2. Properties

Our principal executive offices are located inasked facility in Foster City, California, consigfiof
approximately 53,877 square feet of office spacteua lease that expires in October 2010. Thiditfaci
accommodates our principal engineering, sales, etiak operations and finance and administrativ&ities. We
also lease buildings in Arkansas, Connecticut, Melsssetts, Nevada, New Jersey, New York, North a0
Oklahoma, Oregon, India and the United Kingdom.

Beginning November 1, 2010, we will move our prpatiexecutive offices and our principal engineersajes
marketing, operations and finance and administaistivities to another leased facility in FostéyCalifornia
with approximately 63,998 square feet of officecander a lease that expires in October 2018tittoption to
extend the lease term.

We may add new facilities and expand our existawlities as we add employees and expand our ngr&ed
we believe that suitable additional or substitytace will be available as needed to accommodatsacty
expansion of our operations.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

On September 8, 2010, a patent infringement lawsast filed against us by LendingTree, LLC
(“LendingTree”) in the United States District Cofot the Western District of North Carolina, seakajudgment
that we have infringed a certain patent held bydimgiTree, an injunctive order against the alleggdriging
activities and an award for damages. If an injurtts granted, it could force us to stop or alemtain of our
business activities, such as our lead generatitimimortgage client vertical. While we intend tgorously defend
our position, neither the outcome of the litigatimor the amount and range of potential damagexpwsaire
associated with the litigation can be assessedceittainty.

From time to time, we may become involved in otlegal proceedings and claims arising in the orgiraurse
of our business.

Item 4. (Removed and Reserved)
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registran’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters arsslier Purchases of Equity
Securities

Our common stock has been traded on the NASDAQ & l8blect Market under the symbol “QNST” since our
initial public offering on February 11, 2010. Priorthis time, there was no public market for ooimenon stock.
The following table shows the high and low salegsiper share of our common stock as reportedeoNASDAQ
Global Select Market for the periods indicated:

High Low
Third quarter ended March 31, 2010 (beginning Fatyd1, 2010 $17.7¢  $12.77
Fourth quarter ended June 30, 2 $18.28  $11.37

On August 31, 2010, the closing price as reportethe NASDAQ Global Select Market of our commorckto
was $10.73 per share. As of August 31, 2010, wealppdoximately 299 stockholders of record of ounomn
stock.

We have never declared or paid, and do not anteigaclaring or paying, any cash dividends on ounraon
stock. Any future determination as to the declaratind payment of dividends, if any, will be at thscretion of ou
board of directors and will depend on then existingditions, including our financial condition, @péng results,
contractual restrictions, capital requirements,iess prospects and other factors our board oftdire may deem
relevant.

For equity compensation plan information refertéorl 12 in Part Ill of this Annual Report on Form-K0O
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Performance Graph

This performance graph shall not be deemed “swigcinaterial” or to be “filed” with the Securitiesd
Exchange Commission for purposes of Section 18@fSecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendetigor
Exchange Act, or otherwise subject to the liatitunder that Section, and shall not be deemesd iacbrporated
by reference into any filing of QuinStreet, Incden the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, cEXubange Act.

The following graph shows a comparison from Febyrddr, 2010 (the date our common stock commenced
trading on the NASDAQ Global Select Market) througime 30, 2010 of cumulative total return for comenon
stock, the NASDAQ Composite Index and the RDG mteComposite Index. Such returns are based oorioizk
results and are not intended to suggest futur@paence. Data for the NASDAQ Composite Index amdRDG
Internet Composite Index assume reinvestment adeinds.

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among QuinStreet, Inc., the NASDAQ Composite Index
and the RDG Internet Composite Index
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—8— QuinStreet, Ing. — & — NASDACQ Compaosite ===@--= R} Internet Composite
* $100 invested on 2/11/10 in stock or index, imihg reinvestment of dividends.
2/11/1C 2/28/1C 3/31/1C 4/30/1C 5/31/1C 6/30/10

QuinStreet, Inc. 100.0C 97.3¢ 113.4( 112.6( 92.6( 76.7:
NASDAQ Composite 100.0C 102.87 110.2¢ 113.2: 103.9¢ 97.21
RDG Internet Composit 100.0C 101.8¢ 110.3: 112.7¢ 103.1¢ 95.57

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

During the twelve months ended June 30, 2010, wetgd options in unregistered transactions to @selan
aggregate of 3,576,155 shares of common stockvaighted average exercise price of $13.07 per shavar
employees. During such period, options were exedcis unregistered transactions to purchase 555b2&s for
cash consideration in the aggregate amount of $illlon. The sales of the above securities weramgtefrom
registration under rule 701 promulgated under $aaib) under the Securities Act as transactiomsyaunt to a
compensatory benefit plan or a written contracitiet) to compensation.

Use of Proceeds

On February 10, 2010, our registration statemerfam S-1 (File No. 333-163228) was declared eiffedor
our initial public offering, pursuant to which wegistered the offering and sale of 10,000,000 shafreommon
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stock at a public offering price of $15.00 per ghand an aggregate offering price of $150.0 millibme managing
underwriters were Credit Suisse Securities (USAELMerrill Lynch, Pierce Fenner & Smith Incorporétend
J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. The offering was congalen February 17, 2010.

As a result of the offering, we received net pralseef $136.8 million, after underwriting discouatsd
commissions of $10.5 million and other offering tsozf $2.7 million. None of such payments wereraatior
indirect payment to any of our directors or offer their associates, to persons owning ten peacenore of our
common stock or any of our other affiliates.

The net offering proceeds have been invested inenaomarket accounts.

There has been no material change in the planreedfyzroceeds from our initial public offering assdribed ir
our final prospectus filed with the SEC pursuanRtde 424(b).
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ltem 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Da

The following selected consolidated financial dgttauld be read together with “Management’s Disausand
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems” and with the consolidated financial statatae@and
accompanying notes appearing elsewhere in thigtreflee selected consolidated financial data is #eiction is not
intended to replace our consolidated financiakst@nts and the accompanying notes. The resulteafdquired
businesses have been included in our consolidateddial statements since their respective datesaisition. Ot
historical results are not necessarily indicatiffewr future results and any interim results arenezessarily
indicative of the results for a full fiscal year.

We derived the consolidated statements of opemtiata for the fiscal years ended June 30, 20119 aad
2008 and the consolidated balance sheets dataJanef30, 2010 and 2009 from our audited conselitifihancial
statements appearing elsewhere in this reportcdheolidated statements of operations data fofishal years
ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 and the consolidataedde sheets data as of June 30, 2008, 2007 8628
derived from our audited consolidated financiatestzents, which are not included in this report.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(In thousands, except per share date

Consolidated Statements of Operations Date

Net revenue $334,83! $260,52° $192,03( $167,37( $142,40¢
Cost of revenue(1 240,73( 181,59: 130,86¢ 108,94! 85,82(
Gross profit 94,10¢ 78,93¢ 61,16 58,42¢ 56,58¢
Operating expenses:(
Product developmel 19,72¢ 14,88 14,05 14,09« 17,26¢
Sales and marketir 16,69¢ 16,15¢ 12,40¢ 8,481 7,16¢€
General and administratiy 18,46¢ 13,172 13,371 11,44( 6,83t
Total operating expens 54,88¢ 44,21 39,83! 34,02; 31,26¢
Operating incom: 39,21 34,72 21,33( 24,40« 25,32:
Interest incom 97 24~ 1,482 1,90¢ 1,341
Interest expens (3,977 (3,549 (1,219 (732 (427)
Other income (expense), r 1,52: (239) 14E (139) (874)
Interest and other income (expense), (2,357 (3,539 41% 1,03¢ 40
Income before income tax 36,86( 31,18: 21,74 25,43¢ 25,36:
Provision for taxe: (16,276 (13,909 (8,876 (9,82¢) (9,779
Income from continuing operatiol 20,58¢ 17,27 12,86 15,61( 15,58¢
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princi — — — — (1,820
Net income $ 20,58: $ 17,27 $ 12,867 $ 15,61( $ 13,76¢
Less: 8% non-cumulative dividends on convertible
preferred stocl (2,019 (3,27¢€) (3,276 (3,27¢) (3,276
Less: Undistributed earnings allocated to conviertib
preferred stocl (5,789 (8,599 (5,92%) (7,690 (6,597
Net income attributable to common stockholc— Basic $ 12,78 $ 5,39¢ $ 3,66€ $ 4,64 $ 3,907
Undistributed earnings -allocated to common stot 41¢ 39¢ 36C 522 52E
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(In thousands, except per share date

Net income attributable to common stockholc—

Diluted $13,20. $ 579¢ $ 4,02¢ $ 516¢ $ 4,42i
Net income per share attributable to common stddens

Basic $ 05C $ 041 $ 028 $ 03€ $ 031

Diluted $ 04€ $ 03¢ $ 02 $ 034 §$ 0.2¢
Weighted average shares used in computing net iaco

per share attributable to common stockholt

Basic 25,61¢ 13,29¢ 13,10« 12,78¢ 12,41

Diluted 28,42¢ 14,97: 15,32¢ 15,26: 15,29¢
(1) Cost of revenue and operating expenses includ&-based compensation expense as follc
Cost of revenu $3,111 $1,91¢ $1,11z2 $ 41¢€ $66
Product developmel 2,17¢ 66¢ 44% 75 @)
Sales and marketir 3,46: 1,761 581 22¢ 10
General and administrati 4,621 1,82 1,08¢ 1,35¢ 20

See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statemiestaded in this report for an explanation of thethod use:
to calculate basic and diluted net income per sbhoemmon stock.

Consolidated Balance Sheets Dati
Cash and cash equivalel

Working capital

Total asset

Total liabilities

Total debt

Total stockholdel' equity

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Dat:
Net cash provided by operating activit
Depreciation and amortizatic

Capital expenditure

Other Financial Data:
Adjusted EBITDA(1)

June 30,
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(In thousands)
$155,77( $ 25,18: $ 24,95: $ 26,76 $ 30,59:
155,16 16,42¢ 17,02: 42,76¢ 36,29
434,63( 212,87¢ 179,74t 118,53t 101,20:
144,60¢ 96,28¢ 86,03: 37,83 39,561
93,60¢ 57,24( 51,65« 10,25( 9,21¢
290,02: 73,18¢ 50,31 37,31 18,35(
Fiscal Year Ended June 30
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(In thousands)
$38,50¢ $32,57( $24,75. $25,197 $21,65¢
18,79: 15,97¢ 11,725 9,631 7,20¢
2,71C 1,341 2,171 2,03( 1,104
Fiscal Year Ended June 30
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(In thousands)
$71,37¢ $56,87: $36,27¢ $36,11:  $32,61¢
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(1) We define Adjusted EBITDA as net income less priovigor taxes, depreciation expense, amortizatiqgrease
stock-based compensation expense, interest andintioene (expense), net. Please see the “AdjusB@iEA”

section below for more informatio

The following table presents a reconciliation ofjdgled EBITDA to net income calculated in accordanith
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAlRe most comparable GAAP measure, for eacheopériods

indicated:

Net income

Interest and other (income) expense,

Provision for taxe:

Depreciation and amortizatic

Stocl-based compensation expe!

Cumulative effect of change in accounting princi

Adjusted EBITDA

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(In thousands)

$20,58: $17,27: $12,867 $15,61( $13,76¢
2,357 3,53¢ (413 (1,039 (40)
16,27¢ 13,90¢ 8,87¢ 9,82¢ 9,77%
18,79: 15,97¢ 11,72% 9,631 7,20¢
13,37: 6,17: 3,22: 2,071 89
— — — — 1,82(
$71,37¢ $56,87: $36,27¢ $36,11: $32,61¢
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Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionnal Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion of ouafficial condition and results of operations in camgtion with
the consolidated financial statements and the nibiexeto included elsewhere in this report. Théofeing
discussion contains forward-looking statements th#lect our plans, estimates and beliefs. Our aktasults could
differ materially from those discussed in the fomivbboking statements. Factors that could causeantribute to
these differences include those discussed belovelaad/here in this report, particularly in the deos titled
“Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statemerdat “Risk Factors”.

Management Overview

QuinStreet is a leader in vertical marketing andiamenline. We have built a strong set of capabdgito
engage Internet visitors with targeted media antbttect our marketing clients with their potentiastomers
online. We focus on serving clients in large, infiation-intensive industry verticals where relevaatgeted media
and offerings help visitors make informed choides] the products that match their needs, and bieeeme
qualified customer prospects for our clients.

We deliver cost-effective marketing results to clients most typically in the form of a qualifiegldd or click.
These leads or clicks can then convert into a coustar sale for the client at a rate, that resolen acceptable
marketing cost to them. We get paid by clients pritp when we deliver qualified leads or clicksdefined by our
agreements with them. Because we bear the costedif,, our programs must deliver a value to oentd and
provide for a media yield, or our ability to gernteran acceptable margin on our media costs thatqe® a sound
financial outcome, for us. Our general process is:

* We own or access targeted mel(

* We run advertisements or other forms of mamnkemessages and programs in that media to crésiterv
responses or clicks through to client offerir

« We match these responses or clicks to client affsrior brands that meet visitor interests or nesatsyerting
visitors into qualified leads or clicks; a

« We optimize client matches and media yielchsihhat we achieve desired results for clients asduamd
financial outcome for u

Our primary financial objective has been and remaneating revenue growth from sustainable souates,
target levels of profitability. Our primary finamtiobjective is not to maximize profits, but rathemlchieve target
levels of profitability while investing in variougrowth initiatives, as we believe we are in thdyestages of a large,
long-term market.

Our Direct Marketing Services, or DMS, businessoaoted for 99%, 99% and 98% of our net revenuésuaf
years 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Our DMsnieiss derives substantially all of its net revefnom fees
earned through the delivery of qualified leads elitks to our clients. Through a vertical focusgeted media
presence and our technology platform, we are abifeliver targeted, measurable marketing resultaitaclients.

Our two largest client verticals are education famancial services. Our education client vertiegnesented
45%, 58% and 74% of net revenue in fiscal year920009 and 2008, respectively. Our financial sswiclient
vertical represented 43%, 31% and 11% of net rexvémfiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008, respecti@iyer DMS
client verticals, consisting primarily of home siees, business-to-business, or B2B, and medigadesented 11%,
10% and 13% of net revenue in fiscal years 201092hd 2008, respectively.

In addition, we derived 1%, 1% and 2% of our ngeraie in fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008, respaygti
from the provision of a hosted solution and relatervices for clients in the direct selling indystlso referred to ¢
our Direct Selling Services, or DSS, business.

We generated substantially all of our revenue feaes to clients in the United States.

One of our largest clients retained an advertisiggncy and reduced its purchases of leads froregisiing
November 2009. This client accounted for 19% arfh 28 our net revenue in fiscal years 2009 and 2
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respectively. In fiscal year 2010, this client caispd less than 10% of our net revenue. We have aééressing
this challenge by working with this client and #gency to understand their evolving needs ancesfies and
understand how we can best serve them going fordmatdition, we have been expanding our busingsother
clients in our education client vertical. We arsgoa¢xpanding our client base in education to replésitor matches
previously delivered to this client.

Trends Affecting our Business
Seasonality

Our results are subject to significant fluctuataana result of seasonality. In particular, our tprarending
December 31 (our second fiscal quarter) typicadlgndnstrate seasonal weakness. In our second disagters, thei
is lower availability of lead supply from some fasraf media during the holiday period on a costafe basis and
some of our clients often request fewer leads dumliday staffing. For example, in the quarterdezh
December 31, 2009 and 2008 net revenue from owagidn clients declined 10% and 13%, respectivietyn the
previous quarter. In our quarters ending March@f third fiscal quarter), this trend generallyeeses with better
lead availability and often new budgets at the teigig of the year for our clients with fiscal yearsding
December 31.

Acquisitions
Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2010

In November 2009, we acquired the website busilesnet.com, a division of WebMediaBrands, Inc., o
Internet.com, a New Yorkased Internet media company, in exchange for $18li@n in cash and the issuance «
$1.7 million non-interest-bearing promissory no&yable, to broaden our media access and clientibdlse B2B
market. In October 2009, we acquired the websitnmss Insure.com from Life Quotes, Inc., or Inguoa, an
lllinois-based online insurance quote service amwkdrage business, in exchange for $15.0 milliocaish and the
issuance of a $1.0 million non-interest-bearingssory note payable, for its capacity to genesate visitors in
the financial services market. During fiscal ye@1@, in addition to the acquisitions of Internetrcand Insure.com,
we acquired an aggregate of 31 online publishirgin@asses.

Also, in July 2010, we acquired the website bugiriesurance.com from Insurance.com Group, Inc., or
Insurance.com, an Ohio-based online insurance éssin exchange for $33.0 million in cash andgkeance of a
$2.6 million non-interest-bearing promissory no&ggble, for its capacity to generate online visitorthe financial
services market.

Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2009

In August 2008, we acquired 100% of the outstandimyes of U.S. Citizens for Fair Credit Card Terims.,
or CardRatings, an Arkansas-based online marketingpany, in exchange for $10.4 million in cash ted
issuance of $5.0 million in non-interdstaring, secured promissory notes payable, faajscity to generate onlil
visitors in the financial services market. Durimgcal year 2009, in addition to the acquisitiorCafrdRatings, we
acquired an aggregate of 33 online publishing lessas.

Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2008

In April 2008, we acquired 100% of the outstandsh@res of Cyberspace Communication Corporation, or
SureHits, an Oklahoma-based online marketing comparexchange for $28.4 million in cash and $18ibion in
potential earreut payments, in an effort to broaden our medi@ssand client base in the financial services ntz
In each of fiscal year 2010 and 2009, we paid $4lbon in earn-out payments upon the achieveméspecified
financial targets. In February 2008, we acquired%®f the outstanding shares of ReliableRemodeler,énc., or
ReliableRemodeler, an Oregon-based company spegln online home renovation and contractor refsr in
exchange for $17.5 million in cash and the issuarfié8.0 million in non-interest-bearing, unsecupedmissory
notes payable, in an effort to broaden our mediassand client base in the home services markbtaly 2008, wi
acquired the assets of Vendorseek, a New Jersegtpasvider of online matching services for bussessthat
connect Internet visitors with vendors, in exchafgge$10.7 million in cash
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and the issuance of $3.8 million in interest-beg@rimsecured promissory notes payable, to broademedia
access and client base in the B2B market. Durgagfiyear 2008, in addition to the acquisitionSofehits,
ReliableRemodeler and Vendorseek, we acquired greggte of 20 online publishing businesses.

Our acquisition strategy may result in significattuations in our available working capital frgrariod to
period and over the years. We may use cash, stgqelomissory notes to acquire various businesséschnologies
and we cannot accurately predict the timing of éhasquisitions or the impact on our cash flows laaldnce sheet.
Large acquisitions or multiple acquisitions witlsinparticular period may significantly affect oundncial results for
that period. We may utilize debt financing to maleguisitions, which could give rise to higher iet&grexpense and
more restrictive operating covenants. We may aliaeiour stock as consideration, which could tesu
substantial dilution.

Client Verticals

To date, we have generated the majority of ourmegdrom clients in our education and financial/gms
client verticals. We expect that a majority of oewenue in fiscal year 2011 will be generated fadients in our
education and financial services client verticearketing budgets for clients in our educationieertical are
affected by a number of factors, including the ity of student financial aid, the regulatiohfor-profit
financial institutions and economic conditions. ©the past year, some segments of the financiglcgsr industry,
particularly mortgages, credit cards and deposége seen declines in marketing budgets giveniffieult market
conditions. In addition, the education and finahs@vices industries are highly regulated. Chamgesgulations o
government actions may negatively affect our ctiehtisinesses and marketing practices and theredfdwersely
affect our financial results.

Development and Acquisition of Vertical Media

One of the primary challenges of our businessidiffig or creating media that is targeted enougdtttact
prospects economically for our clients and at ctsiswork for our business model. In order to ourg to grow ou
business, we must be able to continue to find velkb® quality vertical media on a casffective basis. Our inabilit
to find or develop vertical media could impair guowth or adversely affect our financial performanc

Basis of Presentation
General

We operate in two segments: DMS and DSS. For fudtsgussion or financial information about ouraggng
segments, see note 14 to our consolidated finast@s@ments.

Net Revenue

DMS. We derive substantially all of our revenue frazad earned through the delivery of qualified leads
paid clicks. We deliver targeted and measurableltethrough a vertical focus that we classify itite following
client verticals: education, financial services &oither” (which includes home services, B2B and icak).

DSS. We derived approximately 1% of net revenue fram@SS business in fiscal year 2010. We expect DSS
to continue to represent an immaterial portionwflousiness.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue consists primarily of media cgs¢ssonnel costs, amortization of acquisition-relatdéangible
assets, depreciation expense and amortizatiorterhal software development costs on revenue-pioguc
technologies. Media costs consist primarily of fpa&l to website publishers that are directly eglab a revenue-
generating event and pay-per-click, or PPC, adhases from Internet search companies. We pay theseet
search companies and website publishers on a eodéad, or CPL, cost-per-click, or CPC,
cost-per-thousand-impressions, or CPM and revehagdasis. Personnel costs include salaries, benst®ck-
based compensation expense and employee bend§it Bessonnel costs are primarily related to irtligls
associated with maintaining our servers and wehsitgr editorial staff, client management, creatésm,
compliance group and media purchasing analysts.
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Costs associated with software incurred in the ldgweent phase or obtained for internal use areal@g®d an
amortized in cost of revenue over the softwarefsreged useful life.

We anticipate that our cost of revenue will inceeasabsolute dollars as we continue to increaseemenue
base and product offerings

Operating Expenses

We classify our operating expenses into three categ; product development, sales and marketindjganers
and administrative. Our operating expenses copsistarily of personnel costs and, to a lesser @xfaofessional
services fees, rent and allocated costs. Personetd for each category of operating expenses génerclude
salaries, bonuses and commissions, stock-basedetmanpon expense and employee benefit costs.

Product Development.Product development expenses consist primarifyectonnel costs and professional
services fees associated with the development aittemance of our technology platforms, developna@iit
launching of our websites, product-based qualigueence and testing. We believe that continuedsinvent in
technology is critical to attaining our strateglyjextives and, as a result, we expect technologgldpment and
enhancement expenses to increase in absolutegdimilauture periods.

Sales and Marketing.Sales and marketing expenses consist primaripecfonnel costs and, to a lesser extent,
allocated overhead costs, professional services femvel advertising and marketing materials. \Wfgeeet sales and
marketing expenses to increase in absolute dawse hire additional personnel in sales and miswdéd support
our increasing revenue base and product offerings.

General and Administrative.General and administrative expenses consist pilinad personnel costs of our
executive, finance, legal, corporate and businessldpment, employee benefits and compliance, énet o
administrative personnel, as well as accountinglegal professional services fees and other cotp@gpenses. W
expect general and administrative expenses toasera absolute dollars in future periods as weicoa to invest
in corporate infrastructure and incur additiongdemxses associated with being a public companydintg increase
legal and accounting costs, higher insurance pmasiiinvestor relations costs and compliance castscaated with
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Interest and Other Income (Expense), Net

Interest and other income (expense), net, consfistgerest income, interest expense and othemirgcand
expense. Interest expense is related to our didiity and promissory notes issued in connectigth our
acquisitions and includes imputed interest. Thetantding balance of our credit facility and acdigsirelated
promissory notes was $75.9 million and $19.5 milliespectively, as of June 30, 2010. Borrowingtenour cred
facility and related interest expense could inaesswe continue to implement our acquisition sthat Interest
income represents interest received on our casltasidequivalents, which may decrease dependimgaoket
interest rates and the amount of our invested aadttash equivalents.

Other income (expense), net, includes gains oeffem the early extinguishment of debt when vittese
acquisition related promissory notes before theiturity and exchange gains and losses.

Income Tax Expense

We are subject to tax in the United States as agetither tax jurisdictions or countries in which eeaduct
business. Earnings from our limited non-U.S. atiigiare subject to local country income tax ang besubject to
current U.S. income tax.

As of June 30, 2010, we did not have net operdtiag carryforwards for federal income tax purpases had
approximately $2.5 million in California state rigterating loss carryforwards that begin to expir&larch 2011
and that we expect to utilize in an amended refline. California net operating loss carryforward$ mot offset
future taxable income, but may instead resultiefand of historical taxes paid.
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As of June 30, 2010, we had net deferred tax as$&52.5 million. Our net deferred tax assets &ins
primarily of accruals, reserves and stock-basedpemsation expense not currently deductible foptaposes. We
assess the need for a valuation allowance on tleerdd tax assets by evaluating both positive asghtive evidenc
that may exist. Any adjustment to the deferredasset valuation allowance would be recorded inrtbeme
statement in the periods that the adjustment sraehed to be required.

On July 1, 2007, we adopted the authoritative acting guidance on uncertainties in income tax. The
cumulative effect of adoption to the opening bataotretained earnings was $1.7 million.

Results of Operations
The following table sets forth our consolidatedestzent of operations for the periods indicated:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2010 2009 2008
(In thousands)

Net revenu $334,83! 100.(% $260,52° 100.(% $192,03( 100.(%
Cost of revenue(1 240,73(  71.¢ 181,59: 69.7 130,86¢ 68.2
Gross profit 94,10¢ 28.1 78,93¢ 30.2 61,16: 31.t
Operating expenses:(

Product developmel 19,72¢ 5.8 14,88 5.7 14,05: 7.3

Sales and marketir 16,69¢ 5.C 16,154 6.2 12,40¢ 6.5

General and administratiy 18,46¢ 5.5 13,17 5.1 13,37: 7.C
Operating incom: 39,217 11.7 34,721 13.Z 21,33( 11.1
Interest incomt 97 0.C 24F 0.1 1,48 0.8
Interest expens 3,970 (1.2 (3,549 (1.9 (1,219 (0.6
Other income (expense), r 1,52: 0.5 (239 (0.1) 14E 0.1
Income before income tax 36,86( 11.C 31,187 12.C 21,747 11.:
Provision for taxe: (16,276 (4.9 (13,909 (5.9 (8,87¢) (4.6
Net income $ 20,58¢ 6.1% $ 17,274 6.€% $ 12,86: 6.7%

(1) Cost of revenue and operating expenses includ&-based compensation expense as follc

Cost of revenu $ 3,11 0.9% $ 1,91¢ 0.7% $ 1,11: 0.6%
Product developmel 2,17¢ 0.€ 66¢ 0.3 44% 0.2
Sales and marketir 3,46¢ 1.C 1,761 0.7 581 0.3
General and administrati 4,621 14 1,827 0.7 1,08¢ 0.€

Net Revenue

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2010 -200¢ 2009 -200¢
2010 2009 2008 % Change % Change
(In thousands)
Net revenue $334,83! $260,52° $192,03( 29% 36%
Cost of revenu 240,73( 181,59: 130,86¢ 33% 3%
Gross profi $ 94,108 $ 78,93¢ $ 61,16: 19% 29%

Net revenue increased $74.3 million, or 29%, indigyear 2010 compared to fiscal year 2009, attaible to ar
increase in revenue from our financial servicesntlivertical and, to a lesser extent, our oth@ntherticals.
Financial services client vertical revenue increa®®4.2 million, or 81%. The increase in finanaatvices client
vertical revenue was driven by lead and click vaduntreases at relatively steady prices. Our athent verticals’
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revenue increased $9.3 million, or 31%. The in@e@aour other client vertical revenue was prinyagiffected by
growth in our B2B client vertical revenue resultingm our acquisition of Internet.com in Novemb@02 and, to a
lesser extent, due to growth in our medical cligntical resulting from our acquisition of the wabdusiness of
ElderCareLink in April 2009. Our education cliemrtical revenue remained relatively flat, incregsh863,000, or
1%. The slight increase was driven by growth fromagority of our education clients, almost entiref§set by
revenue decline from a single client.

Net revenue increased $68.5 million, or 36%, indigyear 2009 compared to fiscal year 2008, attaible
primarily to growth in our financial services andlieation client verticals, offset in part by a dieelin our DSS
business. Financial services client vertical reeeimgreased $57.8 million, or 264%. Revenue grawiur
financial services client vertical was driven bgdeand click volume increases at relatively stgaiyes and the full
effect of the acquisition of SureHits in the fougharter of fiscal year 2008. Our education cligrtical revenue
increased $9.1 million, or 6%, due to lead volummzéases and price increases. Our other clieritakstrevenue
increased $2.0 million, or 8%, due primarily to thé effect of the acquisition of the assets ofnderseek, within
our B2B client vertical in the fourth quarter o§dal year 2008. The revenue increase in our B2Bicliertical was
partially offset by a decline in our home servickent vertical due to both a challenging econosmgironment and
lack of available consumer credit.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue increased $59.1 million, or 33%isical year 2010 compared to fiscal year 200%edriby a
$41.2 million increase in media costs due to leati@ick volume increases, increased personnet adst
$10.7 million and increased amortization of acdigeirelated intangible assets of $3.2 million tésg from
acquisitions in fiscal year 2009 and 2010. Theease in personnel costs was attributable to a hé#éase in
average headcount and related compensation exjpameases, resulting from the acquisition of thdsie
business of Internet.com, as well as the exparcdfionr business. Gross margin, which is the difieesbetween n
revenue and cost of revenue as a percentage ofvestue, declined from 30% in fiscal year 20098&02n fiscal
year 2010, due to the ab-mentioned increase in headcount and related cosatien expense, as well as due to a
higher mix of traffic from third parties.

Cost of revenue increased $50.7 million, or 39%isical year 2009 compared to fiscal year 2008;edriby a
$43.3 million increase in media costs due to leadi@ick volume increases and, to a lesser exterrieased
amortization of acquisitionelated intangible assets of $4.2 million resulfirggn acquisitions in the previous twe
months. Gross margin declined from 32% in fiscary2008 to 30% in fiscal year 2009 due primarilatbigher
mix of traffic from third parties.

Operating Expenses

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2010- 200¢ 2009- 200¢
2010 2009 2008 % Change % Change
(In thousands)
Product developmel $19,72¢ $14,887 $14,05: 33% 6%
Sales and marketir 16,69¢ 16,15«  12,40¢ 3% 30%
General and administrati 18,46¢ 13,17: 13,37 40% ()%
Operating expenst $54,88¢  $44,21 $39,83: 24% 11%

Product Development Expenses

Product development expenses increased $4.8 mitiod3%, in fiscal year 2010 compared to fiscalry2009.
due to increased personnel costs of $4.2 milliah tna lesser extent, increased professionalesees of
$433,000. The increase in personnel costs wabuattihle to increased compensation expense of $iligGmand
increased stock-based compensation expense ofrfilidh. The increase in compensation expense wastd a
20% increase in average headcount affected byiaddithiring in connection with software developrhprojects,
as well as increased performance bonus expenst® diue achievement of specified financial metriasiny fiscal

43




Table of Contents

year 2010 and an increase in the number of indal&ealigible for such bonus. Professional serviees alsc
increased due to these development projects.

Product development expenses increased $836,060.0in fiscal year 2009 compared to fiscal yedd&@@lue
to increased personnel costs of $1.0 million. Tleeaase in personnel costs was due to increastapance
bonuses and increased stock-based compensationsexfée increased performance bonuses were paid in
connection with our achievement of specified firiahmetrics during fiscal year 2009 that were ndtiaved in the
corresponding prior year period, as well as angiase in the number of individuals eligible for sbomuses. The
increase in bonus and stock-based compensatiomsxpeas partially offset by lower compensation espdrom a
reduction in workforce in the third quarter of idgear 2009.

Sales and Marketing Expenses

Sales and marketing expenses increased $544,088%,an fiscal year 2010 compared to fiscal yeddR@lue
to increased personnel costs of $1.0 million plytfset by decreases in various smaller itentee increase in
personnel costs was due to increased stock-basegersation expense of $1.7 million, partially offisg a decline
in compensation expense of $730,000 due to a deeEdl8% in average headcount and related comf@msa
expense affected by a reduction in workforce stheethird quarter of fiscal year 2009, while borsiaad
commissions increased due to the achievement effiggkefinancial metrics during fiscal year 2010.

Sales and marketing expenses increased $3.7 milia30%, in fiscal year 2009 compared to fiscalry2008,
due to increased personnel costs of $2.1 milliecreiased consulting fees of $340,000 and increadbeettising and
marketing expenses associated with marketing canpaif $331,000. The increase in personnel costsiwa to
increased stock-based compensation expense ofrfiilich, increased compensation expense of $888¢@0to an
18% increase in average headcount and related cwaj@n expenses driven by the acquisition of
ReliableRemodeler in the third quarter of fiscay2008. Increased consulting, advertising and etarfy expenses
were due to overall increases in sales and markeattivities associated with the growth of our bass in fiscal
year 2009 as compared to the prior year pe

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increased$i8li@n, or 40%, in fiscal year 2010 compared tecl year
2009, due to increased personnel costs of $3.@milincreased professional services fees of $88R jdicreased
direct acquisition costs of $323,000 and varioualkmincreases in general and administrative esggrpartially
offset by a decline in legal fees of $551,000. Tueease in personnel costs was due to increasekl-based
compensation expense of $2.8 million and increasetbensation expense of $1.1 million. The incréastock-
based compensation expense was driven by the giréuity-vested options to certain members of ooatd of
directors in conjunction with an increase in thie ¥alue our common stock. The increase in compérsaxpense
was due to a 21% increase in average headcounbdwe continued investment in corporate infradtice, as well
as increased performance bonus expense associgtetti@vachievement of specified financial metrieefessional
services fees increased due to our continued imesgtin corporate infrastructure and related experassociated
with being a public company, including increasedoamting and tax fees, higher insurance premiunvgsitor
relations and compliance costs. The decline inl leges was due to the settlement of an ongoind kegdter prior tc
the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2009.

General and administrative expenses remainedvekatilat in fiscal year 2009 compared to fiscahy&008.
The slight decline consisted of a decrease in legp¢nses of $987,000, partially offset by an iaseein stoclbase:
compensation expense of $741,000. The declinegal Expenses was attributable to a decrease imsapeaelated
to an ongoing legal matter which was settled piaahe fourth quarter of fiscal year 2009. In cocti@ with the
settlement, we paid a one-time, non-refundablefe&850,000. We recognized an intangible asseRab®00
related to the estimated fair value of a licenseiked by us as part of the settlement and expethsegmaining
$624,000 as a settlement expense.
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Interest and Other Income (Expense), N

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2010 -200¢ 2009 -200¢
2010 2009 2008 % Change % Change
(In thousands)
Interest incom $ 97 $ 24t $1,48: (60)% (83)%
Interest expens (3,977 (3,549 (1,219 12% 192%
Other income (expense), r 1,52 (239) 14t (7310)% (265)%
Interest and other income (expense), $(2,357) $(3,53f) $ 4a: (33)% (957)%

Interest and other income (expense), net increfsatdmillion, or 33%, in fiscal year 2010 compatediscal
year 2009, due to an increase in other income (esgenet of $1.8 million, partially offset by arciease in intere:
expense of $433,000 and a decline in interest ircon$148,000. Other income (expense), net inccedse to a
gain on the extinguishment of acquisition-relatetes payable of $1.2 million, which were paid céfdre their
maturity and to a lesser extent, a gain recordeimection with a payment received for a legalemaent, as well
as reduced foreign exchange losses. The increasgiast expense is attributable to the draw dowour credit
facility, partially offset by lower non-cash impdtiterest on acquisition-related notes payable. décline in
interest income is attributable to lower interedes on our investments.

Interest and other income (expense), net declide@ iillion in fiscal year 2009 compared to fisgakr 2008
due to increased interest expense of $2.3 millmmer interest income of $1.2 million and otherdnte (expense),
net of $384,000. The increase in interest expendae to an increase in non-cash imputed intereatquisition-
related notes payable and a draw down on our diadliity. Decreased interest income is due to&ide in our
invested cash balances. The decline in other indexy@ense), net was due to foreign currency lodsesn by the
weakening of the Canadian dollar against the UoBad

Provision for Taxes

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2010 2009 2008
(In thousands)
Provision for taxe: $16,27¢ $13,90¢ $8,87¢
Effective tax rate 44.2% 44.€%  40.8%

Our effective tax rate remained largely unchangefiscal year 2010 compared to fiscal year 200Bigiser
non-deductible stock-based compensation expenséavgady offset by a tax benefit in foreign juristdons and the
release of ASC 740-10 reserves.

The increase in our effective tax rate in fiscadry2009 compared to fiscal year 2008 was affecyeiddreased
state income tax expense in connection with ouuiatttpns of businesses in various jurisdictionshivi the U.S. in
which we did not previously have a presence and,l&sser extent, increased foreign income taxeésian-
deductible stock-based compensation expense. Thesise in our effective tax rate was partially etffsy increased
research and development tax credits recordedrinemion with the “Emergency Economic Stabilizathut of
2008,” or the Act. On October 3, 2008, the Act, erhcontains the “Tax Extenders and Alternative khinm Tax
Relief Act of 2008” was signed into law. Under thet, the research credit was retroactively exterfde@mounts
paid or incurred after December 31, 2007 and befarmiary 1, 2010.
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Selected Quarterly Financial Data

The following table sets forth our unaudited qudyteonsolidated statements of operations datéheright
quarters ended June 30, 2010. We have preparetitieenents of operations for each of these quartetbe same
basis as the audited consolidated financial statésmecluded elsewhere in this report and, in thi@ion of the
management, each statement of operations incluidedjastments, consisting solely of normal reaugri
adjustments, necessary for the fair statementefahults of operations for these periods. Thigrinktion should b
read in conjunction with the audited consolidatedricial statements and related notes includedvikse in this
report. These quarterly operating results are aoéssarily indicative of our operating resultsaoy future period.

Three Months Ended
Sept 30, Dec 31, Mar 31, June 30, Sept 30, Dec 31, Mar 31, June 30,

2008 2008 2009 2009 2009 2009 2010 2010
(In thousands)

Net revenue $63,67¢ $59,23¢ $69,81! $67,80. $78,55: $76,96: $90,77! $88,541
Costs of revenu 45,28. 42,96¢ 46,78( 46,56 55,047 56,557 66,26¢f 62,85¢
Gross profit 18,397 16,26¢ 23,03 21,23¢ 23,50f 20,40¢ 24,50 25,68¢
Operating expense

Product developmel 3,751 3,72z 3,512 3,89t 4,47( 4,73¢ 5,32t 5,192

Sales and marketir 4,25¢ 4,16¢ 3,59¢ 4,137 3,62¢ 3,99( 4,57¢ 4,50¢

General and administratiy 3,73€ 3,171 2,86¢ 3,40( 3,441 6,20 4,467 4,352
Operating incomi 6,64¢ 5,20¢ 13,06: 9,80¢ 11,96¢ 547¢ 10,13t 11,63¢
Interest incom: a0 87 44 24 9 8 16 64
Interest expens (763 (1,109 (879 (795) (74€) (881) (1,307 (1,04¢)
Other income (expense), r 51 (291) (16) 17 12C 165 (64) 1,30z
Income before income tax 6,02 3,897 12,21 9,05z 11,35( 4,76¢€ 8,78¢  11,95¢
Provision for taxe: (2,719 (1,547 (5,81¢ (3,825 (4,837) (2,356) (3,53¢) (5,545
Net income $ 3304 $235( $6,39° $5227 $651: $241C $525( $ 6,411
Net income per share(

Basic $ 007 $ 004 $ 0.1€ $ 0.1z $ 0.1¢ $ 0.0t $ 0.1z $ 0.14

Diluted $ 007 $ 004 $ 01f $ 012 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.04 $ 0.11 $ o0.1¢
Other Financial Data:

Adjusted EBITDA $12,157 $10,95° $18,57! $15,187 $18,15( $14,98¢ $18,33¢ $19,90!

(1) Net income per share for the four quarters of daclal year may not sum to the total for the fispedr becaus
of the different number of shares outstanding dueach perioc

Adjusted EBITDA

Our use of Adjusted EBITDAWEe include Adjusted EBITDA in this report beca(8eve seek to manage our
business to a consistent level of Adjusted EBITRagercentage of net revenue, (ii) it is a keyshgson which
our management assesses our operating perfornf@ndeis one of the primary metrics investorseuis evaluating
Internet marketing companies, (iv) it is a factothe evaluation of the performance of our managgine
determining compensation, and (v) it is an elena¢gertain financial covenants under our debt apegs. We
define Adjusted EBITDA as net income less providimntaxes, depreciation expense, amortization es@estock-
based compensation expense, interest and othen&expense), net.

We use Adjusted EBITDA as a key performance medsecause we believe it facilitates operating
performance comparisons from period to period lluekng potential differences caused by variationsapital
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structures (affecting interest expense), tax pmsitisuch as the impact on periods or companiebarfges in
effective tax rates or fluctuations in permaneffedénces or discrete quarterly items) and the cash impact of
depreciation and amortization and stdidsed compensation expense. Because Adjusted EBfacliRates interne
comparisons of our historical operating performamee more consistent basis, we also use AdjudB@EA for
business planning purposes, to incentivize and emisgte our management personnel and in evaluatgsition
opportunities.

In addition, we believe Adjusted EBITDA and simitaeasures are widely used by investors, securities
analysts, ratings agencies and other interestdigdpam our industry as a measure of financialgrenfance and debt-
service capabilities. Our use of Adjusted EBITD/A Hianitations as an analytical tool, and it shondd be
considered in isolation or as a substitute forysialof our results as reported under GAAP. Sontbedfe
limitations are:

< Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect our cash exgitures for capital equipment or other contractual
commitments

« although depreciation and amortization are-oash charges, the assets being depreciated armtizzdonay
have to be replaced in the future, and AdjustedTBE does not reflect cash capital expenditure
requirements for such replacemel

« Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect changes in, ohcasjuirements for, our working capital nee

< Adjusted EBITDA does not consider the potdtidilutive impact of issuing stock-based compditsato
our management team and employ:

« Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect the signifitanterest expense or the cash requirements reeyess
service interest or principal payments on our itelébess

« Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect certain taayments that may represent a reduction in casled@io
us; anc

« other companies, including companies in odusiry, may calculate Adjusted EBITDA measuresedéhtly,
which reduces their usefulness as a comparativeune.

Because of these limitations, Adjusted EBITDA sldoubt be considered as a measure of discretiorsesty ¢
available to us to invest in the growth of our Inesis. When evaluating our performance, Adjusted’BBI should
be considered alongside other financial performaneasures, including various cash flow metrics,jmeaime and
our other GAAP results.

The following table presents a reconciliation ofjidgled EBITDA to net income, the most comparableABA
measure, for each of the periods indicated:

Three Months Ended
Sept 30, Dec 31, Mar 31, June 30, Sept 30, Dec 31, Mar 31, June 30,

2008 2008 2009 2009 2009 2009 2010 2010
(In thousands)
Net income $ 3304 $ 235 $6,392 $5227 $651° $241C $525( $ 6,411
Interest and other (income)
expense, ne 622 1,311 851 754 61¢ 70¢ 1,35( (320
Provision for taxe: 2,71¢ 1,54; 5,81¢ 3,82¢ 4,83 2,35¢ 3,53¢ 5,54t

Depreciation and amortizatic 4,11¢ 4,23 4,03t 3,592 3,952 4,651 5,07t 5,11z
Stock-based compensation
expense 1,39¢ 1,517 1,47¢ 1,78¢ 2,22¢ 4,864 3,12¢ 3,152
Adjusted EBITDA $12,157 $10,957 $18,57. $15,187 $18,15( $14,98¢ $18,33¢ $19,90!

Adjusted EBITDA quarterly trendsWe seek to manage our business to a consistaitdeAdjusted EBITDA
as a percentage of net revenue. We do so on &yisaabasis by varying our operations to balance
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revenue growth and costs throughout the fiscal. wardo not seek to manage our business to a ¢entsisvel of
Adjusted EBITDA on a quarterly basis.

For quarterly periods ending from September 30820QJune 30, 2010, Adjusted EBITDA as a percentdge
revenue was 19%, 18%, 27%, 22%, 23%, 19%, 20% 2a%g Bspectively. In general, Adjusted EBITDA as a
percentage of revenue tends to be seasonally waralter quarters ending September 30 and, partlgula
December 31, and stronger in quarters ending Matcéind June 30. For the three months ended March089,
Adjusted EBITDA as a percentage of revenue was &idésto a reduction in work force undertaken athbginning
of that period based on concerns held by our manageteam regarding the deteriorating economicatknat that
time. We manage our business to a desired AdjuEBdDA margin level on a fiscal year basis, noteoquarterly
basis, and investors should expect our AdjustedrEBI margins to vary from quarter to quarter.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary operating cash requirements includepthygnent of media costs, personnel costs, costs of
information technology systems and office facilitie

Our principal sources of liquidity as of June 301Q, consisted of cash and cash equivalents of.$XBHion
and our credit facility which had $98.2 million d@adle for borrowing. We believe that our existiogsh and cash
equivalents, available borrowings under the criadifity and cash generated from operations wilkhéficient to
satisfy our currently anticipated cash requiremémsugh at least the next 12 months.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2010 2009 2008
(In thousands)
Cash flows from operating activitir $ 38,50¢ $32,57( $ 24,75
Cash flows from investing activitie (72,239 (27,326 (49,24
Cash flows from financing activitie 164,32: (5,012 22,75¢

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Our net cash provided by operating activities isngrily the result of our net income adjusted fonfcash
expenses such as depreciation and amortizatiark-btmsed compensation expense and changes in \garipital
components, and is influenced by the timing of aadlections from our clients and cash paymentgpfochases of
media and other expenses.

Net cash provided by operating activities in fis2@10 was due to net income of $20.6 million, naskc
depreciation, amortization and stock-based compiemsaxpense of $32.2 million and an increase ooaots
payable and accrued liabilities of $11.3 millioastlly offset by an increase in accounts recdalh
$14.4 million, an increase in deferred taxes o8$8illion, an increase in excess tax benefits ftomexercise of
stock options of $1.9 million, as well as a gaimnfrthe early extinguishment of debt of $1.2 millidine increase in
accounts payable and accrued liabilities is duenimg of payments and increased cost of salescatsd with
increased revenue. The increase in accounts rddeiigmattributable to increased revenue, as vedinaing of
receipts. The increase in deferred taxes is prigndue to larger temporary differences betweerfithencial
statement carrying amount and the tax basis odicegixisting assets and liabilities. The increasexicess tax
benefits is attributable to exercises of stockangiresulting in tax deductions in excess of reetistock-based
compensation expense.

Net cash provided by operating activities in fis2@09 was due to net income of $17.3 million, naskc
depreciation, amortization and stock-based compemsexpense of $22.2 million and increased acepayable
and accrued liabilities of $5.9 million, partiatiffset by an increase in accounts receivable d@ $8llion and
increased deferred taxes of $4.1 million. The iaseein accounts payable and accrued liabilitigsiésto timing of
payments. The increase in accounts receivabledgsalincreased revenue, as well as due to timinga#ipts. The
increase in deferred taxes is due to larger tenpalifferences between the financial statementy@agramount an
the tax basis of certain existing assets and iigsl
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Net cash provided by operating activities in fis2@08 was due to net income of $12.9 million, naskc
depreciation, amortization and stock-based compiemsaxpense of $14.9 million and increased accopayable
and accrued liabilities of $3.0 million, partiathyfset by an increase in deferred taxes of $3.8aniand excess tax
benefits from exercise of stock options of $1.7limil The increase in accounts payable and acdrakiities is dut
to timing of payments. The increase in deferre@sas due to larger temporary differences betweerinancial
statement carrying amount and the tax basis odicegixisting assets and liabilities. The increasexicess tax
benefits is attributable to exercises of stockapiresulting in tax deductions in excess of reetistock-based
compensation expense.

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Our investing activities include acquisitions ofdieewebsites and businesses; purchases, salesaundti®es o
marketable securities; capital expenditures; apital&zed internal development costs.

Cash used in investing activities in fiscal yeat@@as primarily due to our acquisitions of Intdroem,
Insure.com and HSH. We acquired the website busioEthe Internet.com division of WebMediaBrands.] a
New York-based Internet media company, for an initial g@syment of $15.9 million. We acquired the website
business of Insure.com from LifeQuotes, Inc., indis-based online insurance quote service ankdregye
business, for an initial cash payment of $15.0iarill We acquired HSH, a New Jersey-based onlingpaom
providing comprehensive mortgage rate informatfonan initial cash payment of $6.0 million. Caged in
investing activities in fiscal year 2010 was alffe@ed by purchases of the operations of 30 otfedrsite
publishing businesses for an aggregate of $31Bbmih cash payments, which included $4.5 millafrcontingent
consideration related to the acquisition of SurgHiitfiscal year 2008. Capital expenditures anerivdl software
development costs totaled $4.1 million in fiscahy2010.

Cash used in investing activities in fiscal yea®@2Was affected by the acquisition of CardRatiragsah initial
cash payment of $10.4 million, as well as purcha$else operations of 33 other website publishingibesses for
an aggregate of $14.6 million in cash paymentsit@agxpenditures and internal software developneests totale
$2.4 million in fiscal year 2009. Cash used in istirgg activities in fiscal year 2009 was partialyset by proceeds
from sales and maturities of marketable securdfe&2.3 million.

Cash used in investing activities in fiscal yea®@2Was driven by the acquisitions of SureHits,
ReliableRemodeler and Vendorseek for an aggregdtal icash payment of $54.7 million, as well asghases of
the operations of 20 website publishing businefmesn aggregate of $9.5 million in cash payme@tpital
expenditures and internal software developmensdosaled $3.6 million in fiscal year 2008. Cashdis investing
activities in fiscal year 2008 was partially offést proceeds from sales and maturities of marketadturities, net
of purchases of marketable securities, of $17.5anil

Net Cash Provided by or Used in Financing Activiie

Cash provided by financing activities in fiscal y2810 was primarily due to proceeds from our IR&L, of
issuance costs, of $136.8 million, draw-down of onadit facility, net of principal payments, of $20million,
proceeds from stock option exercises of $1.6 nmlkod excess tax benefits of $1.9 million, pastiaffset by
$15.5 million of principal payments on acquisiti;dated notes payable.

Cash used in financing activities in fiscal yea@2@vas due to principal payments on acquisitioatesl notes
payable and our term loan of $13.1 million and lst@purchases of $1.3 million, partially offset fmpceeds from a
draw-down of our revolving credit line of $8.6 rivih.

Cash provided by financing activities in fiscal y2808 was driven by proceeds from our term loan of
$29.0 million and proceeds from stock option exssiof $2.6 million, partially offset by paymentss.6 million
in common stock repurchases and $4.9 million aigpal payments on acquisition-related notes payabl

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

During the periods presented, we did not have alationships with unconsolidated entities or firiahc
partnerships, such as entities often referred &irastured finance or special purpose entitieschvivould have
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been established for the purpose of facilitatirfgbafance sheet arrangements or other contractoattpw or
limited purposes.
Contractual Obligations

Our contractual obligations relate primarily to tmwings under the credit facility, notes payabtgserating
leases and purchase obligations.

The following table sets forth payments due underomntractual obligations as of June 30, 2010:

Payments Due by Perioc
Total Less Than1lYea 1to3Years 3to5 Yearc More Than 5 Years
(In thousands)

Credit facility $ 75,90 $ 3,96: $§ 19,68t $ 52,25! $ =
Notes payabli 19,54 12,27¢ 5,14: 2,12: —
Operating lease obligatiol 17,64: 1,44: 3,21¢ 4,711 8,26¢

$113,08¢ $ 17,68: $ 28,05( $ 59,08" $ 8,26¢

The above table does not include approximately 8#lifon of long-term income tax liabilities for gertainty
in income taxes due to the fact that we are unableasonably estimate the timing of these potkfutiare
payments.

In connection with the acquisition of SureHits, may be required to make certain earn-out paymaerttsei
aggregate amount of $9.0 million, payable in inazata in the amount of $4.5 million annually in Jaryuof 2011
and 2012, contingent upon the achievement of dpddihancial targets.

New Credit Facility

In January 2010, we replaced our existing creditifg with a credit facility totaling $175.0 mitin. The new
facility consists of a $35.0 million four-year tetoan, with principal amortization of 10%, 15%, 3%#td 40%
annually, and a $140.0 million four-year revolviergdit line with an optional increase of $50.0 il Borrowings
under the credit facility are collateralized by @ssets and interest is payable quarterly at spdgaifargins above
either LIBOR or the Prime Rate. The interest ratges dependent upon the ratio of funded debt jisstet
EBITDA and ranges from LIBOR + 2.125% to 2.875%Poime + 1.00% to 1.50% for the revolving credieliand
from LIBOR + 2.50% to 3.25% or Prime + 1.00% to@&for the term loan. Adjusted EBITDA is definedrex
income less provision for taxes, depreciation espeamortization expense, stock-based compensatimmse,
interest and other income (expense), net and dtiqunisosts for business combinations. The revaj\iredit line
also requires a quarterly facility fee of 0.375%laf revolving credit line capacity. The creditifi#g expires in
January 2014. The credit facility agreement retstiocir ability to raise additional debt financingdgpay dividends.
In addition, we are required to maintain financalios computed as follows:

1. Quick ratio: ratio of (i) the sum of unrestridteash and cash equivalents and trade receivasgsHan
90 days from invoice date to (ii) current liab#isi and face amount of any letters of credit lessthrent
portion of deferred revenue.

2. Fixed charge coverage: ratio of (i) trailing iveemonths of adjusted EBITDA to (ii) the sum opdal
expenditures, net cash interest expense, cash tmgsdividends and trailing twelve months payment
indebtedness. Payment of unsecured indebtednessligled to the degree that sufficient unused rewvgl
credit line exists such that the relevant debt paytncould be made from the credit facility.

3. Funded debt to adjusted EBITDA.: ratio of (i) $wem of all obligations owed to lending institutipnhe
face amount of any letters of credit, indebtedmssd in connection with acquisition-related noted a
indebtedness owed in connection with capital ledigations to (i) trailing twelve months of adfad
EBITDA.

Under the terms of the credit facility we must ntain a minimum quick ratio of 1.15 to 1.00, a minim fixed
charge coverage ratio of 1.15 to 1.00 and a maxirfwnded debt to adjusted EBITDA ratio of 2.75 tBQLthrough
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December 31, 2010 and 2.50 to 1.00 for all fiscalrtprs thereafter and we must comply with otherfirmancial
covenants. We were in compliance with the finan@tibs and other covenants as of June 30, 20120l

New Lease

As the existing lease for our corporate headqualteated at 1051 Hillsdale Boulevard, Foster Citglifornia
expires in October 2010, we entered into a newelegseement in February 2010 for approximately @8 sjuare
feet of office space located at 950 Tower Laneté¥dSity, California. The term of the lease beginsNovember 1,
2010 and expires on the last day of the 96th alkiedar month commencing on or after November 102The
monthly base rent will be abated for the first B2adar months under the lease. Thereafter therbaseill be
$118,000 through the 24th calendar month of tha tfrthe lease, after which the monthly base rehinerease to
$182,000 for the subsequent 12 months. In theviatig years the monthly base rent will increase apipnately 3%
after each 12-month anniversary during the tertheflease, including any extensions under our optto extend.

We have two options to extend the term of the Iéasene additional year for each option followitig
expiration date of the lease or renewal term, adicgble.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We have prepared our consolidated financial statésria conformity with accounting principles gerisra
accepted in the United States of America (GAAPYXdimg so, we are required to make estimates asutrgstions
that affect the reported amounts of assets antlitied, disclosure of contingent assets and litieg at the date of
the financial statements and reported amountsvefmge and expenses during the reporting period.

Some of the estimates and assumptions we are eglfoimake relate to matters that are inherenttedain as
they pertain to future events. We base these estin@and assumptions on historical experience madpus other
factors that we believe to be reasonable and apptepunder the circumstances. On an ongoing basisgconside
and evaluate our estimates and assumptions. Aesialts may differ significantly from these estigmt

We believe that the critical accounting policiesdd below involve our more significant judgmeetgimates
and assumptions and, therefore, could have théegtgaotential impact on our consolidated finanstatements. In
addition, we believe that a discussion of thes&@d is necessary to understand and evaluateotieolidated
financial statements contained in this report.

For further information on our critical and othégrsficant accounting policies, see Note 2 of consolidated
financial statements included in this report.

Revenue Recognition

We derive our revenue from two sources: Direct Méirlg Services (“DMS”) and Direct Selling Services
(HDSS”).

DMS revenue is derived primarily from fees whick aarned through the delivery of qualified leadslioks.
We recognize revenue when persuasive evidence afrangement exists, delivery has occurred, thésféred or
determinable and collectability is reasonably assgubDelivery is deemed to have occurred at the &rgealified
lead or click is delivered to the client providédt no significant obligations remain.

From time to time, we may agree to credit a clientertain leads or clicks if they fail to meegtbontractual
or other guidelines of a particular client. We haggblished a sales reserve based on historipatience. To date,
such credits have been immaterial and within opeetations.

For a portion of our revenue, we have agreementsproviders of online media or traffic (“Publisk&rused
in the generation of leads or clicks. We receiveeafrom our clients and pay a fee to Publishafseeion a cost per
lead, cost per click or cost per thousand impressimsis. We are the primary obligor in the tratisacAs a result,
the fees paid by our clients are recognized asuexvand the fees paid to our Publishers are indludeost of
revenue.
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DSS revenue comprises (i) set-up and professi@maices fees and (ii) usage fees. Set-up and wiofes
service fees that do not provide stand-alone viaizeclient are recognized over the contractuah tef the
agreement or the expected client relationship derdichever is longer, effective when the applarateaches the
“go-live” date. We define the “go-live” date as ttiate when the application enters into a produatiorironment or
all essential functionalities have been delivetéshge fees are recognized on a monthly basis asckar

Deferred revenue is comprised of contractual lgliin excess of recognized revenue and paymerds/egkin
advance of revenue recognition.

Stock-Based Compensation

We record stoclbased compensation expense for employee stockngmianted or modified on or after Jul
2006 based on estimated fair values for these stptiéns. We continue to account for stock optigremted to
employees prior to July 1, 2006 based on the isitrimalue of those stock options.

We measure and record the expense related to bhaeegl transactions based on the fair values aiviaeds as
determined on the date of grant using an optiociimodel. We have selected the Black-Schole®optiicing
model to estimate the fair value of our stock apgiawards to employees. In applying the Black-Sehoption
pricing model, our determination of fair value bétshare-based payment award on the date of graffected by
our estimated fair value of common shares for gramade prior to our IPO, as well as assumptionaroigg a
number of highly complex and subjective variabl#sese variables include, but are not limited te,eRkpected
stock price volatility over the term of the stogitions awards and the employees’ actual and pegjestbck option
exercise and pre-vesting employment terminatiorabiens. We recognize stock-based compensation sepaver
the requisite service period using the straighe-limethod, based on awards ultimately expecteddb We estimate
future forfeitures at the date of grant and retigeestimates, if necessary, in subsequent peifiadtual forfeitures
differ from those estimates.

Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment at the reportingt level on an annual basis and whenever everdbanges
in circumstances indicate the carrying value oasset may not be recoverable. Application of thedgall
impairment test requires judgment, including thenidfication of reporting units, assigning assetd babilities to
reporting units, assigning goodwill to reportingtanand determining the fair value of each repgrtinit.
Significant judgments required to estimate the ¥alue of reporting units include estimating futeesh flows and
determining appropriate discount rates, growthsratel other assumptions. Changes in these estiarades
assumptions could materially affect the determaratf fair value for each reporting unit which adatigger
impairment.

We concluded that DMS and DSS constitute two sépaegporting units. We determined the fair valueaf
DMS reporting unit by adjusting the fair value bétbusiness enterprise based on our market captiah for the
fair value of the DSS reporting unit. The fair valof our DSS reporting unit was estimated usingribeme
approach. Under the income approach, we calcutatethir value of our DSS reporting unit basedtmpresent
value of estimated future cash flows. We performedannual goodwill impairment test in the fourtihager for our
DMS and DSS reporting units. Our assessment of\gitlachpairment indicated that the fair value ofrddMS
reporting unit was substantially in excess of #srging value. The estimated fair value of our D8forting unit
also exceeded its carrying value as of June 3®).ZDe carrying value of our DSS reporting unituges allocated
goodwill of $1.2 million which represents less tHg of our total goodwill balance.

The fair value of the reporting units and hencevtleation of goodwill could be affected if actuasults differ
substantially from our estimates. Circumstancesdbald affect the valuation of goodwill includemang other
things, a significant change in our market captlon, the business climate and buying habitsuoisabscriber
base and with respect to the DSS reporting unitabe of a significant customer.

Long-Lived Assets

We evaluate long-lived assets, such as propertyegngpment and purchased intangible assets wiite fimes,
for impairment whenever events or changes in cigtantes indicate that the carrying value of antasag
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not be recoverable. We apply judgment when assg#isinfair value of the assets based on the undgiged future
cash flows the assets are expected to generateanghize an impairment loss if estimated undistzifuture
cash flows expected to result from the use of Hseplus net proceeds expected from dispositidheosset, if
any, are less than the carrying value of the ag¢leen we identify an impairment, we reduce theyiag amount of
the asset to its estimated fair value based osadited cash flow approach or, when availablesppdopriate, to
comparable market values.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes using an asset anilitiadpproach to record deferred taxes. Our def@income
tax assets represent temporary differences betthedinancial statement carrying amount and thebtesis of
existing assets and liabilities that will resultdaductible amounts in future years, includingapdrating loss carry
forwards. Based on estimates, the carrying valumiohet deferred tax assets assumes that it is likety than not
that we will be able to generate sufficient futtarable income in certain tax jurisdictions. Outgment regarding
future profitability may change due to future markenditions, changes in U.S. or internationalltaxs and other
factors.

On July 1, 2007, we adopted the authoritative actiog guidance prescribing a threshold and measemem
attribute for the financial recognition and measugat of a tax position taken or expected to bertake tax return.
The guidance also provides for de-recognition efit@nefits, classification on the balance she#tyést and
penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclesamd transition. The guidance utilizes a two-stgproach for
evaluating uncertain tax positions. Step one, Reitiog, requires a company to determine if the Weigf available
evidence indicates that a tax position is moreyikiean not to be sustained upon audit, includiegptution of
related appeals or litigation processes, if ang. thix position is not considered “more likely theot” to be sustaine
then no benefits of the position are to be recagmhiBtep two, Measurement, is based on the laagestnt of
benefit, which is more likely than not to be reatizon ultimate settlement. The cumulative effeaddption to the
opening balance of retained earnings was $1.7anilli

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Stansl&uolard (“FASB”) issued a new accounting standaad t
changes the accounting for business combinationkiding the measurement of acquirer shares issued
consideration for a business combination, the meitiog of contingent consideration, the accounfioigpre-
acquisition gain and loss contingencies, the reitiognof capitalized in-process research and deyrelent, the
accounting for acquisition-related restructuringtcaccruals, the treatment of acquisition-relatadgaction costs
and the recognition of changes in the acquirecsiime tax valuation allowance. The new standardieppl
prospectively to business combinations for whighdhquisition date is on or after the beginnintheffirst annual
reporting period beginning on or after December2I®)8 and to changes in valuation allowances féerded tax
assets and acquired income tax uncertainties grigdm past business combinations. The adoptichehew
standard on July 1, 2009 did not have a materiatedn our consolidated financial statements.

In October 2009, the FASB amended the accountampstrds for revenue recognition to remove tangible
products containing software components and notwsoé components that function together to delilier
product’s essential functionality from the scopénafustry-specific software revenue recognitiondguice. In
October 2009, the FASB also amended the accoustimglards for multiple deliverable revenue arrareygmto

« provide updated guidance on whether multigliverables exist, how the deliverables in an agemment
should be separated, and how the consideratioridhbeuwallocated

e require an entity to allocate revenue in aarsgement using estimated selling price (“ES#"leliverables i
a vendor does not have vendor-specific objectivdesce (“WSOE”) of selling price or third-party eénce
(“TPE") of selling price;

« and eliminate the use of the residual method aqdire an entity to allocate revenue using the irgdaelling
price method
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Both standards should be applied on a prospectisis lior revenue arrangements entered into or rabyer
modified in fiscal years beginning on or after Jdie 2010, with early adoption permitted. We do antticipate the
adoption of these standards in the first quartdisofl year 2011 to have a material impact onamnsolidated
financial statements.

In January 2010, the FASB issued a new fair vatweanting standard update. This update requiretiaiolal
disclosures about (i) the different classes oftasmed liabilities measured at fair value, (ii) trduation techniques
and inputs used, (iii) the activity in Level 3 faimlue measurements, and (iv) the transfers betleeels 1, 2, and
3. This update is effective for interim and anmegorting periods beginning after December 15, 200@ adoptiot
of the new standard in the third quarter of fi2@10 did not have a material effect on our constdid financial
statements.

In February 2010, the FASB amended its accountiridagce for the accounting and disclosure of eveatis
occur after the balance sheet date but beforediabstatements are issued. In particular, the amendment sets
forth that a registrant is no longer required tecttise the date through which it has evaluatedesulent events. Tt
amended guidance became effective in February 26d@vas adopted by us in the third quarter of fi26a0. The
adoption of the new standard did not have a mateffiect on our consolidated financial statements.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MagkRisk

We are exposed to market risks in the ordinary s®of our business. These risks include primaaitgifyn
currency exchange and interest rate risks.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

To date, our international client agreements haentpredominately denominated in U.S. dollars, and
accordingly, we have limited exposure to foreigrrency exchange rate fluctuations related to cligmeements,
and do not currently engage in foreign currencygimegitransactions. As the local accounts for sofrmuoforeign
operations are maintained in the local currencthefrespective country, we are subject to foreigmency exchan¢
rate fluctuations associated with the remeasuretoddtS. dollars. A hypothetical change of 10%adrefgn
currency exchange rates would not have a matdfedteon our consolidated financial condition osués of
operations.

Interest Rate Risk

We invest our cash equivalents and short-term invests primarily in money market funds and shomtate
deposits with original maturities of less than ghreonths. Unrestricted cash, cash equivalents laort-term
investments are held for working capital purposesacquisition financing. We do not enter into isiveents for
trading or speculative purposes. We believe thatlovaot have material exposure to changes in thediue as a
result of changes in interest rates due to thetgbon nature of our investments. Declines in ies¢rates may
reduce future investment income. However, a hypmthledecline of 1% in the interest rate on ourestments
would not have a material effect on our consoliddi@ancial condition or results of operations.

As of June 30, 2010, we had an outstanding cradilitiy with a total borrowing capacity of $175.0lkon.
Interest on borrowings under the credit facilityp&yable quarterly at specified margins above eithBOR or the
Prime Rate. Our exposure to interest rate risk utidecredit facility will depend on the extentvithich we utilize
such facility. As of June 30, 2010, we had $75.Bioni outstanding under our credit facility. A hythetical increas
of 1% in the LIBOR-based interest rate on our drdiility would result in an increase in our irgst expense of
$0.8 million per year, assuming constant borrowawgls.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
of QuinStreet, Inc.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetadisted in the index appearing under Item 15{g)(&sent
fairly, in all material respects, the financial fims of QuinStreet, Inc. and its subsidiarieswate) 30, 2010 and
June 30, 2009, and the results of their operatmaistheir cash flows for each of the three yeathémperiod ended
June 30, 2010 in conformity with accounting prifeggenerally accepted in the United States of Asaen
addition, in our opinion, the financial statemectiedule listed in the index appearing under Itefa)(8) presents
fairly, in all material respects, the informaticet $orth therein when read in conjunction with th&ated
consolidated financial statements. These finarstébments and financial statement schedule amresipensibility
of the Company’s management. Our responsibilitp isxpress an opinion on these financial statensrds
financial statement schedule based on our audigscdiducted our audits of these statements in daooe with th
standards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdiglard (United States). Those standards requaevtk plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabgut whether the financial statements are fresaterial
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on Blasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the
financial statements, assessing the accountingiptés used and significant estimates made by neanagt, and
evaluating the overall financial statement pred@raWe believe that our audits provide a reastmbhsis for our
opinion.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated findrst&ements, the Company adopted the new accauntin
standard for business combinations in 2010.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
September 13, 2010
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QUINSTREET, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

June 30,
2010 2009
ASSETS
Current assetl
Cash and cash equivale $155,77( $ 25,18:
Accounts receivable, n 51,46¢ 33,28:
Deferred tax asse 8,52¢ 5,54:
Prepaid expenses and other as 3,128 1,22¢
Total current asse 218,88° 65,23¢
Property and equipment, r 5,41¢ 4,741
Goodwill 158,58: 106,74
Other intangible assets, r 47,15¢ 33,99(
Deferred tax assets, noncurr: 3,972 1,52t
Other assets, noncurre 614 64z
Total asset $434,63( $212,87¢
LIABILITIES, CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND STOCKH OLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payabl $ 16,77¢ $ 13,40¢
Accrued liabilities 30,14¢ 21,79¢
Deferred revenu 1,241 71€
Debt 15,56: 12,89(
Total current liabilities 63,72 48,81(
Deferred revenue, noncurre 30E 82C
Debt, noncurren 78,04¢ 44,35(
Other liabilities, noncurrer 2,53¢ 2,30¢
Total liabilities 144,60¢ 96,28¢

Commitments and contingencies (See Note
Convertible preferred stock: $0.001 par value; 6,000 and 30,000,000 shares authorized;
0 and 21,176,533 shares issued and outstandingat3D, 2010 and 2009, respectively;
liquidation value of $0 and $69,564 at June 30,0281d 2009, respective — 43,40
Stockholder equity
Common stock: $0.001 par value; 100,000,000 an@045000 shares authorized:;
47,247,147 and 15,413,000 shares issued, and 469%8nd 13,315,348 shares

outstanding at June 30, 2010 and 2009, respec! 47 15
Additional paic-in capital 217,58: 20,63¢
Treasury stock, at cost (2,177,452 and 2,097,6&&shat June 30, 2010 and 2009,

respectively’ (7,779 (7,069
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 9 21
Retained earning 80,16¢ 59,58(

Total stockholder' equity 290,02: 73,18¢

Total liabilities, convertible preferred stock astdckholder equity $434,63( $212,87¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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QUINSTREET, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2010 2009 2008

Net revenue $334,83! $260,52° $192,03(
Cost of revenue(1 240,73( 181,59: 130,86
Gross profit 94,10¢ 78,93¢ 61,161
Operating expenses:(

Product developmel 19,72¢ 14,88 14,05

Sales and marketir 16,69¢ 16,15+ 12,40¢

General and administratiy 18,46¢ 13,17: 13,371
Operating incom: 39,215 34,721 21,33(
Interest incom 97 24F 1,48z
Interest expens (3,977 (3,549 (1,219
Other income (expense), r 1,52: (239 14E
Income before income tax 36,86( 31,18: 21,74
Provision for taxe: (16,276) (13,909 (8,87¢6)
Net income $ 20,58 $ 17,27« $ 12,86]
Net income attributable to common stockholc

Basic $12,78: $ 5,39¢ $ 3,66¢

Diluted $ 13,200 $ 5,79¢ $ 4,02¢
Net income per share attributable to common stdcldns

Basic $ 05C $ 041 $ 0.2¢

Diluted $ 04€¢ $ 03¢ $ 0.2¢
Weighted average shares used in computing net iage@mnshare attributable

to common stockholde

Basic 25,61¢ 13,29/ 13,10

Diluted 28,42¢ 14,971 15,32

(1) Cost of revenue and operating expenses includ&-based compensation expense as follc

Cost of revenu $3,111 $1,91¢ $1,112
Product developmel 2,17¢ 66¢ 442
Sales and marketir 3,46¢ 1,761 581
General and administrati 4,621 1,827 1,08¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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QUINSTREET, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED ST OCK, STOCKHOLDERS’
EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In thousands, except share data)

Accumulated

Convertible Additional Other Total
Preferred Stock Common Stock Treasury Stock Paid-in  Comprehensive Retained Shareholders Comprehensive
Shares Amount Shares  Amount Shares  Amount _ Capital Income Earnings Equity Income
Balance at June 30, 200 21,176,53 $43,40¢ | 14,350,08 $ 14 (1,375,64)$ (121)$ 6,18( $ 95 $ 31,14« $ 37,31:
Issuance of common sto
upon exercise of stock
options — — 893,19° 1 — — 2,57¢ — — 2,57¢
Stocl-based compensatic — — — — — — 3,22% — — 3,22%
Excess tax benefits fro
stocl-based compensatic — — — — — — 1,707 — — 1,707
Repurchase of commc
shares — — — — (558,730 (5,606 — — — (5,606)
Cumulative effect o
adoption of accounting f
uncertain tax position — — — — — — — — (1,705 (1,705
Comprehensive incom
Net income — — — — — — — — 12,867 12,867 12,867
Unrealized gain o
investment — — — — — — — 10 — 10 10
Currency translatio
adjustment: — — — — — — — (72) — (72) (77)
Comprehensive incomr — — — — — — — — — — 3 12,80¢
Balance at June 30, 200 21,176,53 $43,40¢ | 15,243,28 $ 15 (1,934,37)$(5,72)$ 13,68: $ 34 $ 42,30¢ $ 50,31:
Issuance of common sto
upon exercise of stock
options — — 169,71¢ — — — 304 — — 304
Stock-based compensatic — — — — — — 6,17:¢ — — 6,17¢
Excess tax benefits fro
stocl-based compensatic — — — — — — 474 — — 474
Repurchase of commc
stock — — — — (163,279 (1,33) — — — (1,337)
Comprehensive incom
Net income — — — — — — — — 17,27+ 17,27+ 17,27+
Unrealized gain o
investments — — — — — — — (10 — (10) (20
Currency translatio
adjustment: — — — — — — — 3) — 3) 3
Comprehensive incorr — — = = = = = — — —$ 17,26
Balance at June 30, 200 21,176,53 $43,40¢ | 15,413,00 $ 15 (2,097,65) $(7,069)$ 20,63 $ 21 $ 59,58( $ 73,18¢
Issuance of common sto
upon exercise of stock
options — — 657,61« 1 — 1,63¢ — — 1,64(
Issuance of common stock
connection with initial
public offering, net of
issuance costs of $13,2 — 10,000,00 1C 136,77¢ 136,78!
Conversion of preferre
stock to common stock il
connection with initial
public offering (21,176,53) (43,407 | 21,176,53 21 — — 43,38: — — 43,40¢
Stocl-based compensatic — — — — — 13,37: — — 13,37:
Excess tax benefits fro
stock-based compensatic — — — — — 1,78( — — 1,78(
Repurchase of commc
stock — — — — (79,800 (715 — — — (715)
Comprehensive incom
Net income — — — — — — — —  20,58¢ 20,58¢ 20,58¢
Currency translatio
adjustment: — — — — — — — 12 — 12 12
Comprehensive incorr — — — — — — — — — —$ 20,57:
Balance at June 30, 201 — $ — | 47,247,14 $ 47 (2,177,45)$(7,779 $ 217,58. $ 9 $ 80,16¢ $ 290,02

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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QUINSTREET, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2010 2009 2008
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $ 20,58 $17,27¢ $12,86]
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizatic 18,791 15,97¢ 11,727
Provision for sales returns and doubtful accouedgivable (757) 1,47: 1,14¢
Stocl-based compensatic 13,371 6,17: 3,222
Excess tax benefits from stc-based compensatic (1,859 (474 (1,707
(Gain) loss, net on early extinguishment of ¢ (1,179 — —
Other nor-cash adjustments, n (4493 563 36¢
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effetcquisitions
Accounts receivabl (14,407) (9,042 (921)
Prepaid expenses and other as 29 48k (228)
Other assets, noncurre 11 (710) (555)
Deferred taxe (6,777) (4,08)) (3,779
Accounts payabl 3,36: 3,35¢ (4,977)
Accrued liabilities 7,90( 2,491 8,02(
Deferred revenu (112 (720) (9549
Other liabilities, noncurrer (22 (199 514
Net cash provided by operating activit 38,50¢ 32,57( 24,75
Cash flows from investing activities
Restricted cas 14 711 (23)
Proceeds from sales of property and equipr 53 — 44
Capital expenditure (2,710 (1,349 (2,177)
Business acquisitions, net of notes payable artul @aeguirec (68,176) (27,93 (63,249
Internal software development co (1,419 (2,060 (1,37%)
Purchases of marketable securi — (11,642

Proceeds from sales and maturities of marketalblerisies 2,30z 29,17:

Net cash used in investing activiti (72,237) (27,32¢) (49,249
Cash flows from financing activities
Net proceeds from issuance of common s 136,79( — —
Proceeds from exercise of common stock opt 1,64( 304 2,57t
Proceeds from bank de 43,30( 8,607 29,00(
Principal payments on bank de (3,100 (3,500 —
Principal payments on acquisit-related notes payab (15,45() (9,560 (4,920
Excess tax benefits from stc-based compensatic 1,85¢ 474 1,707
Repurchases of common stc (715) (1,337 (5,606

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 164,32 (5,019 22,75¢
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and caslaénts 12 (©)] (72)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 130,58t 22¢ (1,819
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe 25,18 24,95 26,76¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $155,77( $25,18: $24,95:
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informatior
Cash paid for intere: 3,86( 2,26¢ 1,19¢
Cash paid for taxe 22,10¢ 20,35¢ 8,47:
Supplemental disclosure of noncash investing andhfancing activities
Conversion of preferred stock to common st 43,40: — —
Notes payable issued in connection with busineggisitions 14,501 8,151 16,91(

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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QUINSTREET, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

1. The Company

QuinStreet, Inc. (the “Company”) is an online meaiil marketing company. The Company was incorpdrate
in California on April 16, 1999 and reincorporaiadelaware on December 31, 2009. The Company gesvi
vertically oriented customer acquisition programsifs clients. The Company also provides hostégtiems for
direct selling companies. The corporate headqusaser located in Foster City, California, with offs in Arkansas,
Connecticut, Massachusetts, Nevada, New Jersey,Yoeky North Carolina, Oklahoma, Oregon, India dimel
United Kingdom.

Initial Public Offering

In connection with the Company’s reincorporatiorb@aware in December 2009, the Company incredsed i
number of authorized shares of common and prefestaak to 50,500,000 and 35,500,000, respectiasig,
established the par value of each share of commodmpeeferred stock to be $0.001. The previouslgtaniding
5,367,756 shares of Series A convertible prefestedk were converted on a two-for-one basis into
10,735,512 shares of Series A convertible prefesteck of the reincorporated company. Common sémek
additional paid-in capital amounts in these finahstatements have been adjusted to reflect thegbae of
common stock.

In February 2010, the Company completed its ingigblic offering (“IPQO”) of its common stock in wdf it
sold and issued 10,000,000 shares of common staokiasue price of $15.00 per share. A total &BQ00 in
gross proceeds were raised from the IPO and $13678et proceeds after deducting underwriting alisits and
commissions of $10,500 and other offering cost$2)715. Upon the closing of the offering, all sisanéthe
Company'’s then-outstanding convertible preferredisautomatically converted into 21,176,533 shafemmon
stock.

After the completion of the IPO in February 201 Company amended its certificate of incorporasiod
increased its number of authorized shares of constank to 100,000,000 and reduced the number dbaaed
shares of preferred stock to 5,000,000.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include tw@ants of the Company and its subsidiaries. |ntapany
balances and transactions have been eliminateshsotidation.
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conféymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia
United States of America requires management tceregkmates and assumptions that affect the repanwunts
of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingesgets and liabilities at the date of the findratetements and
reported amounts of revenue and expenses duringploeting period. These estimates are based omirattion
available as of the date of the financial statesigherefore, actual results could differ from #hestimates.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives its revenue from two sourceggcbMarketing Services (“DMS”) and Direct Selling
Services (“DSS”). DMS revenue, which constitute@®®9% and 98% of net revenue in fiscal year 22009 and
2008, respectively, is derived primarily from feesich are earned through the delivery of qualifesids or clicks.
The Company recognizes revenue when persuasivermgdf an arrangement exists, delivery has oatutiie
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QUINSTREET, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

fee is fixed or determinable and collectabilityéasonably assured. Delivery is deemed to haveraatat the time
a qualified lead or click is delivered to the cligmovided that no significant obligations remain.

From time to time, the Company may agree to cr@ditent for certain leads or clicks if they failmeet the
contractual or other guidelines of a particulaeti The Company has established a sales resesed ba historical
experience. To date, such credits have been imialsa&d within management’s expectations.

For a portion of its revenue, the Company has agea¢s with providers of online media or traffic
(“Publishers”)used in the generation of leads or clicks. The Camgpeceives a fee from its clients and pays adf
Publishers either on a cost per lead, cost pek olicost per thousand impressions basis or ast@pof revenue
generated. The Company is the primary obligor enttansaction. As a result, the fees paid by thmg2my’s clients
are recognized as revenue and the fees paidPRulitishers are included in cost of revenue.

DSS revenue, which constituted 1%, 1% and 2% ofewatnue in fiscal year 2010, 2009 and 2008, reisady,
comprises (i) set-up and professional servicesdeadq(ii) usage fees. Set-apd professional service fees that dc
provide stand-alone value to a client are recogh@eer the contractual term of the agreement oexpected client
relationship period, whichever is longer, effectivieen the application reaches the “go-live” datee Tompany
defines the “go-live” date as the date when thdiegpon enters into a production environment deabkential
functionalities have been delivered. Usage feesearegnized on a monthly basis as earned.

Deferred revenue is comprised of contractual lghiim excess of recognized revenue and paymerds/egkin
advance of revenue recognition.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject @@mmpany to significant concentrations of credik @ensist
principally of cash and cash equivalents and adsowgteivable. Cash and cash equivalents are de@agith
financial institutions that management believescaeglitworthy. The deposits exceed federally indwmamounts. To
date, the Company has not experienced any lossesd#posits of cash and cash equivalents.

The Company’s accounts receivable are derived Bigents located principally in the United StatebeT
Company performs ongoing credit evaluation of lisnts, does not require collateral, and maintailmvances for
potential credit losses on client accounts whemdeknecessary. To date, such losses have been withi
management’s expectations.

Clients accounting for over 10% of total net revenail of which were from our DMS segment, were as

follows:
Fiscal Year Ended
June 30,
201C 2009 2008
Client A * 1% 23%
Client B * * 12%
Client C * * 11%

* indicates less than 10% of total net revenue ferptriod.

One client accounted for 12% of the net accourtsivable as of June 30, 2009.
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QUINSTREET, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments consist priaftipof cash equivalents, accounts receivable, @uso
payable, acquisition-related notes payable, a team and a revolving credit line. The fair valuetlod Company’s
cash equivalents is determined based on quoteéspricactive markets for identical assets. Therdembvalues of
the Company'’s accounts receivable and accountdbfmgpproximate their current fair values due ®ritlatively
short-term nature of these accounts. The fair vaftsequisition-related notes payable approxim#ies recorded
amounts as the interest rates on similar finanamgngements available to the Company at June(3@, 2
approximates the interest rates implied when thegeisition-related notes payable were originaued and
recorded. The Company believes that the fair vabfidise term loan and revolving credit line approate their
recorded amounts at June 30, 2010 as the intateston these instruments are variable and basethdet interes
rates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid investments with maturities ofrse months or less at the date of purchase arsfidasas cas
equivalents. Cash equivalents consist primarilgnohey market funds and time deposits with origmaturities of
three months or less. Cash equivalents amount®#i36,630 and $9,395 at June 30, 2010 and 2009.

Restricted Cash

At June 30, 2010 and 2009, the Company had $6 20dr&spectively, of cash restricted from withdrbarad

held by a bank in certificate of deposits.
Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost lessradated depreciation and amortization, and areetégied
on a straight-line basis over the estimated udiefes of the assets, as follows:

Computer equipmet 3 years

Software 3 years

Furniture and fixture 3to 5 year:

Leasehold improvements the shorter of the lease term or the estimatedilbegs

of the improvement

Internal Software Development Costs

The Company incurs costs to develop software fiarimal use. The Company expenses all costs tlesere
the planning and post-implementation phases ofldpueent as product development expense. Costsrettur the
development phase are capitalized and amortizedtbggroducs estimated useful life if the product is expedte
have a useful life beyond six months. Costs astatiaith repair or maintenance of existing sitether
developments of website content are included it @bsevenue in the accompanying statements ofatjpss. The
Company’s policy is to amortize capitalized intérsaftware development costs on a product-by-prodasis usin
the straight-line method over the estimated ecoadifei of the application, which is generally twears. The
Company capitalized $1,414, $1,060, and $1,37&@afyears 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Aimaiion of
internal software development costs is reflectecbist of revenue.

Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment at the reportingjt level on an annual basis and whenever evardtbanges
in circumstances indicate the carrying value oasset may not be recoverable. Application of thedgall
impairment test requires judgment, including thenitfication of reporting units, assigning assetd kabilities to
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QUINSTREET, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

reporting units, assigning goodwill to reportingtanand determining the fair value of each repgrtinit.
Significant judgments required to estimate the Value of reporting units include estimating futeesh flows and
determining appropriate discount rates, growthsrated other assumptions. Changes in these estiarades
assumptions could materially affect the determaratf fair value for each reporting unit which adatigger
impairment.

The Company has determined that DMS and DSS cotestitvo separate reporting units. The Company
performs its annual goodwill impairment review agrits fourth fiscal quarter and concluded thatdyeit was not
impaired. No impairment charges were recordedérperiods presented.

Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates long-lived assets, suchogefy and equipment and purchased intangible sagstt
finite lives, for impairment whenever events ormes in circumstances indicate that the carryiigevaf an asset
may not be recoverable. The Company applies judgmiean assessing the fair value of the assets lmsdue
undiscounted future cash flows the assets are &ghéw generate and recognizes an impairmentfiestimated
undiscounted future cash flows expected to resnithfthe use of the asset plus net proceeds expiotad
disposition of the asset, if any, are less tharctreying value of the asset. When the Companytifiienan
impairment, it reduces the carrying amount of tegetito its estimated fair value based on a digedurash flow
approach or, when available and appropriate, topeoable market values. No impairment charges weserded in
the periods presented.

Advertising Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as theganeed. Advertising expenses for fiscal years@@D09
and 2008 were $139, $185 and $67, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using ar asddiability approach to record deferred taxdse
Company’s deferred income tax assets representtamypdifferences between the financial statemarnyng
amount and the tax basis of existing assets ahilities that will result in deductible amountsfirture years,
including net operating loss carry forwards. Bagedstimates, the carrying value of the Compsumgt deferred te
assets assumes that it is more likely than notttieaCompany will be able to generate sufficienarfe taxable
income in certain tax jurisdictions. The Companjyidgments regarding future profitability may chamue to futui
market conditions, changes in U.S. or internatidaallaws and other factors.

On July 1, 2007, the Company adopted the authimetaiccounting guidance prescribing a threshold and
measurement attribute for the financial recognifiod measurement of a tax position taken or exgeotbe taken
in a tax return. The guidance also provides foratmgnition of tax benefits, classification on tredance sheet,
interest and penalties, accounting in interim msjalisclosure and transition. The guidance uslaéwo-step
approach for evaluating uncertain tax positionep®te, Recognition, requires a company to deterihite weigh
of available evidence indicates that a tax positsomore likely than not to be sustained upon aimtifuding
resolution of related appeals or litigation proesssf any. If a tax position is not considered fmbkely than not”
to be sustained then no benefits of the positiert@be recognized. Step two, Measurement, is baséide largest
amount of benefit, which is more likely than nobirealized on ultimate settlement. The cumulatifect of
adoption to the opening balance of retained easnivags $1,705.
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Foreign Currency Translation

The Company’s foreign operations are subject thvamge rate fluctuations. The majority of the Conyan
sales is denominated in U.S. dollars. The functionarency for the majority of the Company’s foneigubsidiaries
is the U.S. dollar. For these subsidiaries, assaddiabilities denominated in foreign currency emeasured into
U.S. dollars at current exchange rates for monetasgts and liabilities and historical exchangesr&dr
nonmonetary assets and liabilities. Net revenust, @orevenue and expenses are generally remeasuagdrage
exchange rates in effect during each period. Gaaslosses from foreign currency remeasuremeribeleded in
net earnings. Certain foreign subsidiaries desegtie local currency as their functional curreriey. those
subsidiaries, the assets and liabilities are ted@dlinto U.S. dollars at exchange rates in efiette balance sheet
date. Income and expense items are translateceega/ exchange rates for the period. The foreigreay
translation adjustments are included in accumulatkdr comprehensive income (loss) as a separatparent of
stockholders’ equity. Foreign currency transactiams or losses are recorded in other income (esg)enet and
were not material for any period presented.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income consists of two componentsnoceme and other comprehensive income (loss)eOth
comprehensive income (loss) refers to revenue,resqee gains, and losses that under GAAP are retasian
element of stockholders’ equity but are excludednfinet income. The Compasytomprehensive income (loss)
accumulative other comprehensive income (loss)istanef foreign currency translation adjustmentsrfrthose
subsidiaries not using the U.S. dollar as theicfiomal currency and unrealized gains and lossasanketable
securities categorized as available-for-sale. Tatalmulated other comprehensive income (lossypayed as a
separate component of stockholders’ equity.

Loss Contingencies

The Company is subject to the possibility of vasidmss contingencies arising in the ordinary coofse
business. Management considers the likelihoodssf & impairment of an asset or the incurrenceliabdity, as
well as its ability to reasonably estimate the aniaf loss, in determining loss contingencies. Atireated loss
contingency is accrued when it is probable thasset has been impaired or a liability has beeauriad and the
amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. Thep@oyregularly evaluates current information avddao its
management to determine whether such accrualsébewddjusted and whether new accruals are required

From time to time, the Company is involved in dig®, litigation and other legal actions. The Conypaatord:
a charge equal to at least the minimum estimagduilitly for a loss contingency only when both o flollowing
conditions are met: (i) information available priorissuance of the financial statements indictitasit is probable
that an asset had been impaired or a liabilitytheseh incurred at the date of the financial statespemd (ii) the
range of loss can be reasonably estimated. Thaldizhility in any such matters may be materiaifferent from
the Company’s estimates, which could result inrthed to adjust the liability and record additioegbenses.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company measures and records the expensalredatbare-based transactions based on the faievalf
share-based payment awards as determined on #hefdgttant using an option-pricing model. The Comyphas
selected the Black-Scholes option pricing modegtimate the fair value of its stock options awaocdsmployees.
In applying the Black-Scholes option pricing modee Company’s determination of fair value of tharge-based
payment award on the date of grant is affectechbyGompany’s estimated fair value of common stoclkstock
options granted prior to the Company’s IPO, as aglassumptions regarding a number of highly coxghel
subjective variables. These variables include dbaitnot limited to, the Company’s expected stodkepvolatility
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over the term of the stock options and the emplsyaetual and projected stock option exercise arevpsting
employment termination behaviors.

For awards with graded vesting the Company recegrstock-based compensation expense over theitequis
service period using the straight-line method, baseawards ultimately expected to vest. The Comeatimates
future forfeitures at the date of grant and revibesestimates, if necessary, in subsequent pefiadtual forfeiture
differ from those estimates.

See Note 11 for further information.

401(k) Savings Plan

The Company sponsors a 401(k) defined contribyilan covering all U.S. employees. Contributions enbay
the Company are determined annually by the Boamirgfctors. There were no employer contributiondeurrthis
plan for the fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Stansl&wolard (“FASB”) issued a new accounting standaad t
changes the accounting for business combinationkiding the measurement of acquirer shares issued
consideration for a business combination, the meitiog of contingent consideration, the accounfimgpre-
acquisition gain and loss contingencies, the reitiognof capitalized in-process research and depralent, the
accounting for acquisition-related restructuringtcaccruals, the treatment of acquisition-relatadgaction costs
and the recognition of changes in the acquirecsiine tax valuation allowance. The new standardiegppl
prospectively to business combinations for whiahdhquisition date is on or after the beginnintheffirst annual
reporting period beginning on or after December2I®)8 and to changes in valuation allowances fterded tax
assets and acquired income tax uncertainties grisdm past business combinations. The adoptichehew
standard on July 1, 2009 did not have a materiatedn the Company’s consolidated financial stateis

In October 2009, the FASB amended the accountemsirds for revenue recognition to remove tangible
products containing software components and notwaoé components that function together to delikier
product’s essential functionality from the scopénafustry-specific software revenue recognitiondgunce. In
October 2009, the FASB also amended the accoustimglards for multiple deliverable revenue arrareygmto

« provide updated guidance on whether multigliverables exist, how the deliverables in an agemment
should be separated, and how the consideratioridshetallocated

« require an entity to allocate revenue in aaragement using estimated selling price (“ES#")leliverables i
a vendor does not have vendor-specific objectivéesce (“VSOE”) of selling price or third-party elénce
(“TPE") of selling price;

< and eliminate the use of the residual method agdire an entity to allocate revenue using the ingdatelling
price method

Both standards should be applied on a prospectisis lior revenue arrangements entered into or rabyer
modified in fiscal years beginning on or after Jdie 2010, with early adoption permitted. The Compdoes not
anticipate the adoption of these standards initeeduarter of fiscal year 2011 will have a madkhnpact on its
consolidated financial statements.

In January 2010, the FASB issued a new fair vatweanting standard update. This update requiretiaiolal
disclosures about (i) the different classes oftassed liabilities measured at fair value, (ii) tfeduation techniques
and inputs used, (iii) the activity in Level 3 faimlue measurements, and (iv) the transfers betleeels 1, 2, and
3. This update is effective for interim and anmegorting periods beginning after December 15, 200@
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adoption of the new standard in the third quartdisocal 2010 did not have a material effect on @@npany’s
consolidated financial statements.

In February 2010, the FASB amended its accountiridagce for the accounting and disclosure of evinats
occur after the balance sheet date but beforediabstatements are issued. In particular, the amendment sets
forth that a registrant is no longer required tecttise the date through which it has evaluatedesulent events. Tt
amended guidance is effective immediately and wapted by the Company in the third quarter of i 0. The
adoption of the new standard did not have a mateffiect on the Company’s consolidated financiataments.

3. Net Income Attributable to Common Stockholders and\et Income per Share

Basic and diluted net income per share attributabEmmon stockholders is presented in conformiti the
“two-class method” required for participating seties. In February 2010, all of the Company’s carntsting
convertible preferred stock converted into commioieksin connection with the IPO. Prior to the corsien, holder
of Series A, Series B and Series C convertiblegpredl stock were each entitled to receive 8% peu@mnon-
cumulative dividends, payable prior and in prefeeeto any dividends on any other shares of the Gowip capital
stock. No such dividends were paid.

For periods prior to the conversion of the conbéetpreferred stock, net income per share inforonas
computed using the two-class method. Under thedlass method, basic net income per share attriteutab
common stockholders is computed by dividing theimedme attributable to common stockholders byweehted
average number of common shares outstanding dtivengeriod. Net income attributable to common shoddters it
computed by subtracting from net income the portibearnings generated for the period through @ that the
preferred stockholders would have been entitle@teive pursuant to their dividend rights had gagion of net
income been distributed. Diluted net income perelsmcomputed by using the weighted-average nuwiber
common shares outstanding, including potentiaktigdidushares of common stock assuming the dilutffeceof
outstanding stock options using the treasury stoethod.
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The following table presents the calculation ofibasd diluted net income per share attributableotmmon

stockholders:

Numerator:
Basic:
Net income
8% nor-cumulative dividends on convertible preferred st
Undistributed earnings allocated to convertiblefgmmed stock
Net income attributable to common stockholc— basic

Diluted:
Net income attributable to common stockholc— basic
Undistributed earnings -allocated to common stor

Net income attributable to common stockholc— diluted

Denominator
Basic:
Weighted average shares of common stock used ipwiimg basic net
income per shar

Diluted:
Weighted average shares of common stock used ipwiimg basic net
income per shar
Add weighted average effect of dilutive securit
Stock options

Weighted average shares of common stock used ipwiimg diluted

net income per sha

Net income per common sha
Basic

Diluted

Securities excluded from weighted average shares inscomputing diluted n

income per share because the effect would have dm+-dilutive: (1)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2010 2009 2008
$20,58: $17,27: $12,86;
(2,019 (3,276 (3,276
(5789 (8,599 (5,925
$12,78: $539¢ $ 3,66¢
$12,78: $539¢ $ 3,66¢
41¢ 39¢ 36C
$13,200 $579 $ 4,02

25,61¢ 13,29¢ 13,10¢

25,61¢ 13,29¢ 13,10¢

2,818 1,67 2,22]

28,42¢ 14,97 15,32¢

$ 0.5C
$ 0.4¢€

$ 0.41
$ 0.3¢

$ 0.2¢
$ 0.2¢

2,91¢ 4,74( 2,28¢

(1) These weighted shares relate to anti-dilutive stgations as calculated using the treasury stockatkeand

could be dilutive in the future

4. Investments and Fair Value Measurement

Investments

The Company recognized proceeds of $2,302 and $2%&m the sale and maturities of its investmémts

marketable securities for fiscal years 2009 andB28&spectively.
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Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would leeired to sell an asset or paid to transfer alitglti.e., the
“exit price”) in an orderly transaction between ketrparticipants at the measurement date. A hikydiar inputs
used in measuring fair value has been defined hinnize the use of unobservable inputs by requitirguse of
observable market data when available. Observapléts$ are inputs that market participants wouldingicing the
asset or liability based on active market data.ldeovable inputs are inputs that reflect the Comigaassumptions
about the assumptions market participants wouldrupeicing the asset or liability based on thetlef®rmation
available in the circumstances.

The fair value hierarchy prioritizes the inputsitiiree broad levels:
Level 1 — Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices fivanarkets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs are quoted prices for similar &ss@d liabilities in active markets or inputs thed
observable for the asset or liability, either dilgor indirectly through market corroboration, feubstantially
the full term of the financial instrument.

Level 3 — Inputs are unobservable inputs basetherCompany’s assumptions.

As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, the Company did olok tmarketable securities other than money markads.
Money market funds are classified as cash equitalmmthe balance sheet and are categorized as/foih the fair
value hierarchy as of June 30, 2010 and 2009.

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets
for Identical Assets

Total (Level 1)
Assets:

Money market fund $133,12¢ $ 133,12t
Balance at June 30, 201 $133,12¢ % 133,12¢
Assets:

Money market fund $ 805 § 8,054
Balance at June 30, 200 $ 805/ § 8,05¢
5. Balance Sheet Components

Accounts Receivable, Net

Accounts receivable, net balances are compriséitkdbllowing:
June 30,
2010 2009
Accounts receivabl $54,22:  $36,79:
Less: Allowance for doubtful accour (329 (50€)
Less: Allowance for sales retur (2,439 (3,0079)

$51,46¢  $33,28!
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Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment, net balances are compoisth following:

June 30,

2010 2009
Computer equipmet $11,50¢ $10,29¢
Software 5,94¢ 4,95t
Furniture and fixture 1,97¢ 1,99
Leasehold improvemen 917 694
Internal software development co 14,87( 13,45¢

35,21t 31,39:
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortiza (29,796 (26,657

$ 541¢ $ 4,741

Depreciation expense was $2,227, $2,742 and $2p4Gi3cal years 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Amortization expense related to internal softwageadopment costs was $1,275, $1,500 and $1,81ftsta years
2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Accrued liabilities

Accrued liabilities are comprised of the following:

June 30,
2010 2009
Accrued media cos $15,76(  $12,92(
Accrued compensation and related expe 11,87: 6,457
Accrued taxes payab 642 43C
Accrued professional service and other businessresqs 1,87( 1,98
Total accrued liabilitie: $30,14¢  $21,79¢

6. Acquisitions
Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2010
Acquisition of Internet.com

On November 30, 2009, the Company acquired the iteehgsiness of Internet.com, a division of
WebMediaBrands, Inc., a New York-based Internetimedmpany, in exchange for $16,000 in cash patthup
closing of the acquisition and the issuance of @2 non-interest-bearing promissory note payabtmie
installment. The Company received $357 in a workiagital adjustment following the closing of thejaisition.
The adjustment reduced the face value of the reptalje by $300 and the cash paid by $57. The seshilt
Internet.com’s operations have been included irctimesolidated financial statements since the aitouiglate.
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The Company acquired Internet.com to broaden igiangccess and client base in the business-to-dasmarket.
The total purchase price recorded was as follows:

Amount
Cash $15,94:
Fair value of debt (net of $46 of imputed inter 1,654
$17,597

The acquisition was accounted for as a purchasedssscombination. The Company allocated the pseha
price to tangible assets acquired, liabilities assth and identifiable intangible assets acquireedbas their
estimated fair values. The excess of the purchase pver the aggregate fair values was recordegadwill. The
goodwill is deductible for tax purposes. The follog/table summarizes the allocation of the purchpEe and the
estimated useful lives of the identifiable intarlgibssets acquired as of the date of the acquisitio

Estimated Estimated
Fair Value Useful Life
Tangible assets acquir $ 3,13¢
Liabilities assumei (509
Advertiser relationship 1,30(C 5-7 years
Website/trade/domain nam 2,50(C 5 years
Content 2,40( 4 years
Noncompete agreemer 20C 2 years
Goodwill 8,56¢ Indefinite
$ 17,591

Acquisition of Insure.com

On October 8, 2009, the Company acquired the websisiness Insure.com, an lllinois-based onlineketanrg
company, in exchange for $15,000 in cash paid whasing of the acquisition and the issuance of @1 non-
interest-bearing promissory note payable in ongilmsent. The results of Insure.com’s acquired apens have
been included in the consolidated financial statgssince the acquisition date. The Company acgjlirgure.com
for its capacity to generate online visitors in fimancial services market. The total purchaseeprécorded was as

follows:
Amount
Cash $15,00(
Fair value of debt (net of $24 of imputed intefe 97¢€
$15,97¢

The acquisition was accounted for as a purchasedssscombination. The Company allocated the pseha
price to identifiable intangible assets acquiresienbon their estimated fair values. The excesseoptirchase price
over the aggregate fair values was recorded asvgthotlhe goodwill is deductible for tax purpos@he following
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table summarizes the allocation of the purchase@nd the estimated useful lives of the identifialtangible
assets acquired as of the date of the acquisition:

Estimated Estimated
Fair Value Useful Life
Advertiser relationship $ 90C 3 years
Website/trade/domain nam 1,25C 8 years
Content 3,90( 8 years
Goodwill 9,92¢ Indefinite
$ 15,97¢

Acquisition of Payler Corp. D/B/A HSH Associatesrincial Publishers (*HSH”)

On September 14, 2009, the Company acquired 10aG¥%eafutstanding shares of HSH, a New Jersey-based
online marketing business, in exchange for $6,00&sh paid upon closing of the acquisition andgbeance of
$4,000 in non-interest-bearing promissory notespkyin five installments over the next five yedrse results of
HSH'’s acquired operations have been included irctmsolidated financial statements since the aitmurisiate.

The Company acquired HSH for its capacity to geteepaline visitors in the financial services markite total
purchase price recorded was as follows:

Amount
Cash $6,00(
Fair value of debt (net of $241 of imputed intey: 3,75¢
$9,75¢

The acquisition was accounted for as a purchasedssscombination. The Company allocated the pseha
price to tangible assets acquired, liabilities assth and identifiable intangible assets acquireedbas their
estimated fair values. The excess of the purchase pver the aggregate fair values was recordepbadwill. The
goodwill is not deductible for tax purposes. Thidf@ing table summarizes the allocation of the iase price and
the estimated useful lives of the identifiable ng#ble assets acquired as of the date of the atiqnis

Estimated Estimated
Fair Value Useful Life
Tangible assets acquir $ 50
Liabilities assumei (1,695
Advertiser relationship 1,10C 3 years
Website/trade/domain nam 80C 6 years
Content 1,40C 6 years
Goodwill 8,104 Indefinite
$ 9,75¢

Other Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2010

During fiscal year 2010, in addition to the acqudsi of HSH, Insure.com and Internet.com, the Comypa
acquired operations from 30 other online publisthoginesses in exchange for $29,882 in cash paid clpsing of
the acquisitions and $8,643 payable in the formarf-interest-bearing, unsecured promissory notgalpa
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over a period of time ranging from one to five yearhe aggregate purchase price recorded waslaw$olThe
aggregate purchase price recorded was as follows:

_Amount.
Cash $29,88:
Fair value of debt (net of $531 of imputed intey: 8,112
$37,99¢

The acquisitions were accounted for as purchasedmsscombinations. In each of the acquisitiorss, th
Company allocated the purchase price to identdiaflangible assets acquired based on their estihiair values
and liabilities assumed, if any. The excess ofpilnehase price over the aggregate fair valueseoidintifiable
intangible assets was recorded as goodwill. Godd@ductible for tax purposes is $24,299. The felig table
summarizes the preliminary allocation of the pusehprices of these other acquisitions and the attuuseful
lives of the identifiable intangible assets acquiias of the respective dates of these acquisitions:

Estimated Estimated

Fair Value Useful Life
Tangible assets acquir $ 45
Content 8,384 1-6 years
Customer/publisher relationshi 1,15C 1-7 years
Website/trade/domain nam 2,74¢ 5 years
Noncompete agreemer 224 2-3 years
Acquired technolog 19¢ 3 years
Goodwill 25,24+ Indefinite

$ 37,99/

Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2009
Acquisition of U.S. Citizens for Fair Credit Card&rms, Inc. (“CardRatings”)

On August 5, 2008, the Company acquired 100% obthstanding shares of CardRatings, an Arkansasdbas
online marketing company, in exchange for $10,00€eish paid upon closing of the acquisition andskeance of
$5,000 in non-interest-bearing promissory notesapkyin five installments over the next five yeaegured by the
assets acquired. The Company paid $372 in worlapgtal adjustment following the closing of the aisifion. The
results of CardRatings’ acquired operations hawembecluded in the consolidated financial statemeiice the
acquisition date. The Company acquired CardRafioigiss capacity to generate online visitors in fimancial
services market. The total purchase price recongedas follows:

Amount
Cash $10,37:
Fair value of debt (net of $722 of imputed intey: 4,27¢
Acquisitior-related cost 20
$14,67(

The acquisition was accounted for as a purchasedssscombination. The Company allocated the pseha
price to tangible assets acquired, liabilities assth and identifiable intangible assets acquireedbas their
estimated fair values. The excess of the purchase pver the aggregate fair values was recordegbadwill. The
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goodwill is entirely deductible for tax purpose$eTfollowing table summarizes the allocation of plaechase price
and the estimated useful lives of the identifidhtangible assets acquired as of the date of thaeisition:

Estimated Estimated
Fair Value Useful Life
Tangible assets acquir $ 834
Liabilities assumei (20€)
Advertiser relationship 2,32¢ 7 years
Website/trade/domain nam 77€ 5 years
Noncompete agreemer 124 3 years
Content 14C 2 years
Goodwill 10,671 Indefinite
$ 14,67(

Other Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2009

During fiscal year 2009, in addition to the acatinsi of CardRatings, the Company acquired operatfoom 3:
online publishing businesses in exchange for $BliB@ash paid upon closing of the acquisitions $4268
payable primarily in the form of non-interest-begriunsecured promissory notes payable over agefibme
ranging from one to five years. The aggregate @mselprice recorded was as follows:

Amount
Cash $14,60¢
Fair value of debt (net of $395 of imputed intey: 3,87:
Acquisitior-related cost 134
$18,61:

The acquisitions were accounted for as purchasedmsscombinations. In each of the acquisitiorss, th
Company allocated the purchase price to identiaflangible assets acquired based on their estihiair values

and liabilities assumed, if any. No tangible assete acquired. The excess of the purchase prieetbe aggregate
fair values of the identifiable intangible assetsswecorded as goodwill. The goodwill is entiredgdctible for tax
purposes. The following table summarizes the atlonaf the purchase prices of these other fisear 2009
acquisitions and the estimated useful lives ofideatifiable intangible assets acquired as of #spective dates of
these acquisitions:

Estimated Estimated

Fair Value Useful Life
Liabilities assume: $ (22
Content 2,53¢ 1-6 years
Customer/publisher relationshi 1,952 1-7 years
Website/trade/domain nam 2,41¢ 5 years
Noncompete agreemer 23€ 2-3 years
Acquired technolog 392 3 years
Goodwill 11,09¢ Indefinite

$ 18,618
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Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2008
Acquisition of Cyberspace Communications Corporati¢fSureHits”)

On April 9, 2008, the Company acquired 100% ofdhtstanding shares of SureHits, an Oklahoma-based
online marketing company, in exchange for $26,51&aish paid upon closing of the acquisition an@%3 payable
in two equal installments over the next year reldteemployee change-in-control provisions. Additithy, the
sellers had the potential to earn up to an additi6®8,000 through fiscal year 2012, such earracutunts being
contingent upon the achievement of specified firgriargets. The results of SureHits’ operationsehdeen
included in the consolidated financial statemeintsesthe acquisition date. The Company acquire@Jits to
broaden its media access and client base in thadial services market. The total purchase pricerte=d was as

follows:
_Amount
Cash $26,51¢
Fair value oichangw-in-control provisions (net of $72 of imputed intere 1,841
Acquisitior-related cost 212
$28,57:

The acquisition was accounted for as a purchasedssscombination. The Company allocated the pseha
price to tangible assets acquired, liabilities assth and identifiable intangible assets acquireédbas their
estimated fair values. The excess of the purchase pver the aggregate fair values was recordepbadwill. The
goodwill is entirely deductible for tax purpose$eTfollowing table summarizes the allocation of plaechase price
and the estimated useful lives of the identifidhtangible assets acquired as of the date of thaisition:

Estimated Estimated
Fair Value Useful Life
Tangible assets acquir $ 4,00¢
Liabilities assumei (2,999
Advertiser relationship 7,692 3-5 years
Acquired technolog 2,48 3 years
Publisher relationshig 391 2 years
Trade nam 19¢ 5 years
Noncompete agreemer 17€ 3 years
Goodwill 16,62¢ Indefinite
$ 28,57-

In each of fiscal year 2010 and 2009, the Compaig $4,500 in earn-out payments upon the achieveofen
the specified financial targets. The earn-out paysevere recorded as goodwill.

Acquisition of ReliableRemodeler.com, Inc. (“RelilgRemodeler”)

On February 7, 2008, the Company acquired 100%e0btitstanding shares of ReliableRemodeler, anddreg
based online company specializing in home renoratiad contractor referrals, in exchange for $17j&0tash paid
upon closing of the acquisition, $2,000 of whichsvpdaced in escrow, and the issuance of $8,000nrimerest-
bearing, unsecured promissory notes payable i thistallments over the next four years. The resflt
ReliableRemodeler’s acquired operations have hednded in the consolidated financial statememtsesthe
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acquisition date. The Company acquired ReliableRimien to broaden its media access and client Inatheihome
services market. The total purchase price recongedas follows:

Amount
Cash $17,50(
Fair value of debt (net of $1,277 of imputed ingty 6,72¢
Acquisitior-related cost 54
$24,27"

The acquisition was accounted for as a purchasedssscombination. The Company allocated the pgeha
price to tangible assets acquired, liabilities assth and identifiable intangible assets acquireedbas their
estimated fair values. The excess of the purchase pver the aggregate fair values was recordegadwill. The
goodwill is not deductible for tax purposes. Thidf@ing table summarizes the allocation of the iase price and
the estimated useful lives of the identifiable ng#ble assets acquired as of the date of the atiquis

Estimated Estimated
Fair Value Useful Life
Tangible assets acquir $ 85¢
Liabilities assumei (987)
Deferred tax liabilities (3,849
Customer relationshiy 7,47¢ 5 years
Acquired technolog 1,124 5 years
Trade name and domain na 814 5 years
Content 183 4 years
Goodwill 18,651 Indefinite
$ 24,27

Acquisition of Vendorseek L.L.C. (“Vendorseek”)

On May 15, 2008, the Company acquired the asséfeforseek, a New Jersey-based provider of online
matching services for businesses that connectiateisitors with vendors, in exchange for $10,666ash paid
upon closing of the acquisition and the issuanck3p750 in interest-bearing, unsecured promissotgapayable in
three installments over the next three years anaial interest rate of 1.64%. The results of Veseek's
operations have been included in the consolidatesh€ial statements since the acquisition date.Jdmapany
acquired Vendorseek to broaden its media accessliamd base in the business-to-business market tdtal
purchase price recorded was as follows:

Amount
Cash $10,66¢
Fair value of debt (net of $346 of imputed intey: 3,40¢
Acquisitior-related cost 12¢
$14,19°

The acquisition was accounted for as a purchasedssscombination. The Company allocated the pseha
price to tangible assets acquired, liabilities assth and identifiable intangible assets acquireedbas their
estimated fair values. The excess of the purchase pver the aggregate fair values was recordepbadwill. The
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goodwill is deductible for tax purposes. The follog/table summarizes the allocation of the purchmie and the
estimated useful lives of the identifiable intargibssets acquired as of the date of the acquisitio

Estimated Estimated
Fair Value Useful Life
Tangible assets acquir $ 413
Liabilities assumei (221)
Customer relationshiy 15€ 2 years
Publisher relationshig 89¢ 5 years
Acquired technolog 63¢ 3 years
Trade name and domain na 252 5 years
Noncompete agreemer 88 3 years
Goodwill 11,97! Indefinite
$ 14,19

Other Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2008

During the fiscal year 2008, in addition to the @is@ions of SureHits, ReliableRemodeler and Vesdek, the
Company acquired operations from 20 other onlindiphing entities in exchange for $9,471 in casid pgon
closing of the acquisitions and $5,354 payable grilyin the form of non-interediearing promissory notes paye
over a period of time ranging from one to threergethe majority of which are secured by the assegsiired. The
aggregate purchase price recorded was as follows:

Amount
Cash $ 9,471
Fair value of debt (net of $412 of imputed intey: 4,94
Acquisitior-related cost 84
$14,49°

The acquisitions were accounted for as purchasedrsscombinations. In each of the acquisitiorss, th
Company allocated the purchase price to identdiaflangible assets acquired based on their estihiair values
and liabilities assumed, if any. No tangible assatee acquired nor were any liabilities assumea &kcess of the
purchase price over the aggregate fair valueseoitibntifiable intangible assets was recorded asi\gdl. The
goodwill is entirely deductible for tax purpose$eTfollowing table summarizes the allocation of plaechase price
of these fiscal year 2008 acquisitions and thenegtd useful lives of the identifiable intangiblsats acquired as
the respective dates of these acquisitions:

Estimated Estimated
Fair Value Useful Life
Content $ 3,281 2-5 years
Customer/advertiser/publisher relationsk 91¢ 2-5 years
Domain name 1,36¢ 5 years
Noncompete agreemer 26¢ 2-3.5 year:
Goodwill 8,66¢ Indefinite
$ 14,49:

77




Table of Contents

QUINSTREET, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

Pro Forma Financial Information (unaudited)

The unaudited pro forma financial information i tlable below summarizes the combined results efatipn:
for the Company and other companies that were eatjgince the beginning of fiscal year 2009. Thefprma
financial information includes the business combioraaccounting effects resulting from these adtjaiss
including amortization charges from acquired inthfggassets and the related tax effects as thcgh t
aforementioned companies were combined as of thimmieg of each period presented. The unauditedgroa
financial information as presented below is foomfiational purposes only and is not indicativehaf tesults of
operations that would have been achieved if theiaitopns had taken place at the beginning of quiod

presented.
Fiscal Year Ended
June 30,
2010 2009
Net revenue $342,82: $281,78!
Net income 19,50¢ 12,58(
Basic net income per she $ 04t $ 0.27
Diluted net income per sha $ 04z $ 0.2¢
7. Intangibles Assets, Net and Goodwil
Intangible assets, net balances, excluding goodealisisted of the following:
June 30, 201( June 30, 200¢
Gross Net Gross Net

Carrying  Accumulated Carrying Carrying  Accumulated Carrying
Amount  Amortization Amount Amount  Amortization Amount

Customer/publisher/advertiser relationst $2653. $ (11,799 $14,73¢ $22,98. $ (6,299 $16,68:
Content 34,38¢ (16,069 18,32 18,14¢ (10,54¢) 7,59¢
Website/trade/domain nam 16,48¢ (5,17)) 11,31« 9,187 (2,989 6,19¢
Acquired technology and othe 11,39¢ (8,619 2,78¢ 10,03 (6,525 3,50¢

$88,80: $ (41,647 $47,15¢ $6034f $ (26,359 $33,99(

Amortization of intangible assets was $15,289, $38,and $7,511 for fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008
respectively.

Amortization expense for the Company’s acquisitielated intangible assets as of June 30, 201 Caftir ef the
next five years and thereafter is as follows:

Year Ending June 30

2011 $15,61¢
2012 12,51¢
2013 8,991
2014 4,83¢
2015 2,917
Thereaftel 2,271

$47,15¢
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The changes in the carrying amount of goodwillffecal years 2010 and 2009 were as follows:

Balance at June 30, 200
Additions

Balance at June 30, 200
Additions

Balance at June 30, 201

DMS DSS Total
$ 79,237 $1,231 $ 80,46¢
26,27¢ — 26,27¢
105,51 1,231 106,74
51,83¢ — 51,83¢

$157,35. $1,23] $158,58:

In fiscal year 2010, the additions to goodwill teléo the Company’s acquisitions as described ite pand
primarily reflect the value of the synergies expédd be generated from combining the Companytsiglogy and

know-how with the acquired businesses’ access lineuisitors.

8. Income Taxes

The components of our income before income taxee a follows:

us
Foreign

The components of the provision for income taxesaarfollows:

Current
Federal
State

Foreign

Deferred
Federal
State
Foreign

79

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2010 2009 2008
$35,987 $30,80¢  $20,29¢
878 377 1,44«

$36,86( $31,187 $21,74:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2010 2009 2008

$17,55¢ $14,01¢ $ 9,85¢
5827  3,80¢ 2,437
(88) 164 35¢
2329¢ 17,990  12,64¢

$(6,005 $(4,109 $(3,079
(981) 94 (69¢)
(32) (66) —
(7,01  (4,08) (3,779
$16,27¢ $13,90¢ $ 8,87¢
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A reconciliation between the statutory federal meostax and the Company'’s effective tax rates asreeptage
of income before income taxes is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

June 30,
2010 2009 2008
Federal tax rat 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
States taxes, net of federal ben 81% 8.2% 5.1%
Stocl-based compensation expel 44% 2.8% 1.7%
Other 3.9% (1.9% (1.0)%
Effective income tax rat 44.2% 44.€% 40.8%

The components of the current and long-term deddar assets, net consist of the following:

Fiscal Year Ended

June 30,
2010 2009

Current:

Net operating los $ 12¢ $ 14¢

Deferred revenu 19C 17¢

Reserves and accru: 4,78( 3,15¢

Stock options 1,54t 68E

Other 1,88¢ 1,38:
Total current deferred tax ass $ 8,52¢  $5,54:
Non current

Intangible assel $ (462 $ (460

Net operating los 16¢ 15€

Fixed asset (217 (74)

Stock options 4,634 2,05¢

Foreign 11 4
Total noncurrent deferred tax ass 4,141 1,681

Valuation allowanct (169 (15€)
Noncurrent deferred tax assets, $ 3,97: $1,52¢
Total deferred tax assets, | $12,50( $7,06¢

Management periodically evaluates the realizabiftjhe deferred tax assets and recognizes thieeiagfit only
as reassessment demonstrates that they are réaliddbuch time, if it is determined that it is radikely than not
that the deferred tax assets are realizable, thiatan allowance will be adjusted. As of June 3010 the Compar
determined that no domestic valuation allowanaedgiired as it believes it is more likely than tmtealize all its
domestic deferred tax assets in the foreseeahlesfut

During fiscal year 2010, deferred tax assets fraxalble losses of $30 were generated in Japan whose
realization management does not believe are mketylthan not to be realizable. A full valuatiotoatance of $16'
is provided against the Japan deferred tax asHa¢svaluation allowance increased by $13 and byi$fi4cal year
2010 and 2009, respectively, related to higherijoreeferred tax assets.
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As of June 30, 2010, the Company had no operabisg darryforwards for federal income tax purposés.
Company has California net operating loss carryéods of $2,494 which will begin to expire in fisgadar 2011.
The California net operating loss will not offsatiure taxable income and is available to be utilifar the amended
fiscal year 2006 California tax return. The Compardapanese subsidiary had net operating lossfoangrds of
$403 that will begin to expire in fiscal year 20Dkferred tax assets related to those net operiatisgearryforwarc
were fully reserved as of June 30, 2010.

United States federal income taxes have not bemnded for the $1,239 of cumulative undistributedréngs
of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries as of June2820. The Company’s present intention is thahsuc
undistributed earnings be permanently reinvestéshofe, with the exception of the undistributednézgs of its
Canadian subsidiary. The Company would be subjeatitiitional United States taxes if these earning®
repatriated. The amount of the unrecognized defeneome tax liability related to these earningsds material to
the financial statements.

Effective July 1, 2007, the Company adopted thaaitative accounting guidance on uncertaintieimgome
taxes. The cumulative effect of adoption to thendpg balance of retained earnings was $1,705. Angitation of
the beginning and ending amounts of unrecognizetiéaefits since the adoption of accounting guidamt
uncertainty in income taxes is as follows:

Fiscal Year
2010 2009 2008
Balance at the beginning of the yea $2,617 $2,24¢  $2,38:¢
Gross increase— current period tax positior 21¢ 86¢ 19z
Gross decreas+— current period tax positior — (299 (328§
Reductions as a result of lapsed statute of limita (99 (20€) —
Gross decreas+— settlements with tax authoritit (723) — —
Balance at the end of the yea $2,01¢  $2,617 $2,24¢

The Company’s policy is to include interest andaglées related to unrecognized tax benefits withim
Company’s provision for income taxes. As of JungZ8I10, the Company has accrued $504 for interest a
penalties related to the unrecognized tax bendfits.balance of unrecognized tax benefits andetated interest
and penalties is recorded as a noncurrent lialblityhe Company’s consolidated balance sheet.

As of June 30, 2010, unrecognized tax benefit2gd M, if recognized, would affect the CompanyTeetive
tax rate. The Company does not anticipate thaamheunt of existing unrecognized tax benefits wijh#ficantly
increase or decrease within the next 12 months.

With few exceptions, the Company is no longer stittie U.S. federal, state and local, or non-U&ome tax
examinations by tax authorities for years befor@&@he California Franchise Tax Board (“FTB”") cormged an
examination of the Company’s California income taturn for its fiscal year ended June 30, 200720G8B. The
audit is currently in progress with no estimatethptetion date. The Internal Revenue Service (“IR®hmenced
an examination of the CompasylJ.S. income tax return for its fiscal year endede 30, 2007 that was finalized
December 23, 2009 with no proposed adjustmentsCHmepany files income tax returns in the United&ta
various U.S. states and certain foreign jurisdieioAs of June 30, 2010, the tax years 2007 thr@0§® remain
open in the U.S., the tax years 2005 through 286%imn open in the various state jurisdictions, tedtax years
2004 through 2009 remain open in the various forg@igisdictions.
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9. Debt
Promissory Notes

During fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008, the Comjssued total promissory notes for the acquisitbn
businesses of $14,501, $8,151 and $16,910, regphgctnet of imputed interest amounts of $842, $7,and
$2,107, respectively. Other than for one acquisitiofiscal year 2008 in which $3,750 in promissopotes were
issued at an annual interest rate of 1.64%, ali@fpromissory notes are non-interest-bearingrdstavas imputed
such that the notes carry an interest rate commateswith that available to the Company in the reaflr similar
debt instruments. Accretion of notes payable o188, $1,461 and $844 was recorded during fiscaisy2@10, 200
and 2008, respectively. Certain of the promissatgs are secured by the assets acquired in raspsbich the
notes were issued.

Credit Facility

In September 2008, the Company replaced its egisémolving credit facility of $60,000 with a crédacility
totaling $100,000. The new facility consisted &39,000 five-year term loan and a $70,000 revolareglit line.

In November 2009, the Company entered into an amentlof its existing credit facility pursuant to s the
Company’s lenders agreed to increase the maximuauanavailable under the Company’s revolving crédé
from $70,000 to $100,000.

In January 2010, the Company replaced its existindit facility with a new credit facility with tat borrowing
capacity of $175,000. The new credit facility catsiof a $35,000 four-year term loan, with printg@ortization
of 10%, 15%, 35% and 40% annually, and a $140,008year revolving credit line with an optional irese of
$50,000.

Borrowings under the credit facility are collatézatl by the Company’s assets and interest is paygldrterly
at specified margins above either LIBOR or the rRRate. The interest rate varies dependent upomatioeof
funded debt to adjusted EBITDA and ranges from LIBB®2.125% to 2.875% or Prime + 1.00% to 1.50%ttier
revolving credit line and from LIBOR + 2.50% to 8% or Prime + 1.00% to 1.50% for the term loan.ustid
EBITDA is defined as net income less provisionttes, depreciation expense, amortization expehsek-based
compensation expense, interest and other inconpefer), net and acquisition costs for business tatibns. The
revolving credit line also requires a quarterlyiligcfee of 0.375% of the revolving credit linemacity. The credit
facility expires in January 2014. The credit fagiligreement restricts the Company’s ability tseaadditional debt
financing and pay dividends. In addition, the Comp# required to maintain financial ratios compliées follows:

1. Quick ratio: ratio of (i) the sum of unrestridteash and cash equivalents and trade receivasgsHan
90 days from invoice date to (ii) current liab#isi and face amount of any letters of credit lescthrent
portion of deferred revenue.

2. Fixed charge coverage: ratio of (i) trailing iveemonths of adjusted EBITDA to (ii) the sum opdal
expenditures, net cash interest expense, cash tmgsdividends and trailing twelve months payment
indebtedness. Payment of unsecured indebtednessligled to the degree that sufficient unused renvgl
credit line exists such that the relevant debt paytncould be made from the credit facility.

3. Funded debt to adjusted EBITDA.: ratio of (i) $wem of all obligations owed to lending institutipnhe
face amount of any letters of credit, indebtedmssd in connection with acquisition-related noted a
indebtedness owed in connection with capital ledsigations to (i) trailing twelve months of adjad
EBITDA.
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Under the terms of the credit facility the Compamyst maintain a minimum quick ratio of 1.15 to 1.80
minimum fixed charge coverage ratio of 1.15 to 1a@@ a maximum funded debt to adjusted EBITDA rafi@.75
to 1.00 through December 31, 2010 and 2.50 to fbu08ll fiscal quarters thereafter and also requthee Company
to comply with other nonfinancial covenants. Ther(any was in compliance with the covenants as ro¢ B0,
2010 and 2009.

Upfront arrangement fees incurred in connectiomwie credit facility are deferred and amortizedrahe
remaining term of the arrangement. As of June 8@02and 2009, $34,150 and $28,500 was outstandideruhe
term loan and $41,753 and $6,257 was outstandidgruhe revolving credit line, respectively.

Debt Maturities
The maturities of debt as of June 30, 2010 wefelksvs:

Notes Credit
Fiscal Year Ending June 3C Payable Facility
2011 $12,27¢  $ 3,96:
2012 3,05¢ 7,00(
2013 2,08¢ 12,68¢
2014 1,62: 52,25
2015 and thereaftt 50C

19,54 75,90¢
Less: Imputed interest and unamortized disco (565) (1,27%)
Less: Current portio (11,959 (3,609
Noncurrent portion of del $ 7,02 $71,02¢

Letters of Credit

The Company has a $350 letter of credit agreemghtaxfinancial institution that is used as coltateor
fidelity bonds placed with an insurance companye Hiter of credit automatically renews annuallyhout
amendment unless cancelled by the financial in&iituvithin 30 days of the annual expiration date.

The Company has a $223 letter of credit agreeméhtaxfinancial institution that is used as coltatdor the
Company’s existing corporate headquarters’ opegdéiase. The letter of credit automatically renawsually
without amendment unless cancelled by the finarmegitution within 30 days of the annual expiratidate.

The Company has a $500 letter of credit agreeméhtaxfinancial institution that is used as coltatdor the
Company'’s new corporate headquarters’ operatirgeleBhe letter of credit automatically renews afigwethout
amendment unless cancelled by the financial ingiituwithin 30 days of the annual expiration date.

10. Commitments and Contingencies

Leases

The Company leases office space and equipment matecancelable operating leases with various alipir
dates through 2018. Rent expense for fiscal ye2t8,2009 and 2008, was $3,091, $2,550 and $2r&5pectively
The Company recognizes rent expense on a straighbésis over the lease period and accrues foergense
incurred but not paid.
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Future annual minimum lease payments under allanmmelable operating leases as of June 30, 2010asere

follows:

Operating
Fiscal Year Ending June 3C Leases
2011 $ 1,44
2012 1,14¢
2013 2,07:
2014 2,332
2015 2,37¢
Thereafte 8,26¢

$17,64

The existing lease for the Company’s corporate geaders located at 1051 Hillsdale Boulevard, FdStty,
California expires in October 2010.

In February, 2010, the Company entered into a easd agreement for office space located at 950 fToaves,
Foster City, California. The term of the lease hegin November 1, 2010 and expires on the lasbfithe 96th full
calendar month commencing on or after NovembeB0102The monthly base rent will be abated for tre 12
calendar months under the lease. Thereafter, tiehiydoase rent will be $118 through the 24th cdéermonth of
the term of the lease, after which the monthly basé will increase to $182 for the subsequent dafims. In the
following years the monthly base rent will increagproximately 3% after each 12-month anniversarind the
term of the lease, including any extensions urlgeiGompany’s options to extend.

The Company has two options to extend the terrhefdase for one additional year for each optidiovigng
the expiration date of the lease or renewal teegpplicable.

Concurrently with the execution of the lease, tloenpany delivered to the landlord a letter of cr@dihe face
amount of $500.

Guarantor Arrangements

The Company has agreements whereby it indemntBesfficers and directors for certain events orusnces
while the officer or director is, or was servingjtfl'e Company’s request in such capacity. The t#rthe
indemnification period is for the officer or directs lifetime. The maximum potential amount of futpayments th
Company could be required to make under these indeation agreements is unlimited; however, therany
has a director and officer insurance policy thaits its exposure and enables the Company to recopertion of
any future amounts paid. As a result of its insaegpolicy coverage, the Company believes the estirfair value
of these indemnification agreements is minimal. &xdingly, the Company had no liabilities recordedthese
agreements as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, resggctive

In the ordinary course of its business, the Compantgrs into standard indemnification provisiongsn
agreements with its clients. Pursuant to theseigions, the Company indemnifies its clients forskes suffered or
incurred in connection with third-party claims tlea€ompany product infringed upon any United Stpsdent,
copyright or other intellectual property rights. ¥/l applicable, the Company generally limits suftiigement
indemnities to those claims directed solely tgitsducts and not in combination with other softwar@roducts.
With respect to its DSS products, the Company gésterally reserves the right to resolve such cldyndesigning
non-infringing alternative or by obtaining a licensn reasonable terms, and failing that, to tertaiita relationship
with the client. Subject to these limitations, them of such indemnity provisions is generally cati@ous with the
corresponding agreements.
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The potential amount of future payments to defemeslits or settle indemnified claims under these
indemnification provisions is unlimited; howevdretCompany believes the estimated fair value cfetiedemnity
provisions is minimal, and accordingly, the Compaag no liabilities recorded for these agreemesitsfdune 30,
2010 and 2009, respectively.

During fiscal year 2009, the Company settled amindity obligation with respect to one ongoing Etiign
matter. See discussion below for further details.

Litigation

In 2005, the Company was notified by one of its B8§ment clients that epicRealm Licensing, LLC
(“epicRealm LLC"), had filed a lawsuit in federadurt in Texas against such client alleging thataitemweb-based
services provided by the Company and others to slieht infringed certain epicRealm LLC patents2D06, the
Company filed suit against epicRealm Licensing tdpicRealm LP”) in federal court in Delaware segkin
invalidate certain epicRealm LP patents. In 20@icRealm LP filed counterclaims against the Compaligging
patent infringement. Parallel Networks, LLC wa®fagubstituted for epicRealm LP as the patent maldd
party-in-interest. In April 2009, the Company estkinto a settlement and license agreement (“Agee¢hhwith
Parallel Networks pertaining to the patents in ¢tjoag"“Licensed Patents”). Under the terms of trggdement,
Parallel Networks granted the Company a perpetagalty-free, non-sublicensable and generally
non-transferable, worldwide right and license urttierLicensed Patents: (i) to use any product teloigy or
service covered by or which embodies any one oemlaims of the Licensed Patents (as defined irtreement)
and (i) to practice any method covered by any @nmore claims of the Licensed Patents in connedtith the
activities in clause (i). Additionally, Parallel Neorks covenanted not to sue the Company.

The Company paid Parallel Networks a one-time, rednndable fee of $850. The Company recognized an
intangible asset of $226 related to the estimad@dsalue of the license and recorded the remaiiBy} as a
settlement expense.

See Note 15 for further information.

11. Stock Benefit Plans
Stock-Based Compensation

For fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008, the Compacgrded stock-based compensation expense of $13,371
$6,173 and $3,222, respectively, resulting in gmgnition of related excess tax benefits of $1, %804 and
$1,707, respectively. The Company included asgfarash flows from financing activities a gross &fof tax
deductions of $1,859, $474 and $1,707 in fiscaly2810, 2009 and 2008, respectively, relateddcksbased
compensation.

Stock Incentive Plan

On January 2008, the Company adopted the 2008\Elaqpaientive Plan (the “2008 Plan”). The 2008 Plan
amended and restated the Company’s 1999 EquitytiveePlan (the “1999 Plan”).
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In November 2009, the Company’s board of directmtspted the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2010
Incentive Plan”) and the Company’s stockholdersaygd the 2010 Incentive Plan in January 2010. 201©
Incentive Plan became effective upon the complaticthe IPO. Awards granted after January 200&eftre the
adoption of the 2010 Incentive Plan continue t@beerned by the terms of the 2008 Plan. All outditag stock
awards granted before January 2008 continue t@berged by the terms of the 1999 Plan.

The 2010 Incentive Plan provides for the grannhegntive stock options, nonstatutory stock optioestricted
stock awards, restricted stock unit awards, st@gkeciation rights, performance-based stock awandsother
forms of equity compensation. In addition, the 20identive Plan provides for the grant of perforegnash
awards. The Company may issue incentive stock ept{iSOs”) only to its employees. Naqualified stock option
(“NQSOs") and all other awards may be granted tplegees, including officers, nonemployee directamd
consultants. ISOs and NQSOs are generally grantethployees with an exercise price equal to théetarice of
the Company’s common stock at the date of grardegermined by the Comparsyboard of directors. Stock optic
granted to employees generally have a contractua of seven years and vest over four years offoaoiis service
with 25 percent of the stock options vesting ondahe-year anniversary of the date of grant andeh®ining
75 percent vesting in equal monthly installmentsrdtie 36-month period thereafter.

The aggregate number of shares of the Company’snmomnstock initially reserved for issuance underaf0
Incentive Plan was 282,277 and will be increasedryyoutstanding stock awards that expire or teairifor any
reason prior to their exercise or settlement. Tinaler of shares of the Company’s common stock veddor
issuance may be increased annually from July 10 #bugh July 1, 2019 by up to five percent oftistal number
of shares of the Company’s common stock outstangimtiie last day of the preceding fiscal year. Magimum
number of shares that may be issued under the [2@&ative Plan is 30,000,000.

In November 2009, the Company’s board of directmtspted the 2010 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Alvar
Plan (the “Directors’ Plan”) and the stockholdepp@ved the Directors’ Plan in January 2010. Thee@ors’ Plan
became effective upon the completion of the ComjzaO. The DirectorsPlan provides for the automatic gran
NQSQs to purchase shares of the Com’s common stock to non-employee directors and piswides for the
discretionary grant of restricted stock units. &toptions granted to new non-employee directors eesr four
years; annual grants to existing directors overyaze.

An aggregate of 300,000 shares of the Company’sreamstock are reserved for issuance under the tOic
Plan. This amount may be increased annually, bgtine of 200,000 shares and the aggregate numiséaoés of
the Company’s common stock subject to awards gdammeler the Directors’ Plan during the immediagaiyceding
fiscal year.

The Company expects to satisfy the exercise obdestiock options by issuing new shares that andablefor
issuance under both the 2010 and Directors’ Plas®f June 30, 2010, the Company has reserved amiaxof
18,656,000 shares of common stock for issuancerihde€2010 and Directors’ Plans, of which shareslable for
issuance totaled 439,324. On July 1, 2010, the @Gommcreased the number of shares of common sésekved
for issuance under these Plans to 21,109,484. Aara# 30, 2010, the Company had not granted any dbequity
compensation other than stock options.

Valuation Assumptions

The Company estimates the fair value of stock opdiwards at the date of grant using the Black-%shol
option-pricing model. Options are granted with aareise price equal to the fair value of the comrstmek as of
the date of grant. Fair value of the common stoak determined by the board of directors for thekstptions
granted prior to the ComparsylPO. The Company calculates the weighted averagected life of options using 1
simplified method pursuant to the accounting guidsaior share-based payments as it does not hafreiesoif
historical exercise experience. Since the Compatiyés not have extensive trading history, the Comeatimates
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the expected volatility of its common stock basadh® historical volatility of comparable publicrapanies over
the stock option’s expected term. The Company leasistory or expectation of paying cash dividendsts
common stock. The risk-free interest rate is basethe U.S. Treasury yield for a term consisterthhe expected
term of the stock options. Compensation expenamisrtized on a straight-line basis over the retpisérvice
period of the options, which is generally four year

The weighted average Black-Scholes model assungpéiod the weighted average grant date fair value of
employee stock options in fiscal years 2010, 204292008 were as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30
2010 2009 2008

Expected term (in year 4.6 4.€ 4.€
Weightec-average volatility 67% 62% 52%
Expected dividend yiel 00% 0.C% 0.C%
Risk-free interest rat 24% 2.&% 3.1%
Grant date fair valu $9.4z $5.2¢ $4.7¢

Stock Option Award Activity

The following table summarizes the stock optionvitgtunder the Plans for fiscal year 2010:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Life Intrinsic
Shares Price (in Years) Value
Outstanding at June 30, 20 9,151,42:. $ 7.8i
Options grante: 3,797,95I 13.3(
Options exercise (657,614 2.4¢
Options forfeitec (347,48 11.4C
Options expirec (148,210 9.41
Outstanding at June 30, 20 11,796,06 $ 9.7¢ 5.2¢€ $31,52;
Vested anexpecte-to-vestat June 30, 2010(; 10,832,45 $ 9.61 5.2z  $30,20¢
Vested and exercisable at June 30, Z 6,586,24i $ 7.9¢ 4.81 $24,28t

(1) The expected-to-vest options are the result ofyappithe pre-vesting forfeiture assumption to tataistanding
options.

The following table summarizes the total intringadue, the cash received and the actual tax beufedit
options exercised during fiscal years 2010, 20@P2008, respectively:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30
2010 2009 2008

Intrinsic value $8,001 $1,365 $6,60¢
Cash receive 1,64( 304 2,57t
Tax benefil 2,12¢ 544 1,73¢

As of June 30, 2010, there was $38,696 of totatemgnized compensation cost related to unvested sto
options which is expected to be recognized oveeighted average period of 2.4 years.
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12. Stockholders Equity
Initial Public Offering of Common Stock

In February 2010, the Company completed its IPGerety it sold 10,000,000 shares of common stoek at
price of $15.00 per share. The Company receive® $85 after offering costs of $13,215.

Stock Repurchases

The Company repurchased 79,800, 163,275 and 558l#%8@s of its outstanding common stock at a totst
of $715, $1,337 and $5,606 and an average cos.66$$8.19 and $10.03 per share during fiscalsy2@t0, 2009
and 2008, respectively. These shares have beenrgeddfor as treasury stock.

Preferred Stock
Prior to the closing of the IPO, the Company haddtseries of convertible preferred stock outstamdi

On February 11, 2010, in conjunction with the atgsof the IPO, all of the Company’s outstandingrebaf
convertible preferred stock automatically convextada one-for-one basis into 21,176,533 sharesmfwon stock.
At June 30, 2010, the Company had no shares ofpeef stock outstanding.

13. Related Party Transactions

Katrina Boydon serves as the Company’s Vice PresiodeContent and Compliance and is the sister of
Bronwyn Syiek, the Company’s President and Chieér@fing Officer. In fiscal years 2010, 2009 and&00
Ms. Boydon received a base salary of $193, $184 $4165 (later increased to $175) per year, respsgtiand a
bonus payout of $67, $51, and $45, respectivelfistral years 2010, 2009 and 2008, Ms. Boydon waastgd
options to purchase an aggregate of 45,000, 3@0A6®0,000 shares of the Compangdmmon stock, respective
Ms. Boydon'’s fiscal year 2011 base salary is $283year, and she has a fiscal year 2011 targetshoindi7 3.

Rian Valenti serves as a client sales and developawsociate and is the son of Doug Valenti, thea@my’s
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman. Mr. Rian Mgigoined the Company in fiscal year 2009. In fikgears
2010 and 2009, Mr. Rian Valenti received a basargalf $54 and $52 per year, and a commission gayfdb23
and $2, respectively. In fiscal year 2009, Mr. Riaalenti was granted an option to purchase an aggeeof
1,500 shares of the Company’s common stock. Mm Rialenti’s fiscal year 2011 base salary is $62y@ar, and
he has a fiscal year 2011 commission opportunity5ar.

The Company had a preferred publisher agreemehtRémilon, an online publishing entity, one of wlos
primary owners is the brother-in-law of one of @@mpany’s Executive Vice Presidents. Under thegoreti
publisher agreement, the Company paid commissmmgufalified leads generated from links on Remionebsite.
The Company paid commissions to Remilon for figesdrs 2010, 2009 and 2008 of $2,226, $4,204, afaV$3
respectively. Amounts payable to Remilon at June2809 were $721. There were no amounts payablenat 30,
2010. The publisher agreement expired in Octobé820

14. Segment Information

Operating segments are defined as componentseaiftarprise about which separate financial infororais
available that is evaluated regularly by the cbigérating decision maker, or decision making graupleciding
how to allocate resources and in assessing perfmend he Company’s chief operating decision makésichief
executive officer. The Company’s chief executivBoef reviews financial information presented ocomsolidated
basis, accompanied by information about operatiggrents, including net sales and operating incosfier®
depreciation, amortization and stock-based compemsaxpense.
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The Company determined its operating segments M8, which derives substantially all of its reverfuom
fees earned through the delivery of qualified leanid clicks, and DSS, which derives substantidllgfats revenue
from the sale of direct selling services throudioated solution. The Company’s reportable operat@gments
consist of DMS and DSS.

The Company evaluates the performance of its opgraegments based on net sales and operating @ncom
before depreciation, amortization and stock-basedpensation expense.

The Company does not allocate most of its assetsgell as its depreciation and amortization expesteek-
based compensation expense, interest income, shexpense and income tax expense by segment. diagty, the
Company does not report such information.

Summarized information by segment was as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2010 2009 2008

Net revenue by segmel

DMS
DSS

Total net revenu

$333,09( $257,42( $188,42¢
1,74 3,107 3,601
334,83! 260,52° 192,03(

Segment operating income before depreciation, amatidn, and stock-base

compensation expens
DMS
DSS

70,42: 55,25! 34,74(
95¢€ 1,621 1,53¢

Total segment operating income before depreciatiomrtization, and stock-

based compensation expel
Depreciation and amortizatic
Stoclk-based compensation expel

Total operating incom

71,37¢  56,87:  36,27¢
(18,79) (15979  (11,72)
(13,37) (6,179 (3,229

$ 39,217 $ 34,727 $ 21,33(

The following tables set forth net revenue, asantslong-lived assets by geographic area:

Net revenue
United State!
Internationa

Total net revenu

Long-lived assets
United State!
Internationa

Total lon¢-lived asset:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2010 2009 2008

$334,13.  $259,96! $191,24!
704 562 78t

$334,83!  $260,52° $192,03(

June 30,
2010 2009

$5,197  $4,48¢
22¢€ 25¢€

$5,41¢  $4,741
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15. Subsequent Event:
Acquisition of Insurance.com

On July 26, 2010, the Company acquired the websisiness Insurance.com from Insurance.com Group, In
in exchange for $33,000 in cash paid upon closfrth@acquisition and the issuance of a $2,640intarest-
bearing promissory note payable in one installm&hé results of Insurance.cosrdperations will be included in t
consolidated financial statements following thelwasijon date. The Company acquired Insurance.cmmts
capacity to generate online visitors in the finahservices market.

The Company is currently evaluating the purchagmmllocation following the consummation of the
transaction. It is not possible to disclose thdiiaary purchase price allocation or unaudited famona combined
financial information given the short period of &rbetween the acquisition date and the filing datéis report.

Litigation

On September 8, 2010, a patent infringement lawsast filed against the Company by LendingTree, LLC
(“LendingTree”) in the United States District Cofot the Western District of North Carolina, seakajudgment
that the Company has infringed a certain patemt bglLendingTree, an injunctive order against tiegad
infringing activities and an award for damagesrifinjunction is granted, it could force the Comp#mstop or alte
certain of its business activities, such as itd lganeration in the mortgage client vertical. While Company
intends to vigorously defend its position, neittiexr outcome of the litigation nor the amount antyeaof potential
damages or exposure associated with the litigat@ambe assessed with certainty.
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Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants orcAanting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedure

Our management, with the participation of our Cligécutive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer,
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure otsand procedures as of June 30, 2010. The teisnlédure
controls and procedures,” as defined in Rules Bajland 15d-15(e)nder the Securities Exchange Act of 193¢
amended (the “Exchange Act”), means controls ahdrgirocedures of a company that are designedsirethat
information required to be disclosed by a comparthe reports that it files or submits under theltange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported pvtfthitime periods specified in the SEC'’s rules fanahs.
Disclosure controls and procedures include, withiouitation, controls and procedures designed suenthat
information required to be disclosed by a comparthe reports that it files or submits under theliange Act is
accumulated and communicated to the company’s neaneigt, including its principal executive and prpadi
financial officers, as appropriate to allow timelgcisions regarding required disclosure. Managemsoignizes
that any controls and procedures, no matter howdesigned and operated, can provide only reasersgsurance
of achieving their objectives and management nec#gsipplies its judgment in evaluating the cost+fit
relationship of possible controls and procedurese®l on the evaluation of our disclosure contnetsocedures
of June 30, 2010, our Chief Executive Officer afide€Financial Officer concluded that, as of suelteg our
disclosure controls and procedures were effectitkeareasonable assurance level.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There was no change in our internal control oweairitial reporting identified in connection with tealuation
required by Rule 13a-15(d) and 15d-15(d) of theHaxge Act that occurred during the three montheeéddne 30,
2010 that has materially affected, or is reasonkibdyy to materially affect, our internal contraVer financial
reporting.

Exemption from Management’s Report on Internal Contol Over Financial Reporting for Fiscal Year ended
June 30, 2010

This annual report does not include a report ofagament’s assessment regarding internal contral ove
financial reporting or an attestation report of toenpany’s registered public accounting firm dua toansition
period established by rules of the Securities axch&Bnge Commission for newly public companies.

Item 9B. Other Information
None.

PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govence

Information regarding executive officers requirgdifem 401 of Regulation S-K is furnished in a sapa
disclosure in Part | of this report, under the @aptExecutive Officers of the Registrant,” because will not
furnish such information in our definitive proxyatgment prepared in accordance with Schedule 14A.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Conduct and Ethics pdies to our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Fingalc
Officer, Corporate Controller and all others pemfiorg similar functions. The Code of Conduct andigttis
available on the investor relations section ofGlmenpany’s website at http://investor.quinstreet.com

The remaining information required by this itemlvaié contained in our definitive proxy statemenb#ofiled
with the Securities and Exchange Commission in eotion with our 2010 annual meeting of stockholdtre
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“Proxy Statement”), which is expected to be filed ater than 120 days after the end of our figealr ended
June 30, 2010, and is incorporated in this reppreference.

Item 11. Executive Compensatio

The information required by this item will be setth in the Proxy Statement and is incorporate@indry
reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners anbnagement and Related Stockholder Matt

The information required by this item will be setth in the Proxy Statement and is incorporate@indsy
reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independenci

The information required by this item will be setth in the Proxy Statement and is incorporate@indsy
reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Servict

The information required by this item will be setth in the Proxy Statement and is incorporate@indsy
reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule

(a) We have filed the following documents are pdithis Annual Report on Form 10-K:

1. Consolidated Financial Statement

_Page
Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing 56
Consolidated Balance She 57
Consolidated Statements of Operati 58
Consolidated Statements of Convertible PreferrediStStockholder’ Equity and Comprehensive Incor 59
Consolidated Statements of Cash Fl 60
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 61
2. Financial Statement Schedules
The following financial statement schedule is fikegla part of this report:
Schedule II: Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivables anésabturns
Charged to
Balance at the Expenses Write -offs Balance at
Beginning of Against the Net of the End of
the Year Revenue Receivables the Year
Fiscal year 200 $1,09¢ $1,217% $ (150 $2,161
Fiscal year 200 $2,161 $1,46: $ (115 $3,50¢
Fiscal year 201 $3,50¢ $ 26: $(1,019) $2,75¢

Note: Additions to the allowance for doubtful acntaiare charged to expense. Additions to the atowdor
sales credits are charged against revenue.

All other schedules are omitted because they dresqoired or the required information is shownha
financial statements or notes thereto.

(b) Exhibits

Exhibit
No. Description of Exhibit

3.1(6) Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorpora

3.2(7) Amended and Restated Byla

4.1(3) Form of QuinStreet, In's Common Stock Certificat

4.2(1) Second Amended and Restated Investor Rights Agmeteimg and between QuinStreet, Inc., Douglas
Valenti and the investors listed on Schedule letoedated May 28, 200

10.1(1)+ QuinStreet, Inc. 2008 Equity Incentive Pl

10.2(1)+ Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notindar 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (for
nor-executiveofficer employees)

10.3(1)+ Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notiodar 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (for executive
officers).

10.4(1)+ Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notiadar 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (for
nor-employeedirectors).

10.5(2)+ QuinStreet, Inc. 2010 Equity Incentive Pl
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Exhibit
&
10.6(2)+
10.7(2)+

10.8(2)+
10.9(2)+

10.10(2)+
10.11(3)+
10.12(3)+
10.13(3)
10.14(3)
10.15(3)#
10.16(3)#
10.17(3)#
10.18(3)#
10.19(4)+
10.20(4)
10.21(5)
21.1*
23.1*
24.1*
31.1*
31.2%

32.1*

Description of Exhibit

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notindar 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (for
nor-executiveofficer employees)

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notindar 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (for executive
officers).

QuinStreet, Inc. 2010 N-Employee Director Stock Award Plan

Form of Option Agreement and Option Grant Noticelfitial Grants under the 2010
Non-EmployeeDirectors Stock Award Plan

Form of Option Agreement and Option Grant NoticeAanual Grants under the 2010
Non-EmployeeDirectors Stock Award Plan

Form of 2010 Incremental Bonus Pl

Annual Incentive Plar

Amended and Restated Revolving Credit and Term l[Aggeement, by and among QuinStreet, Inc., the
lenders thereto and Comerica Bank as Administraiiyent, dated as of January 14, 2C

Security Agreement, by and among QuinStreet, brertain subsidiaries of QuinStreet, Inc. and
Comerica Bank as Administrative Agent, dated aSegftember 29, 200

QuinStreet Merchant Agreement, dated as of Oct8p2001, by and between QuinStreet, Inc. and
DeVry, Inc.

Letter Agreement, dated as of December 2, 2003anioybetween QuinStreet, Inc. and DeVry,

Letter Agreement by and between QuinStreet, Ind.2&Vry, Inc.

Letter Agreement, dated as of October 5, 2007 nolyleetween QuinStreet, Inc. and DeVry, |

Form of Indemnification Agreement made by and betw®uinStreet, Inc. and each of its directors and
executive officers

Office Lease Agreement, dated as of June 2, 2008ntd between QuinStreet, Inc. and
CA-ParksideTowers Limited Partnership, as amenc

Office Lease Metro Center, dated as of Februar040, between the registrant and CA-Metro Center
Limited Partnershig

List of subsidiaries

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

Power of Attorney (incorporated by reference todlgmature page of this Annual ReportForm 1(-K)
Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of Qi8treet, Inc. pursuant to Rule 13a-14 under the
Securities Exchange Act of 19:

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of qntreet, Inc. pursuant to Rule 13a-14 under the
Securities Exchange Act of 19:

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer andi€hFinancial Officer of QuinStreet, Inc. pursuamt
18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to @e806 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 2002

* Filed Herewith.
+ Indicates management contract or compensatory

# Confidential treatment has been granted for ceftdormation contained in this document. Such infation ha:
been omitted and filed separately with the Seasritind Exchange Commissi

(1) Incorporated by reference to the same numbered#tbiQuinStreet, Inc.’s Registration Statement on
(SEC FileNo. 33:-163228)filed on November 19, 200

(2) Incorporated by reference to the same numberedigxbiQuinStreet, Inc.’s Amendment No. 1 to Regisbn
Statement olForm &1 (SEC FileNo. 33:-163228)filed on December 22, 200

(3) Incorporated by reference to the same numberedigxbiQuinStreet, Inc.’s Amendment No. 2 to Regisbn
Statement olForm -1 (SEC FileNo. 33:-163228)filed on January 14, 201
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(4) Incorporated by reference to the same numberedigxdiQuinStreet, Inc.’s Amendment No. 3 to Regison
Statement olForm &1 (SEC FileNo. 33:-163228)filed on January 26, 201

(5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Quia&t, Inc.’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q (SEG&Mlo.
001-34628)filed on May 12, 201C

(6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Quie8ty Inc.’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Stateoa
Form $-1 (SEC File No. 33-163228) filed on December 22, 20!

(7) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to Quie8ty Inc.’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Stateroa
Form $-1 (SEC File No. 33-163228) filed on December 22, 20!

95




Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyigthas
duly caused this report to be signed on its behathe undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, epté&nber 13,
2010.

QuinStreet, Inc.

By: /s/ Douglas Valen

Douglas Valenti
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below
constitutes and appoints Douglas Valenti and Kénhkthn, and each of them, as his true and lawfolragys-in-
fact and agents, with full power of substitutiordag-substitution, for him in any and all capaditi® sign any and
all amendments to this Annual Report on Form 103 ® file the same, with all exhibits thereto, antider
documents in connection therewith, with the Semgiand Exchange Commission hereby ratifying amdicoing
that each of said attorneys-in-fact and agenthjsosubstitute or substitutes, may lawfully do anse to be done by
virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe
following persons on behalf of the Registrant amthie capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Douglas Valenti Chairman and Chief Executive Officer September 13, 20
Douglas Valent (Principal Executive Officer)
/sl Kenneth Hahn Chief Financial Officer September 13, 20
Kenneth Hahn (Principal Financial Officer and Princif

Accounting Officer)

/sl William Bradley Director September 13, 20
William Bradley

/s/ John G. McDonald Director September 13, 20
John G. McDonal

/sl Gregory Sands Director September 13, 20
Gregory Sand

/sl James Simons Director September 13, 20

James Simon

/sl Glenn Solomon Director September 13, 20
Glenn Solomor

/sl Dana Stalder Director September 13, 20
Dana Stalde
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SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

Exhibit 21.1

Jurisdiction

QuinStreet Media, Inc
WorldWide Learn, Inc
3041486 Nova Scotia Compa
WorldWide Learn Partnersh

Nevada
Alberta
Nova Scotie
Alberta



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémt¢lee Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N83:165534 and 333-168322) of

QuinStreet, Inc. of our report dated SeptembeR030 relating to the financial statements and fonarstatement schedule, which appears in
this Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Jose, California
September 13, 2010



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
I, Douglas Valenti, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on F&0¥K of QuinStreet, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statesy and other financial information includedhistreport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officardal are responsible for establishing and maintgimisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}5¢r the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls andgumoes, or caused such disclosure controls aneéguoes to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b)[Reserved]

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regigts disclosure controls and procedures and predém this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgatures, as of the end of the period coveredibydport based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change inréhgistrant’s internal control over financial refiog that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fotigbal quarter in the case of an annual repog) tias materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intedl control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officardal have disclosed, based on our most recent atiafuof internal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and matenetaknesses in the design or operation of intematral over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatolves management or other employees who hawgnéisant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: September 13, 2010

/s/ Douglas Valent

Douglas Valenti

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer’




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION
I, Kenneth Hahn, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on F&0¥K of QuinStreet, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doescantain any untrue statement of a material facioit to state a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statetsy and other financial information includedhistreport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officardal are responsible for establishing and maintgimisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}5¢r the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls andgahoes, or caused such disclosure controls an@guoes to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b)[Reserved]

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regigts disclosure controls and procedures and ptedém this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgatures, as of the end of the period coveredibydport based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change inréhgistrant’s internal control over financial refiog that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repod) tlas materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intel control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officardal have disclosed, based on our most recent atiafuof internal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and matenetaknesses in the design or operation of intematral over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdélves management or other employees who hawgnéisant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: September 13, 2010

/s/ Kenneth Hah

Kenneth Hahn

Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS
ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY
ACT OF 2002

The certification set forth below is being sutied in connection with the annual report of (itireet, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, as filed the Securities and Exchange Commission (thetiR&) for the purpose of complying
with Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) of the SetiesiExchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) &wttion 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title
18 of the United States Code.

Douglas Valenti, the Chief Executive Officeidakenneth Hahn, the Chief Financial Officer of @@mpany, each certifies that:
1. the Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act;

2. the information contained in the Reportlfapresents, in all material respects, the findnmadition and results of operations of the
Company

Date: September 13, 2010
/s/ Douglas Valent

Name: Douglas Valenti
Chairman and Chief Executive Offict

/s/ Kenneth Hah
Name: Kenneth Hahn
Chief Financial Officer




